EF Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
l EREREERRAHE

i E' (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability R B EEZSME I 2 ERAE)
J (Stock Code Bt #%%% 1663)

SINO HARBOUR HOL l)I\( S

2022/23

ANNUAL REPORT
F &




CONTENTS
B &k

GLOSSARY

CORPORATE INFORMATION

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

AR

NAEER
MGmE
TERSE

B E wmEDHT
EEeWmE
TEERRE

RIE - HE@MERAWSE

EERSMEREL
REEH I

BB E

Bl

fRa ISR E

MGHE
WMEMEE

NN © oo O 9N

44
69

111

119
128

130

132

134

136

249
251



GLOSSARY

Unless the content otherwise requires, the capitalised terms M X E R A ATIEIN » RBIER - MHBHE TFEHE - 5
used under Corporate Information, Financial Highlights, B wmEDIT - EFERE  CEERHRE - BE
Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and &REARHRE EETRSRETEECZEEFHE  MHEHE
Analysis, Directors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report, NYZEAESFAREEEGUTIHNSERE -
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Biographical

Information of Directors and Senior Management, Financial

Summary and Property Portfolio shall have the respective

meanings set out below.

“2023 AGM”
TR CFRRAFAE]

“AGM(s)’
[RERBEF R

“ASP”
[FHEE]

“Audit Committee”
[E%EEg]

“Board”
[EEg]

“business day”

[&%A]

“Bye-Laws”
EEN
“Chairman” or “Mr. Wong”

[EFIRDESRE]

“Chief Executive Officer”

[BAFENTE]

“close associate(s)”
[EZHEA

“CMC”
M2 - B

“Company” or “Sino Harbour”

[RAE S EEER]

“Company Secretary”
[ABRE]

AGM to be held on Friday, 22 September 2023
BRZZEZ=FNAAZ+ZHERDRTHRRBFRE

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

ARRBRRBFERE

average selling price

FHHEER

audit committee of the Board
EERERZEEY

board of Directors
=

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BEAEWRAFMETHRE

bye-laws of the Company
ZAYNSIFE]

Mr. WONG Lam Ping, the executive director, chairman of the Board,
chief executive officer and general manager of the Company

EMKRELE - BREARBATES  BEFSEFE  BFRRTEREKRE

the chief executive officer of the Company
RRAREREHITE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB FWARAMETERE

an important section in drug development process

EymERETN —REZFD

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability, the issued Shares of which are listed and
traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1663)
EBEREEERAR  —HREBREAMK I 2BRAR - HEE
TR RER P EMR T R R 5 (RD 5K - 1663)

company secretary of the Company
PN/NS] /N V-

~ 2 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



“Consolidated Financial Statements”

[#R & 5K

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
e

“Corporate Governance Code”
[ E/R~FA

“COVID-19”
[ 3 7 i ¢ )

“Deputy Chairman”
EIES

“Director(s)”

S

“ESG Report”
[ESG#RE |

“Executive Director(s)/ED(s)”

[BTTESE]

“Extra Good”
[Extra Good

“Fenghuang Jincheng”

[BlE &3

“Final Dividend”

[REARZ &

“FVOCI”

AR ERE 2RSSR ]
“FY2022”

[Pl = S|

“FY2023” or “Year’
R CMFIRAFE]

“GFA”
[EEEmEAE]

“Group”
(A& E ]

GLOSSARY

audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

AEBARFENREZRE P BRER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EWARRIATE T HRE

corporate governance code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

LR RIS+ PO AT Lz R EE R ST R

novel coronavirus disease 2019
2019% BV AR R BB A

deputy chairman of the Board
EEgRlER

director(s) of the Company

ARAES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g kERWmE

executive Director(s)

HITES

Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.
Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.

Leiping City Fenghuang Jincheng Industry Co., Ltd. ($4F BB & 5
F AR A A)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and an indirect subsidiary of the Company
LTTEBSNELBRAT - —FARNFEEMRLZERAR - B
VNN i3l PENG]

payment of a final dividend for FY2022
T CHFEIRNRERE

fair value through other comprehensive income

BonEREMEEKETIR

year ended 31 March 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F=-A=+—HILFE
year ended 31 March 2023
BE-_ZT-_=F=A=+—HLFE

gross floor area
EEEE

Company and its subsidiaries
RRFREKEA R

EREREEERAR o 2022/23 £ 3



GLOSSARY

“Hangzhou Ganglian”
[0 A B
“Hangzhou Gangyu”
[N 72

“HK$”

[T

“HKFRSs”

[ &R S 2R

“Hong Kong”
[&#]

“Independent Auditor”
[ A= 26

“INED(s)”
(B FEMITESE]

“Leping Runze”
[ RE]
“Listing Rules”
[ EmARAl
“Model Code”
[ME#E=F Al

“Ms. Chan”
(PR t]

“NED”
[PFATER]

“Nomination Committee”

Er==E 3 b

“Pan Hong Holdings”

DA

Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate Company Limited ({1 /BH# & (AR
A \]), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MMNBEEZEER AT - —FARPBEGEMKZ2EBRAF - BERQF]
ZEEZENRB AR

Hangzhou Gangyu Enterprises Management Company Limited (7117
B EEIRAHR A F]), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MMNBBEEERERAE - —ERPBEFME Lz ERATE - AR
NAElzEEE2ENB AR

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEEATEY

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants

AR ASRMNEBUEREER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEFEFRITTER

independent auditor of the Company
PiN/NCIE RV 2 = 4

independent non-executive Director(s)

BIUIFMITES

Leping Runze Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Z4°F B2 E i &
% B R A A)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
LIYMEZEEHEREERAA - —BERPREGEMKZZERAA -
RARB 2 ENB LA

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B2 PR AR Al

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRRAIMSE TR e FTREITAZESETIE R HNIELESTR

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling, the wife of Mr. WONG
fRimIe et - RAXEZE

non-executive Director

FHTES

nomination committee of the Board

ExgRkRe%Be

Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited (stock code: P36), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability whose issued shares are
listed on the main board of the SGX-ST
NBZEREEBRARBRMAS : P36) - RAREAMKINERA
Al HE BTN AER L

-4 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



“PRC” or “China”

[ B

“Register of Members”

[ARER & AL

“Remuneration Committee”

Bk

“RMB”
[AREE]

“SFO”
(&5 KR RA]

“SGD”
EipiEs &

“SGX-ST”
[ %7 32 Ffr ]

“Share(s)”
[ 1n

“Shareholder(s)”
L&

“SHCM”

EEmEE]

“Special Dividend”

[ RIBLE

“Sq.m.”

1K)

“Stock Exchange”
(B 22 PR

“subsidiary(ies)”

[P A

“substantial shareholder(s)”
[E2ARE]

“Us§’
EZd

wg
FAEARER

GLOSSARY

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of this annual
report, excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region
and Taiwan

REAREME - EAERME - TEESS  RFIFIITHRERE

register of members of the Company

RRRBRRE M

remuneration committee of the Board

ExeyMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR hBUEEEE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong)
BHRBABGO(BAEEFEEE)

Singapore dollar(s), the lawful currency of the Republic of Singapore
RTINS TT - AN A A E B

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

IR EZZ 5 AR QR

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
KRBT FR0.01B T2 EilAk

holder(s) of the Share(s)
A SRESEEUN

Hangzhou Sino Harbour Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (fit/1;& %
EEER AR AT, a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MMNEBEEEEER AR —HARPEEMKZZEBRAR - AR
NANZEWE A A

payment of a special dividend for FY2022
T CHFIRMERIRE

square metre(s)

FHK

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERXHMAR DR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HEB EmARIFETHRE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EmARRIFETERE

United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of United States of America
£ ENRERBEEATEES 4

per cent. or percentage
Aot

EREREEERAR o 2022/23 £ 5



CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEEHR

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Lam Ping (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager)

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. HE Dingding
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. YUE Sau Lan

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WONG Lui
Ms. YUE Sau Lan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen (Chairman)
Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. HE Dingding

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)
Mr. HE Dingding

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
Mr. WONG Lam Ping
Mr. SHI Feng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)
Mr. HE Dingding

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

E=E
BTES:
SEMIKSTE (X/E - BIEHTTE RBAETE)

RSt (B2 E)
Pt b intas
mEZL

FHTES:
BRf2E 4

BYFHTES:
fEm

BT TxE
ERERLE

DREAME
REMLL

REAKR
FEmRE
REML L

EREES
mRRESTE (E/E)
fEM

BT Tx4E

FMESS
FREM S (EE)
BT Txr4E
=ML E
SEMIK SR
vl

REEES
BRI L (EE)
BT TxRE
BMERE

Pt =pintas
mEZL
PREEAESTAE
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SHARE LISTING

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 01663

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN PRC

Levels 25 and 26, Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center,
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan,

No. 15668 Honggu Avenue, Honggu Tan Central District,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,

the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2363 1300
Facsimile: (852) 2764 2160

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEEFR

Bfr £
BEABMAERZAIBRAREIR
&1 5% © 01663

AR 484
http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk
BBRPEETEE £
Y

IPEEmAa™
ALAVEER /D& AL K 38 156857
e A AT

EB S EP 025268
ERTEEEMY

B

JUBEALR

558 E 78 37-395%
FARIESESs I
BEE1215%

BEEE ¢ (852) 2363 1300
25 : (852) 2764 2160

A EE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

FERNBFELE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda

RIODBFETDE

EERELSSTARAT
E84L A
ERIE1485:211#22103BE

B BED
BRI EEREMETMERAT]
EES -]

EBRREBMERAT - 2002/23 5
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MHRE

Profit Attributable to Owners of

Revenue the Company
= B¢
KA D EHEE AELEF
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AER#FT) (ARBFiT)
1,738,833 259,119

T .

o (NN

i : : : :

o [RRN)

o [RR N

o i

o004 000

n (NN

: : : : (N

0000 000
412,826 448,420 426884 Baor 56,958 57,544 o

o [RRN)

T o
a00¢ . 000 o 24,550 20,730 000 o000 EEEE 18,593
:::: e :::: e ||||i ’h T T e )
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
(Restated)  (Restated)
(ge&E5) (ge&E5)
Net Assets
(RMB’000)

_ 2,014,076
(AR®FiT) T 1,980,348
JC. ’

it b

1602182 1,619,349 1,656,415 ::::
T i i :::: ::::
i Y it i i
(I (] 0ooo (] o
i I I R W
T i v Jooe oooe
[T o o 2000 o
:::: i o e
it Y it i s

o T

i Y Y i o
(I (] :::: (] o
o L i o e

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Gearing Ratio:
Total Borrowings Less
Related Deposit Collateral/Total Equity
Cash and Cash Equivalents EREBELR .
ReRASEEY BEERMERERFIRUEREHE

(RMB’000) 61.7%
(ARBFor)

215,320 216,274
=

[RRN] IRENE
o o
[RRR] [NER]
i [NEN]
[RRN] [NRR] 22.5% 22.70/0
99,603
oo o000 92012 94,195
o o
o o
o o
[RRR] [NER]
e i [N
2018/19  2019/20  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23 201819 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22  2022/23
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ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS

In 2021, the central government of China tightened its
control over real estate and implemented strict control
policies, such as “the three red lines”, “each city its own
policies” and “housing is for living in, not for speculation”,
which led to a drop in real estate sales in major cities and
made potential buyers think twice before buying. In the past,
the Group has been prudent in its financial management
and bided its time in the face of uncertainties. In the first half
of 2022, the commercial residential sector in first- to fourth-
tier cities performed evenly. Prices in first-tier cities rose by
0.4% month-on-month, signaling that the property market
in first-tier cities is more resilient. Prices in second-tier cities
fell by 0.1% month-on-month, which was on a par with first-
tier cities. Prices in third- and fourth-tier cities fell by 2.2%
month-on-month, indicating sluggish demand.

The real estate market began to stabilize in 2023, and
according to the National Bureau of Statistics, sales of
commercial properties increased by 8.4% from January to
May 2023, with residential sales increasing by 11.9%. This
shows that the industry has returned to a healthy trend
of development. The Group believes that the introduction
of policies to stimulate the property market, coupled with
the market’s expectation of an accelerated recovery of
the property market, will further boost the purchasing
momentum of the public in the future and bring positive
impact to the Group’s development. In November 2022,
the People’s Bank of China and the China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission jointly issued the “Notice
on Providing Adequate Financial Support for the Stable
and Healthy Development of the Real Estate Market” ({8
RFERNeRMIXEEMEMSTRERERITIEN
#EBX1)) (the “16 Financial Measures”) to facilitate the
stable and healthy development of the real estate market,
which set out that property developers may negotiate with
financial institutions to extend the repayment terms of their
existing loans by one year, and each local government
was encouraged to determine its own down-payment
ratios and lower-bound range of mortgage interest rates
for homebuyers in a reasonable manner. The new national
policy has confirmed the gradual easing of regulations on
the Chinese property market. The Group is of the view that
this slew of measures will shore up the Chinese property
market and boost investors’ confidence in Chinese property
stocks. In the future, the Group will actively implement
appropriate sale arrangements and development strategies
that are in line with these measures, coupled with consistent
high-quality projects, thereby grasping opportunities for
development and refueling the ability to enhance the
Group’s profitability.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

RREE

B —FHREPREFHEMENRES - BT
ENHEZERR - BRIZEAK]  [AMER]RIEES
WIERER  SARTHEHEHREEMTE  AEHES
STREFHERZAS - BEKE-—BEFEEY 5
e UWENEATEERR - R-ZE-_FL¥F  —
RENGREMETKRERRFY - — T ERRL Lk

0.4% + BER— R ET B ER  ZHEMMERRELT
[£0.1% » REE—@RWMHEE + =  WURHHERIRE TRE
2.2% ' HREAEK -

—T=FRUMEMSRERERTE  REBXGABRA
HM-_ZT_=F-—ZFA2BRFHEHEHET  BaFH
ERERS.4%  EREEHERERI1.9% - AIRITEAR
ERRMEREERNBE - KERERAMETBRLE
METSZEEHTELEMERENER - BERKE-TH
BTREFEBED ) AEEERTALAXE -HE_FT
“oF+— A PEARRT - KERFRES QM CER
M E AR FEMET S FIRREER TIENEM)
(EB16EBE D UAHEHET S FREFRER - EF
BRERAEBANESRERERD  FEEHEERNRATE
E—F ARXHSHAEEEEREAFE &M LA
ERMEBR NREREE - BRZABERER T HAREE
ERENGR - AEERRE —WBRYAEERERIR
ER - ARTMER TIREZEHAFRHIRERELD - A&E
ARESERESHEBARR AL S ENHELHFNERE
B BA-BENREERE EUENBERERE  KnE
RRAASREREFIGEN

EBEREBERAT - 2022/28 5% 9




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

The pre-sale rate of the Group’s real estate project “Yichun
Sino HarboureGuanlan Phase 1” which reached up to
approximately 99% in terms of pre-sales during the period
and “Yichun Sino HarboureGuanlan Phase 2” reached
approximately 93% in terms of pre-sales during the same
period.

SHCM, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has
been providing property operation services to the Group’s
self-owned commercial properties. As of mid-June 2023,
the total area of the Group’s self-owned commercial
properties managed by SHCM was approximately 55,000
square meters. Under the environment of “dynamic zero”
prevention and control measures against the COVID-19
pandemic for most of 2022, the overall occupancy rate is
about 80%, which is better than the market average level
where the property is located. SHCM is currently carrying
out upgrade and renovation works for small part of the
Group’s self-owned commercial properties to be leased
and will continue to source tenants after the completion of
the works. The overall occupancy rate is expected to further
increase by then.

In order to better diversify the risks of business development
and ensure the sustainability of the Group, the Group has
also actively invested resources in the operation of the
“Big Health” business. The reporting period saw significant
development of the Group’s pharmaceutical “Big Health”
segment. Pingxiang Ganghua Dentistry Hospital Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company has officially
commenced operation, thereby laying a solid foundation
for the Group’s goal of building a chain of dental hospitals.
Meanwhile, the Group has laboratories with high-end
facilities and first-class technical teams, which enables the
Group to provide a full range of services for generic drugs
and innovative drugs at the stage of drugs discovery and
pharmacological research.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will continue to maintain the
operating strategy under a diversified business model
focusing on real estate, complemented by “Big Health”
and commercial management businesses. In particular,
it is expected that real estate sales will be slightly better
than market forecasts. We will adhere to our philosophy of
“seeking steady progress” when developing our real estate
business, which will grow in triple with our prospering “Big
Health” business and commercial management business.

ES e
AREBETEHEEREEEB B — 8 Nk E
ERMZEL9% » M EFESEVR — 8 |72 X B B RS
TEE R #93% °

AREETHE2ENBARESEE BN ALAERBRN
EAMEREYEELRE HE-_E-_=FA%4q -
EEEETENALSEAHNEAMERMEEARLS5000
FRHK  EZTEZ—FREIBHEHEEREECOVID-19
FIEMIESEEZTIMHITEENRET  BEHEXRNAE
80% ' BRAMEMEMN M B FIKE - ERNEBEE L
ETHERNOHES RN EMEETHRBTIE
W ELIRTKEEEREIIE EEEEEHEREEE

— SR -

REFDBEBERRR - BASENAHEEREE
SEMEBRBER  ELIRNEEIFER - RHEEHA -
SEBEARFRABREE R - ARFIHE QR
AEOEBRARAFRCEAFGES X AKEITEE
HOEEMERNBERIT T TREORR - BItFRE - &K
SEEARmREN—REMEE  EAKEEREEN
HER A BEEY BB L ESHRBERO2HREEE
57 o

AREE

REXRR  AEEDNEUBMEREEE  [KERIME
BEBRBOEBLZ TEARBELRE - B - BHE
EHERERRTSRARLT - KEDE RGBT ICEN
REERFEHERY - BRP LHNIAREIMAEE XK
R =SAHE IR -
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After a round of industry adjustment, the industry is
expected to develop in a healthier and more steady way in
the future. The gradual relaxation of China’s regulation of
the real estate industry at the end of the year of 2022 will
inevitably provide the Group with new opportunities to refuel
its real estate business with profitability and support the
Group’s steady progress. While making solid strides, the
Board will maintain a prudent attitude in the ever-changing
operating environment, implement prudent and flexible
financial policies, adhere to prudent financial management
strategies, and maintain a reasonable and safe debt level
to ensure the healthy and long-term development of the
Group, thereby fulfilling its commitment to bring long-term
investment value returns to Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
Shareholders, business partners and customers of the
Group for their support and trust over the past year
and express my sincere gratitude to the Directors, our
management team and all our employees for their hard
work and contribution to the Group.

Wong Lam Ping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 June 2023

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

ERB—WITFEAE  BHRRITESE MR R FIZH
‘- —E-_FRBERZIBRRAYEHETENEE S
B BHRSAKENREHEXRGEMBNONEE X
RASBEBERIAT CEBHBESRNEAR  EFg
ERSEZENKERETNDAGRFEEANEREE - B
TEEREINMBEE  BREBENMBEERE UK
BE  REMAEBEKE  NERAKENHREREER
KMEBRBERERFENREEERRAAGS -

&l

K& ARARREFEHEE—FAKREZ2BRR - 5
BHEEPHAKENIHRER  UEAHES  £HEE
BRERETHWFHTIERER @ RIRROHREHE

E
SE MK
'S —E-=FXA=-1+\H

EARREEERAT  2022/23 5% 11




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2023
COMPARED TO FY2022

Revenue

In FY2023, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB247.5 million, representing an decrease of 86% from
approximately RMB1,738.8 million in FY2022.

Revenue from sales of properties held for sale in FY2023
was primarily derived from the delivery of residential units
and car park spaces of Sino Harbour ® Guanlan (£/5 o &}
J&) Phase 1 in Yichun and apartment units of Sino Harbour
e Wu Lin Hui (278 e E#KEE) in Hangzhou, the PRC.

Chemistry, Manufacturing and Control (“CMC”) is an
important section in drug development process. Revenue

SHMFE-_FC_UEUBRELREE

WA
F:E:—ﬁﬁi AEEHBRAHDARE247 5858

BT CBFEHAREE1,738.8AE LA 86% ©
CE U ZHEFEYEZRATBERERNFEE
FEBEBH—HE=E f\‘ R AF BT LA R A2 57 o T AR FE
NEBEFEL -

L2 - ZEMZES ((CMCREMMERETN—EE2
By o ZEZ=BFM_F = B FCMCHEAMRIGEIAE

from CMC related services in FY2023 and FY2022 mainly Z8ERRECEREEE D TLENEEHE  E2
included small molecule chemical drugs quality research  #22%| « AR TE & 5 T E 3R -
and control, synthesis process R&D and preparation R&D
services provided to pharmaceutical companies.
Dental service income in FY2023 mainly included general T -HFOEREBERBBATZERFERE—BRIER
dentistry, orthodontics and implantology. ﬂ‘% TFERE E A R I RTE -
2023 2022
—E-= —_EF_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARKTFT
Revenue from contracts with customers RIEEBMEREERZES
under HKFRS 15 HRETFEHZBA
Sales of properties held for sale HEFEWE 181,482 1,667,208
CMC related service income CMCH 8 IR Ug A 9,400 8,613
Dental service income M e g & AR A5 U A 6,984 4,601
Consultancy service income B ARIEIA = 383
197,866 1,680,805
Revenue from other source REHMBRZWA
Rental income Ha WA 49,594 58,028
247,460 1,738,833

2

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited = ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2023
COMPARED TO FY2022 (CONTINUED)

Revenue (Continued)

The following table sets out an analysis of the revenue for (j)
residential properties, (i) commercial properties and (i) car
parking spaces during FY2023:

EEEN WD

CECCHMER-IBCIOMECMBEALRDEGE)

WA (&)
TRHFY -_ZE =B ERNOEEWE - (IEEDE LI)E
B Z WA

Percentage
2023 2022 change
—E-=fF —E-- AL
0] Residential =
- Gross floor area (‘GFA”) sold -BEEEMBE(RER
(in sq.m.) B (LCEFRET) 14,648 271,241 (95%)
- Average selling price (“ASP”) - FHEE(FHEED
(RMB per sq.m.) (BEFFRARE) 8,162 6,044 35%
~ Revenue (approximately RMB’000) — W\ (AIA ¥ T 7T) 119,554 1,639,305 (93%)
(ii) Commercial EES
- GFA sold (in sg.m.) -BEEBREEEUFY
K&t) 855 759 13%
— ASP (RMB per sq.m.) - FAEEEFIR
ARH) 10,226 36,256 (72%)
= Revenue (approximately RMB’000) — WA (FIA & #For) 8,745 27,518 (68%)
(i)  Car parking spaces 2B
- Revenue (approximately RMB’000) — W (AIA ¥ T r) 53,183 385 13,714%
Revenue from sales of properties held for ~ HEFEWERMUA
sale (approximately RMB’000) (FIA BT T) 181,482 1,667,208 (89%)
Note: sg.m. means square metre(s)
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit Margin HEREREBR=R

Cost of sales decreased from approximately RMB1,236.1
million in FY2022 to approximately RMB149.9 million in
FY2023. Gross profit margin increased from 28.9% in
FY2022 to 39.4% in FY2023. In respect of gross profit
margin from sales of properties held for sale, as a higher
portion of the revenue of the Group was attributable to the
rental income as compared with FY2022, which had higher
gross profit margin compared with residential units of Sino
Harbour e Guanlan phase 1.

HERAR T -__HFEHARE1286 1 BETHRLEZ
T CHMEHOARE1499EE L e EFERK T - —§f
Fo8.9NEME—ZT - =0139.4% - AL EFEWHEMN
BWENEmMS AR _Z-_8FE R - _=5
FRABLWAEBRAFEAASUWA - MEEZE B
W EEMALENERRS -

EERREEMERAT 0 2022/23 5% 13




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2023
COMPARED TO FY2022 (CONTINUED)

Other Income and Other Gains and Losses

Other income and other gains and losses decreased from
approximately RMB204.8 million in FY2022 to approximately
RMB27.8 million in FY2023. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the absence of a net gain of approximately
RMB201.6 million from the land resumption in Leping City,
Jiangxi Province, China in FY2022 and impairment loss of
right-of-use assets amounted to RMB 5 million.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased from
approximately RMB36.0 million in FY2022 to approximately
RMB19.0 million in FY2023. The lower selling and
distribution expenses in FY2023 were mainly due to a
decrease in the marketing expenses incurred for Sino
Harbour e Guanlan and Sino Harbour e Wu Lin Hui.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased to approximately
RMB72.3 million in FY2023 from approximately RMB59.8
million in FY2022. The increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in staff cost, depreciation and loss allowance
on other receivables.

Finance Costs

The Group recorded approximately RMBO0.8 million
non-capitalised finance costs in FY2023, which had
decreased from approximately RMB4.7 million in FY2022.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the increase in
capitalisation of interest expense incurred on construction of
properties held under development in FY2023.

Profit before Income Tax

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the Group
recorded a profit before income tax of approximately
RMB33.3 million in FY2023, compared to approximately
RMB607.1 million in FY2022, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB573.8 million.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased to approximately RMB22.3
million in FY2023 from approximately RMB290.8 million
in FY2022. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decreases in profit before income tax for FY2023.

As a result, the Group had recorded a profit after tax of

approxmately RMB11.0 million in FY2023, compared to
! gpgrexm_ately RMB316.4 million in FY2022.
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H AU SR Bt e 35 K 5 18

HEMWAUREMREREBEER S FHARE
2048EBILRLVE T _—HMEHARKE27T8HEET °
BT BERHRYERE S - —UFHBETIAE %N
Ml RS FEOARE201. 6B T MEREEE
BEBEBARESHEEILATH -

HERDHER
HERDHERA T - _MFHARK3C.0BETTHL
ECT_=MEHARK100BET c —E=UFHK
BREEHERDHEMTIBHNE B BRLZE BN MEE
A Y B B SO A TR

EEEH
EREBEAH T - _MFOARKBSIBHEBTENE_F
T=MFEHOARKT23BET  ENE2HAMEERAE

e M EA WSR2 B R IR ISR -

& R A

AREEBR - -_ZUFHEBHEERNEBMEXNANDARE
08BEBEL R __MFHRENOARB47TEELE
i o AT ERARN S _—MEMBTRYEREE
FERFIEATER LI IATE -

R BT 18 %% A E F

AR EREZEZBFFE  AEER - FHEKR
%ﬁﬁmmﬂ%AE%%SE%ﬁ BT _HFHA
RE607T1BETLALHARKS7T38AETT °

FreRimx
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2023

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB38.9 million, compared to
approximately RMB49.3 million as at 31 March 2022. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the net effect of addition
of equipment and depreciation during FY2023.

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had investment properties
at fair value of approximately RMB1,491.2 million, compared
to approximately RMB1,410.7 million as at 31 March 2022.
The increase was mainly attributable to the transfer from
properties held for sale.

Intangibles

Intangible assets represented copyright and customer
relationships, amounting to approximately RMB2.1 million
as at 31 March 2023, compared to approximately RMBS3.1
million as at 31 March 2022. The decrease was attributable
to the amortisation and impairment.

Financial Assets at FVOCI

It represented equity interests in a number of entities
incorporated in the PRC and Jiangxi Longyu Medicine
Co., Limited, on which the Group does not have control
nor significant influence. It decreased from approximately
RMB13.0 million as at 31 March 2022 to approximately
RMB8.7 million as at 31 March 2023 which was attributable
to the fair value changes on equity interests.

Pledged Deposits

Long-term and short-term pledged deposits increased from
approximately RMB53.5 million as at 31 March 2022 to
approximately RMB60.4 million as at 31 March 2023. The
increase was mainly due to an increase in deposits pledged
for bank loans.

Properties Held under Development

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s properties held under
development increased to approximately RMB1,720.8
million from approximately RMB1,658.7 million as at 31
March 2022. The increase was due to construction-in-
progress of Sino Harbour ® Guanlan (&7 e i) phase 2.

EEEN WD

REBZ=5=ZA=t—HZUBERRERE

WE  BERRE

MNZE-=ZF=ZF=+—H AEEEEDE BELR
HBHOAREISIAE T MR- E-_—_F=-A=1+—HE
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RERITE RSFREREK -
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R_EBE-_=F=A=+—H "EBHAEREDVELALE
ARE1401268 L MR- E-_—_F=A=+—HE|
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BILEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2023 (CONTINUED)

Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale decreased from approximately
RMB392.4 million as at 31 March 2022 to approximately
RMB237.0 million as at 31 March 2023, which was mainly
due to handover of completed property units and transfer to
investment properties for Sino Harbour ¢ Wu Lin Hui.

Prepayments and Other Receivables

The Group’s prepayments and other receivables amounted
to approximately RMB761.6 million as at 31 March 2023,
compared to approximately RMB698.9 million as at 31
March 2022.

The increment was mainly from amount due from Leping
Runze Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Leping Runze”)
which ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group upon the
completion of a deemed disposal.

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables and
Contract Liabilities

Accounts payable increased to approximately RMB59.8
million as at 31 March 2023 from approximately RMB30.5
million as at 31 March 2022 due to an increase in amounts
payable to the contractors for construction costs incurred in
respect of Sino Harbour e Guanlan.

Accruals and other payables mainly comprised the accrued
construction costs and project-related expenses that were
based on the progress of project development but were not
due for payment.

Accruals and other payables decreased to approximately
RMB211.1 million as at 31 March 2023 from approximately
RMB525.5 million as at 31 March 2022, which was due to
the decrease in accrued construction cost for Sino Harbour
e Guanlan and the decrease of other payable due to the
deemed disposal of subsidiary, Leping Runze .

Contract liabilities which comprises sales deposits and
installments received from customers increased from
approximately RMB1,131.9 million as at 31 March 2022 to
approximately RMB1,724.5 million as at 31 March 2023.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in pre-sale
proceeds from the launch of Sino Harbour e Guanlan phase
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2023 (CONTINUED)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities increased from approximately
RMB123.8 million as at 31 March 2022 to approximately
RMB131.5 million as at 31 March 2023, mainly attributable
to the provision of deferred tax liabilities in respect of fair
value gain on investment properties.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Position
Cash and Bank Balances

In FY2023, the Group had recorded a net cash inflow of
approximately RMB123.1 million from operating activities,
mainly attributable to an increase in accruals, other payables
and contract liabilities.

Net cash outflow from investing activities in FY2023 was
approximately RMB32.6 million, which was mainly due to
deemed disposal of a subsidiary.

Net cash outflow from financing activities in FY2023
was approximately RMB87.2 million, which was mainly
attributable to receipts from new loans, which were partially
offset by repayments of loan principals and interests.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB434.6 million (31 March
2022: RMB291.7 million), which consisted of cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB99.6 million (31
March 2022: RMB94.2 million) and bank balances restricted
for construction work of approximately RMB335.0 million
(31 March 2022: RMB197.5 million), and were mostly
denominated in RMB.

Bank Loans

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately RMB455.4 million, compared to
approximately RMB466.0 million as at 31 March 2022. The
Group’s bank loans were denominated in RMB (31 March
2022: RMB). In FY2023, the effective annual interest rates
of the bank loans were ranging from 5.5% to 7.5% (FY2022:
6.85% to 10.6% per annum).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(CONTINUED)

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of
bank loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity
and then multiplied by 100%. As at 31 March 2023, the
Group’s gearing ratio was 22.7% (31 March 2022: 22.5%).
The Group has implemented certain loan management
policies which include close monitoring of the gearing ratio
and any changes in interest rates.

Funding and Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy
with regard to its overall business operations. Historically,
we have met our capital expenditures, working capital
and other liquidity requirements principally from cash
generated from our operations and bank and other loans.
Going forward, we expect to fund our working capital,
capital expenditures and other capital requirements with a
combination of various sources, including but not limited to
cash generated from our operations, bank and other loans
as well as other external equity and debt financing. The
Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy,
to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain
a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in RMB
which is the functional currency of the Company and
most of its operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash
and bank balances, other receivables and other payables
which are denominated in HK$ and United States dollars.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews its
foreign currency exposures regularly and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 23 November 2022, Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng
Industry Co., Ltd. (“Fenghuang Jincheng”) and Leping
Runze, each an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the capital increase agreement
with Fuzhou Jinpeng Real Estate Co., Ltd. (the “Investor”),
pursuant to which, the Investor agreed to contribute
additional capital to the registered capital of Leping Runze
in an amount of RMB162 million (the “Capital Increase
Agreement”). Upon completion of the deemed disposal,
the equity interest in Leping Runze would be held by
Fenghuang Jincheng and the Investor as to approximately
3.57% and 96.43%, respectively. Accordingly, Leping
Runze would then cease to be a subsidiary of the Company
and its financial results would not be consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. As such,
the capital increase will constitute a deemed disposal of the
Group’s equity interest in Leping Runze under Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules (the “Deemed Disposal”).

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios set out
in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the Deemed
Disposal exceed 25%, but do not exceed 75%, the Deemed
Disposal constitutes a major transaction for the Company
and is therefore subject to reporting, announcement, circular
and Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
(CONTINUED)

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief, after having made all reasonable enquiries, none of
the Shareholders has any material interest in the Deemed
Disposal as contemplated under the Capital Increase
Agreement and therefore none of the Shareholders and
their associates was required to abstain from voting if a
general meeting were to be convened by the Company for
the approval of the Deemed Disposal. As such, the Deemed
Disposal may be approved by written Shareholders’
approval in accordance with Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has obtained the written approval from a
closely allied group of Shareholders, comprising Extra Good
Enterprises Limited (“Extra Good”), Mr. Wong Lam Ping
(“Mr. WONG”), the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”),
chief executive officer and general manager of the Company
(the “Chief Executive Officer” and the “General
Manager”, respectively), and his spouse, Ms. Chan Heung
Ling (“Ms. CHAN"), which are beneficially interested in
an aggregate of 1,255,181,153 Shares, representing
approximately 50.94% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 23 November 2022, to approve the
Deemed Disposal. Accordingly, no general meeting of the
Company would be convened for the purpose of approving
the Deemed Disposal. Details of the major transaction are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23
November 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 13
January 2023.

On 21 December 2022, Hangzhou Gangyu Enterprises
Management Company Limited (i BB M EERER
‘A 7)) (“Hangzhou Gangyu”) (as the lessee), Hangzhou
Ganglian Real Estate Company Limited (/158 & 2 AR
‘A A]) (as the guarantor), both being indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and Greentown Property
Management Service Group Company Limited (4% %)%
RIS EE AR A7) (“Greentown”’) (as the lessor) entered
into the commercial space co-operation agreement (the
“Commercial Space Co-operation Agreement”) in
respect of leasing the commercial space of ZJU Economic
Park comprising of overground and underground shops,
public area, coherent facilities and equipment, which is
located at the west of Lvting Road Planned River Course,
the east of Longzhou Road, the north of Yuhangtang River,
south of Yongle Village Land, including 3 block areas of
Yu Zheng Gong Chu2019No. 28 (Area C), Yu Zheng Gong
Chu2019No. 29 (Area B) and Yu Zheng Gong Chu2019No.
16 (Area D) (“the Property”) for a lease term of 10 years
commencing from 30 June 2024 or before, subject to
completion of construction work and fulfilment of handover
*éon@itions as agreed by the parties in the Commercial
S’pace Co-operation Agreement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
(CONTINUED)

Pursuant to HKFRS 16, the Company would recognise
the value of the right-of-use assets on its consolidated
statement of financial position in connection with the lease
of the Property under the Commercial Space Co-operation
Agreement. Therefore, the entering into of the Commercial
Space Co-operation Agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder would be regarded as an
acquisition of assets by the Group under the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the relevant applicable percentage ratios
calculated in accordance with the Listing Rules in respect of
the Commercial Space Co-operation Agreement are more
than 25% but less than 100%, the Commercial Space Co-
operation Agreement constitutes a major transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is
subject to reporting, circular and Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief having made all reasonable enquiries, none
of the Shareholders has a material interest in the
Commercial Space Co-operation Agreement and as
such, no Shareholder is required to abstain from voting
if the Company were to convene a general meeting for
the approval of the Commercial Space Co-operation
Agreement. As such, the Commercial Space Co-operation
Agreement may be approved by written Shareholders’
approval in accordance with Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has obtained the written approval from a
closely allied group of Shareholders, comprising Extra Good,
Mr. WONG and Ms. CHAN, which are beneficially interested
in an aggregate of 1,255,181,153 Shares, representing
approximately 50.94% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 21 December 2022, to approve the
Commercial Space Co-operation Agreement. Accordingly,
no general meeting of the Company would be convened
for the purpose of approving the Commercial Space Co-
operation Agreement. Details of the major transaction are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 21
December 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 13
January 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

EVENT AFTER THE END OF FY2023

There was no event after the end of FY2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment in FY2023
(FY2022: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 March 2022: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 333 employees in the Group as at 31 March
2023 (31 March 2022: 311). Staff’'s remuneration packages
are determined in consideration of market conditions, the
Group’s results as well as the experience and performance
of the individuals concerned, and are subject to review from
time to time. The Group also provides other staff benefits,
including medical insurance, and grants of discretionary
incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on their performance
and contributions to the Group. Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately
RMB47.7 million in FY2023 (FY2022: approximately
RMB42.9 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

COMPANY UPDATE ARRIHE
Property Pre-sales YIERE
The cumulative results for the pre-sale and delivery of BHZE-_ZT-_=FXAZ+H ' SEBEZWEEELXZM
properties under each project up to 26 June 2023 are 2 Z2itE&EHMAT ¢
summarised as follows:
Yichun Yichun
Sino Harbour ¢ Sino Harbour ¢
Guanlan - Guanlan -
Residential Units Phase 1 Phase 2
HEEBEHR EHEEBEBN
EEE N —H g
Estimated total GFA released for sale (total units) 285,219 sq.m. 223,643 sq.m.
(2,512 units) (1,920 units)
it AT HHHE 2 R EmIE 285,219F 5K 228,643 15 K
(BEMHE) (2,5121@ B A1) (1,9201E # 1)
Estimated total GFA pre-sold (total units) 284,837 sq.m. 207,712 sq.m.
(2,509 units) (1,785 units)
MFtEREZAREmE(RELEE) 284,837 77 K 207,712 7K
(2,5091E B fi7) (1,7851E E Az
Percentage of pre-sale 99% 93%
BRELX 99% 93%
Pre-sale GFA (units pre-sold) not handed 7,065 sg.m. 205,718 sq.m.
over to buyers as at 31 March 20237 (63 units) (1,768 units)
RZZ-Z=F=A=1+—HAHABRER 7,085 77K 205,713F 77K
ZEEEAREmBE(CETESEMEE)N (631E E fi7) (1,7681R & {1
Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers
as at 31 March 20234 RMB45.5 million RMB1,678.4 million
RZZE-_=ZF=ZA=F+—HHABRER AR AR
Z BEEEEEAN 4558 8T 1,678.4B&TT
ASP per sg.m.” RMB6,440 RMB8,159
BEFKEHEB AR #6,4407T AR#8,1597C
Expected completion date Completed CY2023Q3
TEEATE A B A w59 —E-=FfF
E=FF

i ASP of the projects is computed as follows: Pre-sale value not  *:  ZHFHEBZFHEEBHETENT  HABKERZOEER®
handed over to buyers divided by pre-sale GFA not handed over ERNUHABRERCEBEMEETRE -
to buyers.

MABRERZEEEEBENEFEZNT : ZEZ=0F9E
ESHEN_ZE_=—MFAFEESER-_S_=UFAEHBX
BREEM S _=BMFRNBERAEE)

A Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers is computed as follows: A
Pre-sales at the beginning of FY2023 plus new pre-sales during
FY2023 less those handed over to buyers during FY2023, which
was recognised as sales during FY2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Act on the gradual easing of national regulatory
policies and concentrate on our principal business to
refuel the ability to enhance profitability

In 2021, the central government of China tightened its
control over real estate and implemented strict control
policies, such as “the three red lines”, “each city its own
policies” and “housing is for living in, not for speculation”,
which led to a drop in real estate sales in major cities and
made potential buyers think twice before buying. In the past,
the Group has been prudent in its financial management
and bided its time in the face of uncertainties.

In the first half of 2022, the commercial residential sector
in first- to fourth-tier cities performed evenly. Prices in first-
tier cities rose by 0.4% month-on-month, signaling that the
property market in first-tier cities is more resilient. Prices
in second-tier cities fell by 0.1% month-on-month, which
was on a par with first-tier cities. Prices in third- and fourth-
tier cities fell by 2.2% month-on-month, indicating sluggish
demand.

However, the pre-sale rate of the Group’s real estate project
“Yichun Sino HarboureGuanlan Phase 1” (which reached
up to approximately 99% in terms of pre-sales during
the period) and “Yichun Sino HarboureGuanlan Phase 2”
reached approximately 93% in terms of pre-sales during
the same period, showing that high-quality real estate
properties are still in demand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

Act on the gradual easing of national regulatory
policies and concentrate on our principal business to
refuel the ability to enhance profitability (Continued)

The real estate market began to stabilize in 2023, and
according to the National Bureau of Statistics, sales of
commercial properties increased by 8.4% from January to
May 2023, with residential sales increasing by 11.9%. This
shows that the industry has returned to a healthy trend
of development. The Group believes that the introduction
of policies to stimulate the property market, coupled with
the market’'s expectation of an accelerated recovery of
the property market, will further boost the purchasing
momentum of the public in the future and bring positive
impact to the Group’s development. In November 2022,
the People’s Bank of China and the China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission jointly issued the “Notice
on Providing Adequate Financial Support for the Stable
and Healthy Development of the Real Estate Market” (&3
RFERNeRXHEEMEMSFRERERITIEN
#BANY) (the “16 Financial Measures”) to facilitate the
stable and healthy development of the real estate market,
which set out that property developers may negotiate with
financial institutions to extend the repayment terms of their
existing loans by one year, and each local government
was encouraged to determine its own down-payment
ratios and lower-bound range of mortgage interest rates
for homebuyers in a reasonable manner. The new national
policy has confirmed the gradual easing of regulations on
the Chinese property market. The Group is of the view that
this slew of measures will shore up the Chinese property
market and boost investors’ confidence in Chinese property
stocks. In the future, the Group will actively implement
appropriate sale arrangements and development strategies
that are in line with these measures, coupled with consistent
high-quality projects, thereby grasping opportunities for
development and refueling the ability to enhance the
Group’s profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

Continue to allocate resources to expand our
“Big Health” industry chain and improve our core
competencies

In order to better diversify the risks of business development
and ensure the sustainability of the Group, the Group has
also actively invested resources in the operation of the
“Big Health” business. The reporting period saw significant
development of the Group’s pharmaceutical “Big Health”
segment. Pingxiang Ganghua Dentistry Hospital Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company has officially
commenced operation, thereby laying a solid foundation
for the Group’s goal of building a chain of dental hospitals.
Meanwhile, the Group has laboratories with high-end
facilities and first-class technical teams, which enables the
Group to provide a full range of services for generic drugs
and innovative drugs at the stage of drugs discovery and
pharmacological research.

Enhance overall capability of commercial management
to create new revenue contribution for the Group

Hangzhou Sino Harbour Commercial Management Co.,
Ltd. (*SHCM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
has been providing property operation services to the
Group’s self-owned commercial properties. As of mid-June
2023, the total area of the Group’s self-owned commercial
properties managed by SHCM was approximately 55,000
square meters. Under the environment of “dynamic zero”
prevention and control measures against the COVID-19
pandemic for most of 2022, the overall occupancy rate is
about 80%, which is better than the market average level
where the property is located. SHCM is currently carrying
out upgrade and renovation works for small part of the
Group’s self-owned commercial properties to be leased
and will continue to source tenants after the completion of
the works. The overall occupancy rate is expected to further
increase by then.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

Enhance overall capability of commercial
management to create new revenue contribution for
the Group (Continued)

In addition to the Group’s self-owned commercial
properties, SHCM will focus on the business of serving
external property owners. In December 2022, Hangzhou
Gangyu, a subsidiary of SHCM, entered into a Commercial
Space Co-operation Agreement with Greentown, pursuant
to which Hangzhou Gangyu will conduct a lease period
of ten-year for a commercial space with a planned gross
floor area of approximately 39,000 square meters named
“Zhejiang University Alumni Enterprise Headquarters
Economic Park Phase II” in Yuhang District, Hangzhou City
(the “Property”). SHCM plans to sublease individual units of
the Property to third-party tenants engaged in the following
businesses, including but not limited to restaurants, coffee
shops, banks, retail stores, convenience stores and beauty
centers. SHCM has drawn up a comprehensive investment
attraction and operation plan for the Property, in order
to obtain long-term stable rental returns and establish its
brand recognition in Zhejiang Province in the PRC. The
construction works of the Property are currently in progress
and delivery is expected to be in the second quarter of
2024. The signing of the Commercial Space Co-operation
Agreement is an important step for SHCM to enter into the
business of serving external owners or lessors.

At the same time, SHCM is also currently in negotiation
with certain external property owners on the provision of
property operation or property sublease services to their
commercial properties located in Zhejiang, Hubei, Jiangxi
and Jiangsu provinces in the PRC. Engagement agreements
are expected to be entered into within this year. Moreover,
SHCM has entered into a co-operation agreement with a
computer software technology service provider to jointly
develop an integrated intelligent asset management system
covering commercial property virtualization, tenant-sourcing
management, energy consumption management and other
functions. This system aims to strengthen SHCM’s service
quality and operational management capabilities and thus
differentiate SHCM from its competitors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

Enhance overall capability of commercial
management to create new revenue contribution for
the Group (Continued)

The future strategic positioning of SHCM will focus on
developing “boutique” commercial property projects.
Target projects include community commercial centers,
commercial streets and various kinds of industrial parks with
a scale of less than 100,000 square meters. To achieve this
strategic goal, SHCM has built a team with strong business
acumen in the field of retail and commercial spaces as well as
extensive experience in tenant-sourcing and operation since
its establishment in late 2020. In the long run, in the context
of the gradual normalization of national economic activities
after the COVID-19 pandemic, the demand of consumers is
recovering steadily. In order to enhance the comprehensive
strength and market competitiveness of SHCM, it has
started to develop in-depth strategic partnerships with high-
quality brand merchants with strong core competitiveness
in various consumer fields, among which a co-operation
agreement has been reached with a well-known Mexican
catering group headquartered in Beijing.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to maintain the
operating strategy under a diversified business model
focusing on real estate, complemented by “Big Health”
and commercial management businesses. In particular,
it is expected that real estate sales will be slightly better
than market forecasts. We will adhere to our philosophy of
“seeking steady progress” when developing our real estate
business, which will grow in triple with our prospering “Big
Health” business and commercial management business.

After a round of industry adjustment, the industry is
expected to develop in a healthier and more steady way in
the future. The gradual relaxation of China’s regulation of
the real estate industry at the end of the year of 2022 will
inevitably provide the Group with new opportunities to refuel
its real estate business with profitability and support the
Group’s steady progress. While making solid strides, the
Board will maintain a prudent attitude in the ever-changing
operating environment, implement prudent and flexible
financial policies, adhere to prudent financial management
strategies, and maintain a reasonable and safe debt level
to ensure the healthy and long-term development of the
Group, thereby fulfilling its commitment to bring long-term
investment value returns to Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend for FY2023 (FY2022: a Final Dividend of
HK1.0 cent per Share and a Special Dividend of HK1.0 cent
per Share ).

AGM

It is proposed that the forthcoming AGM will be held at
Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-
39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
at 10:00 a.m. on Friday, 22 September 2023. The notice
of the Company’s forthcoming AGM will be published on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company and despatched to the Shareholders in due
course in the manner as required by the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Board presents this annual report and the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. There was no significant change in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
128 and 129 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of final dividend for FY2023 (FY2022: the Final Dividend of
HK1 cent per Share and Special Dividend of HK1 cent per
Share.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the 2023 AGM will be held at Room
1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma
Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong at 10:00
a.m. on Friday, 22 September 2023. The notice of the 2023
AGM will be published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company and despatched to the
Shareholders in due course in the manner as required by
the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
2023 AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 19
September 2023 to Friday, 22 September 2023, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
2023 AGM to be held on Friday, 22 September 2023, non-
registered Shareholders must lodge all duly completed and
signed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Boardroom Share Registrars
(HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 18 September 2023.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of
the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong),
including a fair review of the Group’s business as well
as future development in the Group’s business can be
found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 9
to 11 and pages 12 to 29 of this annual report, respectively.
The above sections form part of this report. No important
event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Faced by the Group
Business Risk

As a property development company, our capability to
identify and acquire suitable land for property development
is crucial to our business. Our business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected if we
are unable to acquire suitable land for property development
at prices that allow our Group to achieve reasonable returns
upon the sale of our development properties.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillars industry for the PRC’s
development, the property sector is more susceptible to
the impact of macro-economic and industrial policies.
Our Group’s performance may be adversely affected by
changes of the political, social and economic conditions in
the PRC if we are unable to respond to the ever-changing
market condition in a timely manner.

Expansion Risk

While the Group is currently principally engaged in the
business of property development, it has been exploring
other possible business areas and seeking to expand into
new business sectors. However, our experiences may not
be applicable to the new business sectors. Our Group’s
performance may be adversely affected by the failure to
expand into new business sectors.

Financial Risk

An analysis of the Group’s financial risk management
is disclosed in note 33 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Key Performance Indicators

Please refer to the section headed “Financial Summary” on
pages 249 and 250 of this annual report for further details.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
that Have a Significant Impact

During the Year, the Company has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and
suppliers are keys to its sustainable development and has
maintained a good relationship with its stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group believes that sustainable development is the
foundation for the long-term growth of businesses and
society. As a responsible property developer, the Group has
complied with the applicable laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection. The Group has submitted
environmental impact assessment report for each of the
Group’s projects in the PRC before the commencement
of construction and obtained approval from the relevant
environmental protection bureau after completion of each of
the projects.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on pages 249 and 250 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance and cash flows of the Group for
the Year and the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2023 are set out on pages 128 to 248 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for FY2023
of RMB18,593,000 (FY2022: RMB259,119,000) has been
transferred to retained profits. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 132 and 133 of this annual report.

As at 31 March 20283, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to the Shareholders as calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda
amounted to approximately RMB2,673,000 (FY2022:
RMB48,286,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During FY2023, the Company did not redeem any of
its listed securities; nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda in relation to the issue of
new Shares.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a defined
contribution retirement scheme organized by the municipal
government of the PRC for its employees in the PRC.
Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note
3.15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 13 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 24 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers amounted to approximately 4.8% and
approximately 6.5%, respectively of the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

During the Year, payments attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and five largest suppliers amounted to
approximately 34.4% and 89%, respectively of the Group
total payment under construction contracts for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Lam Ping (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager)

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. HE Dingding
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, Ms.
GAO Lan (an Executive Director), Mr. XIE Gang (an INED)
and Mr. HE Dinging (an INED) will retire from office and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
2023 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely
Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmations and
not aware of any unfavourably reported incidents, as at the
date of this report, the Company considers that all of them
are independent.

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 111 to 118
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. SHI Feng, Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan,
the Executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 10 June
2023; while Mr. WONG Lam Ping, an Executive Director,
has a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 1 April 2023. Each of these service
contracts is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than six months’ written notice to the other and each
of the above Executive Directors is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the AGMs in accordance with the
Bye-Laws.

Each of the NED and the INEDs has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial term of one
year, which shall thereafter continue year to year subject to
termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice to the other and each of them is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the 2023 AGM has a service contract
or letter of appointment with the Company, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for, among other
matters, reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
structure of remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices and making recommendations to the
Board in respect thereof for its consideration and approval.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may declare dividends in the future after
taking into account the Group’s operations, earnings,
financial condition, cash requirements and availability and
other factors as it may deem relevant at such time. Any
declaration and payment as well as the amount of dividends
will be subject to the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act of
Bermuda, including the approval of the Shareholders. Future
declarations of dividends may or may not be reflected from
the Company’s historical declarations of dividends and will
be at the absolute discretion of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee and the Board’s approval.
The emoluments are determined by the Board by reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
respectively.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which were required to be (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, recorded in the register referred therein; or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code, were as follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares
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Number of percentage of
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ Shares held/ the Company’s
Chief executive Nature of interest interested Total issued Shares*
RN
- Fits/ ®A ERITRIDZ
FTETHAEHRSE 55 EEHE ERzROHE waEt BRED
Mr. Wong Beneficial owner 214,357,643
TR EnEAA
Interest of a controlled corporation 1,011,885,120
(Note (a))

Xl EEER (115 E)
Interest of spouse (Note (a))
Fe (B (M7t (a)

Mr. XIE Gang Interest of spouse (Note (b))
FR R 52 4 Fe Bt (Mat ()
Notes:

(@) 1,011,885,120 Shares are held by Extra Good, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
the issue share capital of which is owned as to 52% and
48% by Mr. Wong and his wife, Ms. Chan, respectively.
Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of Shares held by Extra Good and Ms. Chan
(whether by herself or through her controlled corporation)
under the SFO.

50,746,390 1,276,989,153 51.83%

5,902,663 5,902,663 0.24%
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE (CONTINUED)

() Long Position in the Shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) 5,902,663 Shares are held by Ms. Wong Man Bun, who
is the wife of Mr. XIE Gang. Therefore, Mr. XIE Gang is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares
held by Ms. Wong Man Bun under the SFO.

* The percentage represents the total number of the Shares
and the underlying Shares, if any, interested divided by
the number of issued Shares of 2,464,000,000 as at 31
March 2023.

(ii) Long Positions in the Shares of Associated
Corporation

EEREFRITHRAR 2 #z (H)

(i) RERHBzZHEEGE
Hist : ()

(b) 5,902,663 8 FAWong Man Bunz + (iRl 54 2~ )
#AE - Bt - RIEBFHRBAEGRG - BALAERR AR
Wong Man BunZ T35 8 2 B — 8RO P H B = o

: B ER B R R0 ARG () MR AR
SR == A=+ AR HTRHEE 2,464,000,000
BB

(i) REBEEIERAPZFE

Number, class and
percentage of issued

Name of shares in associated

Name of Director/ associated Capacity/ corporation held/
Chief executive corporation Nature of interest interested Total

i AR

94 HEZENESRTRE
TETBRAEHRE HEEZEER B/ @Y #E - EARBEAL st
Mr. Wong Extra Good Beneficial owner 52 ordinary shares 100 ordinary shares
(52%) (100%)
TRE Extra Good EnlEAA SRR L AR (52%) 1008 E@AX(100%)

Interest of spouse 48 ordinary shares

(Note) (48%)

e B = (Hat) 48H% & 3% (48%)

Note: The issued share capital of Extra Good is owned as to
52% and 48% by Mr. Wong and his wife, Ms. Chan,
respectively. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Ms. Chan in Extra Good.
Mr. Wong is a sole director of Extra Good.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, recorded
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) notified to the
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following entity or person other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of SFO:

Long Position in the Shares
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Name of Number of Shares the Company’s
Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest held/interested Total issued Shares*
fits/ BB HAAT BT
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Extra Good Beneficial owner 1,011,885,120 1,011,885,120 41.07%
Extra Good EnEAA
Ms. Chan Beneficial owner 50,746,390
R+ EnEAA

Interest of a controlled corporation (Note) 1,011,885,120

Rt AR (A7)

Interest of spouse (Note) 214,357,643 1,276,989,153 51.83%

[ Sl ()

Note: Extra Good is owned as to 48% by Ms. Chan, the wife of Mr.
Wong, and 52% by Mr. Wong. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Chan is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares held by
Extra Good and Mr. Wong (whether by himself or through his
controlled corporation).

The percentage represents the number of the Shares interested
divided by the number of issued Shares of 2,464,000,000 as at
31 March 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, so far as
is known by or otherwise notified to the Directors, no other
entity or person (other than a Director or the chief executive
of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares as required to be recorded in
the register to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions of car park rental agreement,
office rental agreement and decoration service agreement
as disclosed in note 32 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements also fell under the definition of “continuing
connected transactions” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the aggregate annual amount involved in
these continuing connected transactions was less than
HK$3,000,000, such continuing connected transactions
qualify as de minimis transactions under Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, that is fully exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements.

The INEDs have reviewed, pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the
Listing Rules, the continuing connected transaction as
set out above and have confirmed that such continuing
connected transaction had been entered into by the Group (i)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (i) the loan facility is not secured by any
assets of the Group and is in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ARRANGEMENT,
TRANSACTION OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no arrangements,
transactions or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or any entity connected
with a Director has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for Executive Directors’ service
contracts) concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in a business
(apart from the Group’s business) which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 30 March 2018, the Company and Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan
and Extra Good entered into a non-compete undertaking
(the “Non-compete Undertaking”) to avoid any potential
competitions between the business of the Group and Mr.
Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good that each of
them had complied with the terms of the Non-compete
Undertaking during the Year. The INEDs have also reviewed
the said confirmation and are of the view that Mr. Wong,
Ms. Chan and Extra Good had complied with the terms of
the Non-compete Undertaking.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for
the provision of services to the Company or not) to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duties. In addition, the
Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
taken against Directors arising out of corporate activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares were entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Board confirms that the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules (i.e. at
least 25% of the issued Shares in public hands) during the
Year and as at the date of this report.

DONATION

During the Year, the Group had not made any charitable
donation (FY2022: Nil).

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has discussed and reviewed with the
management the annual results, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and this annual report.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Changes on the Directors’ information pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are as follows:

- Mr. Chan Kin Sang is no longer a senior partner of K.S.
Chan & Co, Solicitors & Notaries and is now a partner
of Kwan & Chow, Solicitors;

- Mr. He Dingding has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Mobile Internet
(China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1439) with effect
from 20 March 2023, the issued shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and an executive director of Link Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8237) with effect from 2 May 2023, the
issued shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange; and
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Mr. Wong Ping Kuen has been appointed as (i) an
independent director of Al Transportation Acquisition
Corp (stock symbol: AITR) with effect from 15 March
2023, the issued shares of which are listed on
Nasdaq Stock Exchange; and (i) an independent non-
executive director of WWPKG Holdings Company

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

HRELENE - ZE_=F = TR ABREZTAA
Transportation Acquisition Corp(A% {355 = AITR) 2
BUES  ZLRZEBRTROMMTERESLRR
SHEm: R B-E-=Fh A —HEEZT A4
BT AR AR (BRMH RS : 8069) 2 B FEMTT
EE 220 2BBTROREZFIGEM LT -

Limited (stock code: 8069) with effect from 1 May
2023, the issued shares of which are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR BB ED

BDO Limited will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment BB M 5SSt BB AR A al 5B T IB L AZ 26 -
as the Independent Auditor will be proposed at the 2023 MARGBR - E-_=FRFBFAS LIESERE LB
AGM. There has been no change in the Independent Auditor I 1ZEiBM 2 JR&E S ° BRI AT ER LR - AAQ
since the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the — BIRA E#IF 7 AZHAD -

Stock Exchange.

By Order of the Board REEEMm

WONG Lam Ping FEHITEE - EEHNTE R
Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and — JEMK K
General Manager

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023 BB ZEZ=FA=1+NAH

ERRREEMERAT « 2022/23 55 43



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREBHRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Sino Harbour and the Group recognise that good corporate
governance establishes and maintains a legal and ethical
environment, which is essential for preserving and
enhancing the interests of all stakeholders. The Company
has applied the principles and complied with all of the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code during the
Year and thereafter up to the date of this annual report
(collectively, the “Period”) except as disclosed in this report.

In December 2021, the Stock Exchange published the
conclusions on Review of Corporate Governance Code.
Most of the amendments are applicable for financial
year commencing on or after 1 January 2022. The new
amendments under the amended Corporate Governance
Code have been adopted by the Company as its corporate
governance practices.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
supervising the management of the business affairs
and the overall performance of the Group. It sets the
Group’s values and standards and ensures that the
requisite financial and human resources support are in
place for the Group to achieve its objectives. A healthy
corporate culture across the Group is vital for the
Company to achieve its vision and mission towards
sustainable growth. The Board is responsible for
leading, shaping, developing and fostering a corporate
culture to guide the behavior of its employees and
ensuring that the Company’s vision, values and
business strategies are aligned to it.

By recognising the importance of stakeholders of the
Company (the “Stakeholders”) at the Board level
and throughout the Group, we strive to create values
to the Stakeholders through sustainable growth and
continuous development.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board has set out the following values to provide
guidance on employees’ conduct and behaviours as
well as the business activities, and to ensure they are
embedded throughout the Company’s vision, mission,
policies and business strategies:

(i) Integrity — we comply with all applicable laws
and regulations, uphold the highest ethical
standards;

(i)  Excellence —we aim to deliver excellence;

(i) ~ Collaboration — we bring out the best in each
other and create strong and successful working
relationships;

(v)  Empathy — we care about our Stakeholders —
employees, supply chain and the community;
and

(vy Sustainability — we are committed to a
sustainable future.

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if
necessary, its business strategies and keep track of
the changing market conditions to ensure prompt
and proactive measures will be taken to respond to
the changes and meet the market needs to foster the
sustainability of the Group.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors,
including four Executive Directors, Mr. WONG Lam
Ping (the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager), Mr. SHI Feng (the Deputy
Chairman), Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan, a NED,
Mr. Chan Kin Sang (“Mr. Chan”) and three INEDs,
Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG Ping
Kuen. Mr. WONG Lui is the son of Mr. WONG. Mr.
Chan is a nephew of Mr. WONG and a cousin of
Mr. WONG Lui. Save as disclosed above, there is
no family or other material relationship among the
members of the Board. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 111 to 118 of this
annual report.

(A)
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to accomplish diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises that
increasing diversity at the Board level will support the
achievement of the Company’s business objectives
and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to accomplish Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, such
as gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board appointments will be based on
merits while taking into account diversity including
gender diversity.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, such as gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

All Executive Directors have entered into service
contracts with the Company for a specific term of
three years. All NED and INEDs have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of one year.

As at the date of this report, the Company has
appointed three INEDs, one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management. The Board is committed to assessing
the independence of the INEDs annually and ensuring
that independent views and input are made available
to the Board, and conducting annual review of the
implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism
(s). And Board independence is critical to good
corporate governance and to have the mechanisms
in place will ensure a strong independent element
on the Board of the Company. INEDs enhance the
effectiveness and decision-making of the Board
by providing objective judgment and constructive
challenge to the management of the Company. Each
of the INEDs has confirmed his independence of the
Company and the Company considers each of them
to be independent in accordance with the guidelines
for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Under the Bye-Laws, the Board is empowered to
appoint any person as a Director to fill a causal
vacancy or, subject to authorisation by the
Shareholders in general meeting, as an additional
Director. Where vacancies exist, the Board shall
carry out selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, qualification, integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates.

One-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
from office by rotation and re-election at each
AGM provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

All Directors, including the INEDs, have given sufficient
time and effort to the affairs of the Group. The
INEDs have provided the Board with their diversified
expertise, experience and professional advice. The
Board believes that the ratio between the Executive
Directors and the INEDs is reasonable and adequate
to provide sufficient checks and balances that
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the
Group. The Board also believes that the views and
participation of the INEDs in the Board and committee
meetings provide independent judgment on the issues
relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest
and management process to ensure that the interests
of all Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group’s businesses
and affairs as well as unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing the Directors with
Board papers and related materials. The Directors
may seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient
insurance policies on Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities.

The Directors are committed to complying with code
provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code. All
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they
had received for the Period to the Company.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) (A) E==((E)
The individual training record of each Director received rEERESEZE

48

for the Year is set out below:

A2 EARCEESIINT

Reading materials and/

or attending seminars/
briefings relating to updates
on the business,

operations and corporate
governance matters

FEREXY  &gER

TCEEREEREFENR

Name of Directors EEHS REEEEEE EREY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong (Chairman, TERE(EE - BEHITERBITE) v

Chief Executive Officer and

General Manager)
Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman) BELE(GIEE) v
Mr. WONG Lui AEEE v
Ms. GAO Lan =R v
NED FHITES
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang ReR ik A o A v
INEDs BIYEHTES
Mr. XIE Gang A% Bl 5t A v
Mr. HE Dingding BTTEAE v
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen =R E v

During the Year, the Board held four meetings and
a meeting on 28 June 2023 and, amongst other
matters, approved the Consolidated Financial

AEERN EFGRTHREH IR _T_=F
NAZTNBRTERAEF BB MHEFEME
EEF L BEEIAKENEER

Statements. At these Board meetings, the Directors
discussed and exchanged their views on significant
issues and general operations of the Group, reviewed
the financial performance, reviewed and approved the
interim and final results and approved two circulars in
relation to two major transactions with regard to the
deemed disposal of a subsidiary of the Company and
the signing of the Commercial Space Co-operation
Agreement, respectively.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of each
regular meeting is given to all Directors and an
agenda together with the Board papers are sent to
all Directors not less than three days before the date
of meeting. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include in the agenda any other matter that they
would like to discuss in the meeting. Regarding the
Board committee meetings, reasonable prior notice
or such length of notice as required by the respective
terms of reference of the Board committees is given
to all committee members.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
preparation of the agenda for the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings. She also prepares and
keeps detailed minutes of each Board meeting and
Board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time
after each meeting, the draft minutes are circulated to
all Directors or committee members for comment and
the final and approved version of minutes is sent to
all Directors and committee members for their record.
The Company Secretary has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong is the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer. This deviates from Code Provision C.2.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code, which stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. In view of the present composition
of the Board as well as the in-depth knowledge and
experience of Mr. Wong in relation to the operation
and business of the Company and in the industry, the
Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the
best interest of the Company at the present stage to
vest the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer in the same person as it helps to facilitate the
execution of the Group’s business strategies and
maximize the effectiveness of its operation. In addition,
Mr. SHI Feng (“Mr. Shi”), the Executive Director, is the
Deputy Chairman, and hence, there will be a balance
of power and authority for Mr. Wong as both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

(A)

(B)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Wong, being the Chairman, is responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and
policies, providing leadership to the Board and
ensuring the Board functions effectively. He would
ensure complete, reliable and timely information being
provided to the Directors and encourage the Directors
to actively participate in the Board to act in the best
interest of the Company.

Mr. Shi, being the Deputy Chairman, is responsible
for the daily operations of the Company, execution of
business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as
formulated and adopted by the Board and leading the
management of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors, senior management and certain employees
of the Group (who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities). After having made a specific
enquiry by the Company with each of the Directors,
all of them confirmed that they had complied with the
required dealing standards set out in the Model Code
and the Company’s code of conduct throughout the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2023
and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended and are properly prepared on a going
concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Independent Auditor has also stated their reporting
responsibility in the Independent Auditor’s report of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each committee
were adopted by the Board. They are in line with
the Listing Rules and are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
the Audit Committee was established on 4 July 2011
with written terms of reference in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
(the chairman), Mr. XIE Gang and Mr. HE Dingding.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related to
the financial statements. Under its terms of reference,
the Audit Committee is required to perform, amongst
others, the following duties:

o monitoring whether the Group’s management
has, in the performance of its duties, infringed
any policies set by the Board or any applicable
laws, regulations and code and reporting to the
Board;

o reviewing the Group’s risk management and
internal control procedures and systems;

° making recommendations to the Board for the
improvement of the Group’s risk management
and internal control procedures and systems;

o making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and approving and reviewing
the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal; and

° monitoring the integrity of accounts, financial
statements, interim reports and annual reports.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
(CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during
the Year and a meeting on 28 June 2023 and,
amongst other matters, considered and approved (i)
for presentation to the Board for consideration and
approval the draft audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and (i) audit-related matters. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary. During the Year,
amongst others, the Audit Committee reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group and the interim results and annual results of the
Group as well as financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee
reported that there was no material uncertainty that
cast doubt on the Company’s going concern ability.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The total fees paid/payable in relation to the audit
service provided by BDO Limited (“BDO”), Certified
Public Accountants, Hong Kong, the Independent
Auditor, in respect of the Year amounted to
HK$1,100,000 and total fees paid/payable in relation
to non-audit service provided by BDO for the Year
amounted to HK$118,000.

There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the
Independent Auditor, and they both have agreed
to recommend the re-appointment of BDO as the
Independent Auditor for the ensuing year at the 2023
AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(G) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules,
the Remuneration Committee was established
on 4 July 2011 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The main responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include but are not limited to formulating
a remuneration policy for the approval of the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on
the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. XIE
Gang (the chairman), Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG
Ping Kuen, two Executive Directors, Mr. WONG Lam
Ping and Mr. SHI Feng.

The remuneration of senior management by band for
the Year are set out in note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the Year and a meeting on 28 June 2023 and,
amongst other matters, reviewed and recommended
to the Board for consideration certain remuneration-
related matters of the Directors and senior
management as well as the proposed Directors.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary.
During the Year, amongst others, the Remuneration
Committee (i) evaluated and reviewed the performance
of individual Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company in respect of FY2022;
and (i) recommended to the Board for consideration
on the discretionary bonus for FY2022 of each of the
Directors and senior management of the Company.
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EXER®|E

(H)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 4 July
2011 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment/re-appointment of the Directors, to
review the structure, size and composition of the
Board, and to assess the independence of the INEDs.

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. XIE Gang (the chairman), Mr. HE Dingding
and Mr. WONG Ping Kuen, one NED Mr. CHAN Kin
Sang and two Executive Directors Mr. WONG Lui and
Ms. GAO Lan.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the Year and a meeting on 28 June 2023 and,
amongst other matters, reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of
the retiring Directors at the 2023 AGM as well as the
nomination of new Directors. All minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary. During the Year, amongst
others, the Nomination Committee (i) assessed the
independence of the INEDs; (i) reviewed the structure,
size and diversity of the Board and the board diversity
policy; and (iii) reviewed the performance of the retiring
Directors and recommended to the Board the re-
election of the retiring Directors at the 2022 AGM.

Pursuant to the nomination policy, the Nomination
Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorship(s) to the Board by giving
due consideration to the criteria, including but not
limited to Board diversity, qualifications, experience,
independence, reputation for integrity and potential
contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the
Board before making recommendation to the Board.
The Nomination Committee may consult any source it
deems appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm, and may evaluate the suitability of the
candidate(s) by interviews, background checks etc.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(H) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the
Board for the appointment of a Director including an
INED in accordance with the following procedures and
process:

The Nomination Committee will, giving due
consideration to the current composition and
size of the Board, develop a list of desirable
skills, perspectives and experience at the outset
to focus the search effort;

The Nomination Committee may consult any
source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising,
recommendations from a third party agency firm
and proposals from the Shareholders with due
consideration given to the criteria which include
but are not limited to the following (collectively
the “Criteria”):

(@ Diversity in the aspects, amongst others,
of gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the
Board in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

(c)  Qualifications, including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries in
which the Group’s business is involved;

(d)  Independence;

()  Reputation for integrity;

® Potential contributions that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(@ Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession
of the Board;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)
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The Nomination Committee may adopt any
process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks and third party reference
checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad
range of candidates who are in and outside of
the Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold
a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions
to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the
relevant information of the selected candidate to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration
of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make
the recommendation to the Board in relation to
the proposed appointment, and where a NED
is considered, the Remuneration Committee will
make the recommendation to the Board on the
proposed remuneration package;

The Board may arrange for the selected
candidate to be interviewed by the members
of the Board, who are not members of the
Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment
as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed
by the filing of the consent to act as Director of
the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be) with the relevant regulatory authorities,
if required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company pursuant to
the Corporate Governance Code and, has, amongst
others, reviewed this corporate governance report
in discharge of its corporate governance functions,
ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

According to the Stock Exchange’s proposal on risk
management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods of
listed companies commencing on or after 1 January
2016, the Board should oversee the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. The Board has on 17 June 2016
delegated such responsibilities to the Audit Committee
and the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were revised and adopted on 17 June 2016 to include
the responsibilities on reviewing the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed and
performed the corporate governance functions under
the Corporate Governance Code.
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(J) ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORSAND (J)) ESRZEEHENSRHETHE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board TREJNEEFSHERAFERT L ESTESH
meetings, Board committee meetings and the general BEEZECERENARRBREANS A

meeting of the Company held during the Year is set
out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meeting(s) held
LEEBNE, ERETREY

Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpg Ezg ERZEE FMEEE REZEE RREFKE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Wong ERAE 4/4 N/A 11 N/A 11
MER TER
Mr. SHI Feng RlEsE 4/4 N/A 11 N/A 11
NER A
Mr. WONG Lui sy itad 4/4 N/A N/A 11 11
NER NEA
Ms. GAO Lan mEZT 4/4 N/A N/A 11 11
MNER TERA
NED FUTES
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang Bkt 4/4 N/A N/A 11 11
NER NEA
INEDs BUFHTES
Mr. XIE Gang SR & 4/4 2/2 11 11 171
Mr. HE Dingding ETT44%E 4/4 2/2 11 11 11
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen BEMELE 4/4 2/2 11 1 11
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of risk management
and internal control framework. The controls are
to provide reasonable assurance to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.
The systems of risk management and internal control
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives. It can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss and the review
of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems should be a concerted and continuing
process.

The Group’s control environment provides the
foundation upon which all other components of
risk management and internal control systems are
built. It provides discipline and structure, setting the
tone of the organisation and influencing the control
consciousness of its staff. A weak control environment
foundation hampers the effectiveness of even the best
designed internal control procedure.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
risk management and internal control code provisions
set out in code provision D.2.4 of the Corporate
Governance Code by having adopted a three-tier risk
management approach to identify, assess, mitigate
and handle risks. The Group has developed and
adopted a strategic planning and risk management
policy, which is designed to enhance risk management
of the Group by identifying, analyzing and evaluating
the possible material risks which shall have adverse
impact on the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
including strategic risks, financial risks, market risks,
operational risks, legal and regulatory risks and
environmental, social and governance risks. Divisions
and department heads are responsible for the first
line of defence. They oversee the daily operations of
their own business units and are accountable for the
conduct and performance of their own operations.
Any incidents regarding non-compliance of their
operations with regulations and laws, failure to identify
or properly manage the risks associated with their
business units, which might lead to financial or non-
financial losses to the Group, shall be reported to the
legal and compliance department and the internal
audit department of the Group (the “Internal Audit
Function”). As the second line of defence, the Internal
Audit Function defines rule sets and models, provides
professional advices, develops work plans of internal
audit, as well as monitor and review the processes,
practices and procedures of internal controls for
all business units on a regular basis. It annually
prepares internal audit report containing findings and
recommendations for improvements in respect of the
risk management and internal controls and submits
such report to the Audit Committee for review. It also
ensures that risks are within the acceptable range and
that the first line of defence is effective. As the final line
of defence, the Audit Committee, with the professional
advices and opinions from the Internal Audit Function,
ensures that the first and second lines of defence are
effective through constant inspection and monitoring.

The Company is aware of its obligations under Part
XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules, to handle
and disseminate of price-sensitive inside information
to the public, after the information has come to
the Company’s knowledge, as soon as reasonably

# _ practicable.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

In ensuring compliance with the obligation to disclose
inside information in relation to any material changes
in the Group’s financial condition, performance of
the Group’s business or the expectation as to the
Group’s performance, the Board has established
a policy for appropriate and effective reporting
procedures which ensure a timely and structured flow
of relevant financial and operational data (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) with close regard
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy includes,
amongst other, the following:

° establish controls for monitoring business and
corporate developments and events so that any
potential inside information is promptly identified
and escalated;

° establish periodic financial reporting procedures
so that key financial and operating data is
identified and escalated in a structured and
timely manner;

° maintain an audit trail of meetings and
discussions concerning the assessment of
inside information;

o restrict access to inside information to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis
and ensure employees who are in possession of
inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements
are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations with the third parties;

o disseminate inside information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange before the information is released via
other channels such as the Company’s website;
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62

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

° develop procedures for responding to market
rumours, leaks and inadvertent disclosures;

° provide regular training to relevant employees
to help them understand the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy as well as their relevant
disclosure duties and obligations under such
policy;

° document the Inside Information Disclosure
Policy in writing and keep the documentation up
to date; and

° publish the Inside Information Disclosure Policy
so that the media and other stakeholders
understand the Group’s statutory disclosure
obligations.

Any potential inside information comes to the
knowledge of any Directors or any employees of
the Group should be reported to the Company. The
materiality of the relevant information will be assessed
and, if considered appropriate, such information will
be escalated for the attention of the Board. Before the
inside information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company shall take reasonable measures to preserve
the confidentiality of the information. In the opinion of
the Board, where the information has not been kept
confidential or there has been a leak, the Company
must issue a public announcement by way of the
electronic publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange as soon as reasonably practicable. If the
Board needs time to clarify details of, and the impact
arising from, an event or a set of circumstances
before it is in a position to issue a full announcement
to properly inform the public, the Board shall
consider issuing a “holding announcement”. There
are circumstances where confidentiality has not
been maintained and the Board is not able to make
a full announcement or a holding announcement,
the Board shall consider applying for a trading halt
in its securities until disclosure can be made. All
announcements in relation to inside information
disclosure should be properly approved by the Board
and issued to the public without delay.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Independent Auditor has, during the course of
annual audit, considered the internal control relevant
to the Group’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements within the scope of their audit.
During the Year, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, had annually reviewed the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, and also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions, and their training programmes
and budget. The Board believes that the existing
risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy.
The policy aims to provide a supportive process that
encourages and enables employees to raise concerns
about misconduct and will give them confidence
that their concerns will be properly investigated and
resolved in a timely manner with the Audit Committee.

Every reported case will be handled with
confidentiality, except where the Group is required by
law or regulation to disclose, and followed through
in accordance with the Group’s Unethical Conduct
Notification Policy & Procedures. The Group will
not tolerate any kind of retaliation for reports or
complaints regarding misconduct made in good faith.
A reporting person is assured that making the report
will not personally disadvantage him/her by dismissal,
demotion, suspension, harassment, discrimination or
bias.

All persons making reports should be reasonably sure
of the truth of their concerns before making the report.
Employees or other relevant parties are strongly
encouraged to provide their names and contact
details in their report such that the reported case
can be handled properly shall clarifications or further
information be required. The Group is committed to
protecting the reporting person’s identity and treating
all disclosures with strict confidentiality and legal
protection. In some cases, however, reports may
be submitted anonymously if the reporting person is
uncomfortable disclosing his/her identity. Such cases
will be considered as far as practicable.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

Whistleblowing Policy (Continued)

Abuse of the confidential reporting process will not be
tolerated. All reports must be made in good faith. The
Group reserves the right to take appropriate actions
against the person who makes the report to recover
any loss or damage as a result of the false report for
any report made maliciously or in bad faith. Employees
who abuse the reporting process will face disciplinary
action.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The Company also has established policy and system
that promote and support anti-corruption laws and
regulations. The Company is committed to conducting
business in an ethical and honest manner and is
committed to implementing and enforcing systems
that ensure all forms of bribery, corruption, and fraud
are prevented. The Company has zero tolerance for
corrupt activities.

Corruption can be described as: giving or receiving
anything from any person (usually money, a gift,
loan, reward, favour, commission or entertainment),
as an improper inducement or reward for obtaining
business, employment or any other benefit. Corruption
can therefore include, but are not limited to:

o gifts and excessive or inappropriate
entertainment, hospitality, travel and
accommodation expenses;

° payments, whether by employees or business
partners such as recruiters, labour service
providers or consultants; and

o other ‘“favours’ provided to supervisors, such
as making unwanted advances, payments or
promises.

The Company will not make donations, whether in
cash, kind, or by any other means, to support any
political parties or candidates. We recognise this
may be perceived as an attempt to gain an improper
business advantage.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the remuneration of the members
of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the Year by
band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HK$)
FNEEEET)

(L)

EREBHRE

ESROREEREFH

BB EATHTAIEXEE 51 - HERRE
EHEERBRERE L BEEE - HrAFE
BRERE(TREES)REHH(REE) 83
m -

Number of individuals

A

Nil to 1,000,000
Z£%1,000,000
1,000,001 to 2,000,000
1,000,001 %2,000,000

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Ms. YUE Sau Lan (“Ms.
Yue”) as the Company Secretary with effect from 26
January 2021.

Ms. Yue was nominated by Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as
the Company Secretary and Boardroom has been
providing certain corporate secretarial services to the
Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered
into between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Ms. Yue
has been contacting in respect of company secretarial
matters is Mr. LAU Ka Ho, Billy, the Group’s financial
controller.

Ms. Yue attended over 15 hours’ relevant continuous
professional development training during the Year
pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

All members of the Board have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary
has been/will be subject to the Board’s approval at its
meeting.

(M)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRE

(N)

()

66

B E

SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its Shareholders. The Company
has adopted a policy of disclosing clear, adequate
and relevant information to the Shareholders in a
timely manner through various channels. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all
Shareholders by post as requested. The Company
has complied with the provisions of the Listing Rules
by posting announcements, notices, interim reports,
annual reports and the Shareholders’ circulars on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company (http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk).

Notice of the AGM is delivered to all Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to the date of
the meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution, voting procedures (including procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. As at the beginning of the meeting, the
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll
will be explained by the chairman of the meeting.
Vote results are released by way of publication of an
announcement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can Convene a Special
General Meeting

According to bye-law 58 of the Bye-Laws,
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall have the right
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

The requisition shall be in writing addressed to the
Board or the Company Secretary and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial
Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with section 74(3) of the Companies Act of Bermuda.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(O) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, the contact
details of which are set out as follows:

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

Telephone:
Facsimile:

(852) 2153 1688
(852) 3020 5058

Shareholders, potential investors and the media
may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is
publicly available and make enquiries to the Company
through the following means:

By telephone:
By post:

(852) 2363 1300

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinoharbour.com.hk
Procedures for Making Proposals at the
Meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting,
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified by the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.
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N\ =N
TEERRE
(P) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS (P) A@ERIH
There were no significant changes in the Company’s RAGEBERENERNAFERNLBEERNES) o

constitutional documents during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the RIE LA RIFE13.900F - ANRTFE 2 BIREE AT
Company has posted its constitutional documents on uh R AN N E AR T B AR E AR SO o

the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Group”)
is pleased to publish the Environmental, Social, and
Governance (the “ESG”) report, highlighting its ESG
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG
Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Group is principally engaged in property development in
the second and third tier cities in China, whereas the head
office of the Group is located in Hong Kong. The property
project includes residential properties, detached housing,
apartments, retails as well as commercial properties.
In addition, the Group also conducts pharmaceutical
inspection business through its subsidiary Zhejiang IPS.

Since the previous reporting period, the Group has
continued actively expanding other medical related business
operations. The scope of this report has hence included the
dental service business in Pingxiang, Jiangxi, which was not
included in the scope last year.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in
two subject areas, namely Environmental and Social, of the
business operations in China and Hong Kong from 1 April
2022 to 31 March 2023, unless otherwise stated.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange (the “Guide”). The contents covered herein are
in compliance with the mandatory disclosure requirement
and the provision of “Comply or Explain” as well as four
reporting principles of materiality, quantitativeness, balance
and consistency required in the Guide.

Materiality — Materiality assessments have been carried out
to identify material environmental and social issues that
have major impacts on investors and other stakeholders,
the significant stakeholders, procedures, and results of
the engagement of which are presented in the section
“Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality” in the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HEBRER®WE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES (CONTINUED)

Quantitativeness — Key performance indicators (“‘KPIs”)
have been established, and are measurable and applicable
to make valid comparisons under appropriate conditions;
information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions,
and/or calculation tools used, and sources of conversion
factors used, have been disclosed when applicable.

Balance — The Report presents the Group’s performance
during the Reporting Period in an impartial manner, avoiding
choices, omissions or presentation formats that may unduly
influence readers’ decisions or judgements.

Consistency — Consistent statistical methodologies and
presentation of KPIs have been used to allow meaningful
comparisons of related data over time.

SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION

Mission

The sustainable development of the Group consists not
only of establishing environmental, health, and safety
stewardship, but also setting up a people-oriented and
integrated system. The Group strives to provide different
kinds of properties with cozy amenity and lifestyles of health
and sustainability to the society.

Vision on Environment, Social, and Governance

Sound corporate governance attracts investment, protects
rights of shareholders and stakeholders, and enhances
shareholder value. The Group is committed to accounting
for its shareholders with a highly transparent and open
attitude.

The Group’s business sustainability strategy is based
on integrity, ethics, green innovation, originality, quality
and safety, and shareholders’ value. With such strategy,
green property for sustainable future will be achieved. The
Group is fully committed to resource-efficiency innovations,
environmental and social friendly operations. Such
engagement enables the Group to operate its business
with greater transparency and effective risk management
framework. The Board oversees the process to engage
stakeholders, identifies material topics, and oversee the risk
management framework.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION
(CONTINUED)

Vision on Environment, Social, and Governance
(Continued)

The Group also holds a high standard in business ethics
and invest in sustainable businesses. It is committed to
improving quality of the communities and the environment,
whilst providing long-term returns to its shareholders

Sustainability Governance

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability strategy and reporting. The sustainability
plan of the Group is developed based on results of ESG
Reports and regular reports from senior management of
its subsidiaries, which is reviewed on an annual basis and
adjusted as needed to align with the long-term business
strategy of the Group.

Furthermore, the Board is in charge of assessing and
managing ESG-related issues, which shall ensure the
sustainable and responsible growth and operation of the
Group.

BOARD STATEMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes
the significance of quality management of the environment
and activities in promoting sustainable economic
development. The Group is also well aware that its
corporate responsibilities to society and the environment run
parallel to operational performance. As such, we endeavour
to continuously improve the environmental performance
of our operations in order to minimize any impact on the
environment.

Looking ahead, we hope to maintain steady and efficient
sustainable business development and promote sustainable
development together with our stakeholders, thereby
fulfilling our corporate and social responsibility to create a
promising future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HEBRER®WE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

The Group communicates with key stakeholders through
daily interactions to understand their concerns and
expectations on ESG issues. Through regular engagement
sessions, the Group obtains valuable feedback and reviews
areas of attention which will help the business to meet its
potential growth and be prepared for future ESG challenges.

FOESHEREEM
AEEBBEAREHEIBRNEBBIN - ATHERHA
IHIRE  HEREARENEANE - BRATHLES
& AEBESEENRERR  YHEIFHEETRS
RE - E-EFEHHIAREEREIRTIERER  Bif
WRERAGRIE - @ REIAE - BERERHIIWT

Communication channels are as follows:

Stakeholders
&

Possible Issue of Concern
T BRI A RE

Communication Channels

BERE

Shareholders and investors

BRRZEE

Customers and business partners

BEPREBEH

Employees

(==

° Corporate governance system

e  EEARABR

° Business strategies and
performance

o EBRERERKIR

° Corporate transparency and
reputation

e DEFERAEHEBRE

o Property and service quality
s YXHERKEE

o Delivery time

o AT

. Pricing
e EB

° Rights and benefits
o FENIEREA

° Remuneration and compensation

o HHNEWE

. Career development and training

o BRFREIE

o Working hours

o TIFRFM

° Occupational health and safety
e REREEZE

o Working environment

o I{rmH

° Annual General Meeting (AGM) and
other shareholder meeting

s BREBFAGREMBREAE

° Annual Reports and Interim Reports

o FERERPHRE

° Announcements and Circulars

o AEREX

° Company website and email

o A4k K B

° Customer Satisfaction Survey
s XEPWEERTL
° Progress Meetings

o EEEE
° Communication with staff and
management

e HETREEENBER

° Trainings, Seminars, and Briefing
Sessions

o Il AENERENE

° Performance Reviews

o EERMA

. Intranet

e NEEH

° Employee communication meetings

s [EEEEE

° Employee handbook

e [REETFMW
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R - HRERRE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY ##@&2HEREZM (@)

(CONTINUED)

Stakeholders
HnE

Possible Issue of Concern

A RERE MV R RE

Communication Channels

BERE

Suppliers and subcontractors

HERRDSEAE

Media, NGOs, and the public
RS - EBUNAEBE AR

° Supplier management
e HERER
° Customer service

s  EFIR#

o Community environment

o HERR

° Employment and community
development

o EBERMEERE

° Social welfare

o HEEF

° Supplier Management Meetings and

Events
o (HEmEBTECHRETH
° Supplier Review
e HEmMEE
. Site visits
o  EMIFD

° ESG Report
e  ESGH%E
° Community activities

s HERE

o Employee voluntary activities

e REERTED

° Community welfare subsidies

] R AL
° Charitable donations
. EEBRY

EREREBAERAF o 2022/23 Fi
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RE  HEBRER®WE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
(CONTINUED)

The Group values input and feedback of its stakeholders as
they have substantial contribution to the Group’s business.
Internal and external stakeholders have been involved in
regular engagement activities to share views regarding the
Group’s operations and performances. The Group has
specifically engaged the members of the Board of Directors,
senior management, shareholders, frontline staff, and
suppliers to gain further insights on ESG material aspects
and challenges during the Reporting Period. Based on the
feedback collected from different groups of stakeholders, a
materiality matrix was developed.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HRERRE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY ##@E&2EREEZM ()
(CONTINUED)

A. Environmental C. Operational
RIE i
Energy Al Supplier Management C1
gEIR HrER R
Water A2 Intellectual Property c2
X TR EERE
Air Emission A3 Data Protection C3
FE RHER BRHRIE
Waste and Effluent Ad Customer Service C4
VETIN B PR
Other Raw Materials Consumption A5 Product/Service Quality C5
EH At R M KR Ewn/ REEE
Environmental Protection Measures A6 Anti-corruption C6
RIRIEHE RES
Climate Change A7 Community Investment C7
RizEt HEKRE
B. Employees
E&
Employment B1
&R
Occupational Health and Safety B2
BEREREZ S
Development and Training B3
B IET
Labour Standards B4
& TR

According to the matrix, the most material topics to the RIEHMEM  BAEEFHERAEBEEEZELREEN

Group’s stakeholders and its operations are, EREA

e Customer Service e EFPR®

e Occupational Health and Safety e BEREREHLE
e Data Protection o ERURFE

e Product/Service Quality o ER/REEs
e Labour Standards o ZTXAA|

The Group strictly complies with the statutory requirements  ANEE S # 5N EZHBEEKETEE - WEHF L

in respect of the identified material aspects. Corresponding B REZB& T N, S5 EREMNEREHEBR - A&

management practices and policies are being formulated BB GRS () FEBW FEEB(CNIBBER © B REEN §
and/or implemented following the identification of these ZHfEIRE - HENEARHTEMNEIE KRR -
issues. The Group will continue to improve its ESG

management and performance by actively communicating

with its stakeholders and constantly improving its internal

policies.

EERREEMERAT 0 2022/23 5% 75



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HEBRER®WE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with us via email at enquiry@sinoharbour.com.hk.

A. Environmental

Types of emissions the Group contributed
towards in the reporting period were mainly due to
petrol, electricity, water and paper consumption.
Business operations of the Group do not involve
the consumption of packaging materials, while
production-related air, water, and land pollutions are
regulated under national laws and regulations. These
include, but not limited to the followings:

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

° Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution

° PRC Emission Limits of Air Pollutants (DB44/27—
2001)

o Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC

o PRC Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants
(DB44/26-2001)

o Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes

° Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Pollution by Environmental Noise

EHESRRE
AEEBRILFEDEHRMANRE HehERE
MERRELIREER - HF HTEBEEHRE

B ETHEZI»=E BTHER  EHHUA
enquiry@sinoharbour.com.hk e

A. BE

REBEME  AEREEENHRDEERERER T
B KRER AKRENEHEETSLFER
BEME MELAEEBENZER - KEEHI52A
REFEARERAME - BRETRR

s HERRERE

o HBERRIBSRFIAE

o HEIKE)SAYBERIRE(DB44/27-2001)

o HBKIFREAE

o HREIK)F LY R E(DB44/26-2001)

o  HEEREYISRRENAE

o HEREISRMIAA
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

Environmental (Continued)

Since the Group’s operations consist mainly of
property development with construction work
outsourced, it does not have a material consumption
of natural resources and the production of hazardous
wastes. However, sales office and administration
office may inevitably produce non-hazardous
waste and consume fuels. Therefore, the Group
places the highest priority on reduction of the non-
hazardous wastes and limitation of gas consumption
by vehicles. Currently, the Group is not aware of
actual environmental risks on the Group’s business,
strategies and financial performance. Since the
scope for this Reporting Period has further expanded
to other medical-related operations in the form of
dental service business, an increase of electricity
consumption and GHG emission is inevitable
compared to the last reporting period.

The Group understands that electricity and water
consumed, as well as medical wastes generated in its
business operations, contribute to the consumption
of natural resources and poses a minor risk to public
health and the environment. Therefore, electricity
and water saving initiatives were highly promoted
and implemented in its workplace, medical wastes
were treated cautiously according to the Integrated
wastewater discharge standard (GB8978) of the PRC
and the Group’s guidelines during the Reporting
Period. Details of electricity and water saving initiatives
and handling of medical wastes are discussed below
in the corresponding sections.

Total floor area coverage for the Group was
16,143.75m>.

RiR - HEBRERBHRE

FOERRRERGER
A. BRE@E

AEENEBEIERMERE  BETREEI2INE
TEM A AFRRAERORNERBIARE
EEEVNEL  BHEREMTBRAZTETE SR
WEELBEEZEEY RERME - At - AEEHK
MAOBERZY LR EHO TREREIRESD
ZE - BH AEBAYARBIEEERS - KK
MBRENEAERRERR - ARARE RN
BHELE - PEREHEGERMEREEEVOEBERR
BER)  FitE EERESHMEAL - AEE
REHMERERBRAPTIEM

NS ==
ym &2

AEBEHINFEANEEKARELLERELN
EEEEYSERRRERERYEARBERERIR
B REER - At - AEBRREHMERET
VBB A N HEITEN B A KIEIE » RIEF BRI KEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

1. Emissions

()

Air Emissions

The Group consumed liquefied petroleum
gas (“‘LPG”) and natural gas as stationary
fuel for canteen operation and petrol as
mobile fuel for automobile operation during
the Reporting Period which accounts for
its major sources of air emissions, which
include nitrogen oxides (“NOXx”), sulphur
oxides (“SOx”) and particulate matter
(“PM").

FOERRRERGER
B (8

HEY

()

ERBEI

WEHA - AEEERRECARRTHEL
AHRD)ERARERRELENETE
KAEL - WERTVHERTEEENED
K BEHRAREERANTEHER
R BRAfY(ERELY)  wElk
W (| ) MR ([ R ]) -

2022/23 2021/22
Type of Air Emission amount (kg) amount (kg)
—E-—__- /== - /=&
EEREEMER BE(TR) HE(TR)
NOx 42.35 52.71
RELY
SOx 0.12 0.43
ety
PM 3.87 4.75
EER k)

The emissions intensity is 2.33 g NOx, 0.01
g SOx, and 0.21 g PM per m? of total area,
or 122.40 g NOx, 0.36 g SOx, and 11.17 g
PM per Group employee. This respectively
represents a 28.64% decrease for NOX, a
74.29% decrease for SOx, and a 27.69%
decrease for PM in area intensity, as well
as a 24.30% decrease for NOx, a 72.73%
decrease for SOx, and a 23.70% decrease
for PM in employee intensity compared
with Last Reporting Period.

EREEASFHKEEBEIEN2.337%
RENY 001 mmElWR0.217%HE
WY HEREBEE THM122.40R A
f1t¥ - 0.36 = AL X117 Z R
Yo B F—SRAEBRMEL  BIEAAS
£ REYRBERAYEREE D
P& T728.64% ~ 74.29% K 27.69% * LA
FE E—REBEEL ETINREAL
v maEt RBEBNEREESRIT
% 724.30% * 72.73%523.70% °
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HRERRE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
A. Environmental (Continued) A. REGE
1.  Emissions (Continued) 1.  HHY(E)
(i) Greenhouse Gas Emissions () REREBEHMK
2022/23 2021/22
Scope and Operation of GHG Emissions GHG Emissions
Emissions Emission Sources (tCO.€) (tCO.€)
—E-=- /== —E-— /==

BEREHER BER BN

FREEREE

BERORIR

(W-_|{REE

(B —F = E)

Scope 1 Direct Emission

gE1 EBEEHER

Scope 2 Energy Indirect
Emission

gE2 REFEBEER

Scope 3 Other Indirect
emission

EE3 HMBEHER

Total
st

Area Intensity (kgCO.e/m?

total area)
EFHERBE(TR=-81t
(BB P AKAER)
Employee Intensity

(tCO.e/Group employee)

ST HBEE (= F bk
EE/REET)

Combustion of LPG and natural
gas in stationary sources N !

EERAR{E A BRERAR
PR Ig

Combustion of petrol in mobile
sources Mo !

B IR ey TR R Ig

Purchased electricity Nere 23

HNBE T Sy fie 3

Electricity used for processing
fresh water and sewage o
ARBRIERK KGR E S
Paper disposed at landfills Nete 7

HE SB[ B B oY A R

EREREBAERAF o 2022/23 Fi

31.16

9.68

21.48

899.25

899.25

19.85

11.42

8.43

950.26

52.28

2,75

85.55

7.55

78.00

840.40

840.40

15.96

9.44

6.52

941.91

58.35

2.89




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - H8REBRS

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
A. Environmental (Continued) A. REGE
1.  Emissions (Continued) 1. HHY(E)
(i) Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued) (i)  BEREBHNGE)

Note 1: Emission factors were made reference to
Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing
Rules and their referred documentation
as set out by Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, unless stated otherwise.
Scope 3 emissions were only calculated
based on the available emission factors
from the referred documentation.

Note 2: According to CLP 2020 Sustainability
Report and CLP 2022 Sustainability
Report: Emission factor of 0.37 was used
for purchased electricity from CLP in Hong
Kong in 2021/22, while emission factor of
0.39 was used for purchased electricity
from CLP in Hong Kong in 2022/23.

Note 3: According to Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC (2019) and
(2022): Emission factor of 0.6101 was
used for purchased electricity in Mainland
China in 2021/22, while emission factor of
0.5810 was used for purchased electricity
in Mainland China in 2022/23.

There was 950.26 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases
(“CO.e”) emitted from the Group’s
operation in the Reporting Period, mainly
comprising of carbon dioxide, methane,
and nitrous oxide. The annual emission
intensity was 0.05 tCO.e/m? and 2.75
tCOze/employee, which represents a
10.40% decrease and 4.55% decrease
from the previous reporting period
respectively.

Krat1 - BEAERBIN FHEFLREERS

K AEE AR ARG E TR ETRA

Mgk — + R ERM A - BESHEMK
BERBRAXFHOFREFHE -

HiiF2 : BBE(FE_SE_ZFAUBEBERS)
R(PE_Z-_—_FaHBERRERE) -
ZE - FREEBEREBAEN
FFAMBEREFR037  —F== /"=
ZERBAPEBATHINERAT A
0.39 ¢

Hiat3 - BEERERRFLINER(CE—NEF)

R(ZFZZfF): ZF=— /::EEPI

A INEE N K BEME T £0.6101 ¢

o/ =FhEAMMNEE I
A F £0.5810 ©

RFEHE  AEEMHEELPEMN
950.26Mf —E{t I EEMRERE( =8
tIREE])  T2A-Sthix - Flak—
1R - FEHMEE R0.05 4t
WEE TR 75 —E(titg 8
A REERERED AR A10.40% K
BA4.55% o
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

1.  Emissions (Continued)

(i)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not have any business air travel
due to Covid-19 pandemic. No GHG
emission was contributed by air travel.
However, the Group will strive to reduce
business air travel in the future by using
teleconference meetings and other
electronic communication.

The Group strives to continually improve
its sustainability practices and reduce
its overall emissions and impacts on the
environment. Regarding air emissions,
due to the Group’s business nature,
it considers the relevant air emissions
generated as insignificant. However, it still
pays attention to the limited air emissions
that are generated by their electricity
consumption and vehicles. The Group
strives to mitigate the energy consumption
as much as possible.

Consequently, the Group is not aware
of any significant issues on energy
consumption and disposal.

Additionally, in the aspect of GHG
emissions, the Group is aware that the
principal GHG are generated from the
petrol consumption of vehicles (Scope
1) and purchased electricity (Scope 2).
Hence, the Group has adopted the various
measures to mitigate the direct GHG
emissions from petrol consumption in its
daily operation.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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FOEERREGE
A ERRE
1. HRYE)

(i)

SR RE B ()

RBEHRE > IFTREZE  AKE
YEEMMEZR  ERHTEREEE
MR EREHN - BERK  NEEH
RAE@RSHELEMEFEAT D
FlzEZE ik o

AEERINFENERAKERRE
B ORLEBERANERERFEENNTY
B -EBERFRIE  EERIEHOME
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FOHREERERIE

At - AEE N FEEMEREERER
NEREMERMEE o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
A. Environmental (Continued) A. REGE
1.  Emissions (Continued) 1. HHY(E)

(i)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

The Group has developed preventive
measures for contractors to better
manage the emission on sites.
Contractors are also required to set up
on-site preventive measures for emissions
control. For property management, the
Group has installed a mechanical exhaust
system in underground parking lots. The
system measures the concentrations
of the gaseous emission to ensure the
concentrations are maintained within the
safety range stipulated in the standard that
required by the Group.

During the Last Reporting Period, the
Group had set the target to achieve a 5%
reduction in overall emissions intensity
in 10 years from 2021/2, or by 2031/32.
See below for the detail breakdown of the

(i)

SR RE B ()
AERECRABABERNER  UKE
I EIE TH A PRI - AR B ITASE
T TR HE e - AERIHEN - EEE
BME  AEBERHMTEESLZER
MPER RS - Z XA ERBHERAR
B NHERREHEFEASEEZSET
NEEMREN L ZEHEA -

REREBEDR  ASEERTEERE
T /BT F
M10F N BN ERES% - ANE
EREREBREE R T EAMNERFBD
—F o

Group’s progress towards its emission
reduction target.

Reduction
2021/22 Target by 2022/23
Type of Emission Figures 2031/32 Figures % Change
—E=—
—E =/ == —Eg-
HHER —FHE BIKVRBE R 8 —=FYE % &1t
Total Non-GHG Air
Emissions Intensity 3.59 g/m? 2.55 g/m?
(NOx, SOx, and PM) total area -5% total area -28.91%
R ERBHENATE AR
iy - mEWMAR  3.595%, F K 2.55% /F 3K
ANBFRLF) HEE HBEE
Total GHG Emissions 58.35 kg 52.28 kg
Intensity (Scope 1, CO.e/m? CO,e/m?
Scope 2, and Scope 3) total area -5% total area -10.40%
‘ 58.35F 7% 52.28F 7%
b BEREBHENERE(HE —S(RES —EtEE
1 #FE2REHES3) T RBEE R ORBEE
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

Environmental (Continued)

1.

Emissions (Continued)

(ii)

Waste
Hazardous Waste

The business operation of the Group
generated 10,064.94 kg of hazardous
waste during the Reporting Period,
which represents a 22,118.41% increase
from the previous reporting period. The
hazardous waste production intensity was
calculated at 0.55 kg/m? and 29.09 kg/
employee, which represents a 19,633.52%
increase and 20,834.11% increase from
the previous reporting period respectively.
This significant increase is due to the more
detailed recordkeeping carried out by the
Group during the Reporting Period.

Hazardous waste generated by the
Group consists mainly of used batteries,
computer hardware, and solid and
liquid clinical waste. Hazardous waste is
collected by registered recyclers for further
handling and processing.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group’s waste was mainly generated
from its construction sites and office,
including non-hazardous waste types
such as construction waste, food waste
in the canteen and paper in the office.
All the construction work of the Group
are outsourced to contractors but the
Group by no means to turn a blind eye
on their operation. The Group has set
up monitoring system to identify areas
of improvements. A transparent and
verifiable waste recording system is set up
on each property to enable performance
monitoring.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
A. Environmental (Continued) A. REGE
1.  Emissions (Continued) 1. HHY(E)
(i) Waste (Continued) (i) EEY(4E)
Non-hazardous Waste (Continued) mEREY(E)

To promote waste separation at source,
waste streams are made readily available.
Procedure for reduction of construction
waste and office waste by implementing
arrangement of recycling of office waste
management.

A total of 6,815.50 kg of non-hazardous
waste, mainly food waste from the
canteen of the Group’s operation, was
generated during the Reporting Period,
which represents a 40.15% decrease from
the previous reporting period. The non-
hazardous waste production intensity was
calculated at 0.37 kg/m? and 19.70 kg/
employee, which represents a 46.84%
decrease and 43.61% decrease from the
previous reporting period respectively.

A total 1,756.34 kg of paper has been
used for daily office operations such as
documents printing and deliverables
packaging.

With the above measures, the Group aims
to achieve a 5% reduction in hazardous
waste generation and non-hazardous
waste generation intensity in 10 years, or
by 2032/33.

BIRERELNEEYSE  BMES
TEZEMOD R AEEH ERIER
BEEYERAEEEYNRERF  BIEE
TREBABAEEEZEMEIELHE -

RIREHRE - AEBNLELELES
BEZEY6,815.50F % + T ERLERIE: -
& FERE BER A 40.15% 5T EHE
ﬂi@ﬁ%%iﬁﬁﬁow%ﬁ/iﬁ+
F19.70F %,/ A+ 7 B8R £l R & 2R
A 46.84% K 43.61% °

XHATE XY BRELERERAEE
TEHFRALFR,756.34F 52 °

B LM AREBBSK10FE R (A
TE= - RN EEEEYEL
NEEEEYELERERESY o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
A. Environmental (Continued)

2.

Use of Resources
Energy

The Group aims to minimise environmental
impacts in its operations by identifying and
adopting appropriate measures in its operations.
All contractors are notified to implement
such policies and measures on resource
utilisation. Regular review is conducted on
its energy objectives and targets to seek
continuous improvement in the Group’s energy
performance. During designing and planning
phases of its properties, preference is given to
energy saving building materials and equipment.

Energy Consumption

The total energy consumption by the Group
was 1,671,936.82 Kilowatt-hour (“kWh”), which
represents a 0.33% decrease from the previous
reporting period. The overall energy intensity
is 91.98 kWh per m? total area and 4,832.19
kWh per employee during the Reporting Period,
representing a 11.48% decrease and 6.09%
decrease from the previous reporting period
respectively.

RiR - HEBRERBHRE

BOEERRE@E
A BE@E
2 EBREA

AEBEZETBMNLREBEEZREE - B
HEENRRZERERE  WBHMAAAR
BRITEHERERANEERER - AEEE
IR B REIR B IR ERIEIR - SREFRREAMNK
BE - EVMENRFTRRIBER  AEEE
ST {8 BT BE I LM Bt S iR A o

NEBB AR HEEE51,671,936.82 T B
TTEE] & ERSEBM0.33% - B
REHME - ERERRE AI1.98TRE/ F
FKAEERE 2 4,83219T B/ A - DRIE L
B3R5 R HRL 0 11.48% K2 ek 16.09% o

2022/23 2021/22
Direct/indirect 2022/23 Consumption 2021/22 Consumption
energy sources Consumption (kWh) Consumption (kWh)
—g-_—/-—=% —%--/”"=f —B-——-/-_-f —B=--/-—&
i/ BERRR HEE HEE(TERE) HEE HEE(TER)
Petrol 8,269.82 Litre 73,288.30 29,326.00 Litre 259,891.12
i 8,269.827t 29,326.007t
LPG 1,265.00 kg 17,632.34 1,512.50 kg 21,082.15
BAC AR 1,265.00F 7% 1,512.50F 72
Natural Gas 2,877.00 m? 28,437.55 1,465.64 m® 14,487.06
AAR 2,877.0037 J K 1,465.6437 77 K
Electricity 1,5652,578.63 kWh 1,652,5678.63  1,382,058.94 kWh 1,382,058.94
ES 1,552,578.63F FLIF 1,382,058.94F FLB¥
Total 1,671,936.82 1,677,519.27
et
Area Intensity (per m? total area) 91.98 103.91
HEEZE(BTHFRERR)
Employee Intensity (per Group
employee) 4,832.19 5,145.76
BEZE(BHESR) ‘
Note: Conversion factors were made reference to IEA Kt - BBETFDH2ERRERBERATFME=

ZERNFRNEARERZLEMNZEEERAE
& mesE gy

RESEEMME °

Energy Statistics Manual and 2006 IPCC Guidelines
for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.

EERREEMERAT o 2022/23 5% 85



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

2.

Use of Resources (Continued)
Energy Consumption (Continued)

In total, twelve office operations in China and
one office operation in Hong Kong are included
in the scope of this report. The electricity
consumption by the thirteen offices of the
Group was 1,552,578.63 kWh, with 14,637.00
kWh consumed in Hong Kong Office and
1,537,941.63 kWh consumed in the twelve
offices in China, which represents a 12.34%
increase from the previous reporting period. This

FOERRRERGER
B (8

BREHE)

BEJRHFE (4B)

AET_EEPEHOREREAR—FEETELN
MEEIARNBENRE - AEB+ = @il
EEMAESEA1,552,578.63T A » H -
EANEREAEEA14,637.00T B -
W+ —EREENAESA1,537,941.63F
B & EETRE ML IN12.34% © gEREE
#85.42F FLIE /T 7K 4,487 .22 F B/
A BB BB RS BRI 2 0.23% & 3 hn
5.84% - NEBERAREEFLEBFHET

accounts for an energy intensity of 85.42 kWh/ FEITENRETEIE - W TR EMEBEAREFR
m? and 4,487.22 kWh/employee, representing
a 0.23% decrease and 5.84% increase from
the previous reporting period respectively. The
Group encourages staff to adopt energy saving
measures through reminders and email. For
example, by switching off unnecessary lighting
and electronic appliances.

\;

[

i
)

During the Last Reporting Period, the Group R ERREHRE  AREERIZBEE BZF
had set the target to achieve a 5% reduction in —— /T FRBMOERBEIZE=— ==
electricity consumption intensity in 10 years from FRNERBAERERES% - R TXHEBASE
2021/2, or by 2031/32. See below for the detail EEBEREREENFAER -

breakdown of the Group’s progress towards its

emission reduction target.

Reduction
2021/22 Target by 2022/23
Type of Emission Figures 2031/32 Figures % Change
—g=—/
— B =—FH —=E=-=
BEE —FHE HEBE B R “=FHE % B 1t
Electricity Consumption 85.61 kWh/m? 85.42 kWh/m?
Intensity total area -5% total area -0.23%
85.61 T FL&E, 85.42F FLB
RERE FHORAEER I OREERR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

2.

Use of Resources (Continued)
Water

Water consumption by the Group was
17,903.50 m?3, which represents a 8.70%
increase from the previous reporting period.
The water consumption intensity is calculated
to be 0.98 m®/m? and 51.74 m%employee
representing a 3.11% decrease and 2.78%
increase from the previous reporting period
respectively. It is noteworthy that the water
consumption figures for two out of the thirteen
offices was unavailable as it was managed
by the management company of the office,
however the consumption of said locations were
insignificant.

Since GHG emissions from water consumption
are insignificant, the Group has not set any
reduction targets. Nevertheless, the Group
reminds its staff to reduce water usage
whenever possible.

Freshwater consumed for the Group’s daily
business operations is supplied by municipal
freshwater supplier, and the Group has had no
problem in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
The Group did not consume significant amount
of water through business activities and the
water consumption was considered minimal.
The Group has set up procedures for water
conservation measures.

There is a monitoring system for overlooking
the water consumption in the construction site.
The Group has incorporated various water
conservation apparatus in its building designs,
including central water reuse facilities and water-
saving toiletries to efficiency manage water
consumption from cradle to grave.

Packaging Material

The Group’s businesses did not involve any
use of packaging materials; hence no data nor
information is presented in this report.

RiR - HEBRERBHRE
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

3.

88

The Environment and Natural Resources

Significant Impacts of Activities on the
Environment

The Group has strictly complied with all national
and local laws and regulations in relation to
environmental protection and the use of natural
resources during the Reporting Period under
review. To alleviate its impact on the environment
and natural resources, the Group has followed
green building concept in the development of
real estate. The Group will continue to adhere
to the safety, harmony and green development
concept and make unremitting efforts to create
a resource-saving and eco-friendly corporation
in the future.

The Group has established and implemented
various controlling and mitigation schemes. In
particular, the Group’s real estate development.
All projects are required to demonstrate
environmentally responsible building practices.

By committing to green concept, the project
demonstrates a comprehensive improvement
on various environmental criteria including
site plan, water efficiency, energy and
atmosphere, material and resources, and indoor
environmental quality.

Noise Mitigation

The Group strive to reduce noise pollution
at every construction site. For short-
term impacts caused by the works during
construction, the Group controls noise to
within established standards and guidelines
through implementation of mitigation measures
such as the use of temporary noise barriers
and silenced construction equipment to
reduce noise generation. The contractors are
required to implement noise control measures
in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HRERRE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
A. Environmental (Continued) A. REGE
4. Climate Change 4. TIREE
Due to the nature of business as a property AREREARNEBRNEE - [IRE/Lase
development company, it is likely climate HASENERECENEALE - At - K
change poses significant impact on the Group’s SEEHEENRIEAERE - IRV EE
business operation. As such, the Group has EHBEE - EBNNORERR - HEEEE
identified relevant climate-related risks and - BN EAREERNEEV BT EETIN
assessed their potential financial impacts. The e

climate risks identified, their time horizon, trend,
and the potential financial impacts affecting the
Group are shown below.

Climate Risks Time horizon  Trend Potential financial impact
Rz AR RrREEE B BEBBEE
Physical Risks Acute Short term Increase Extreme weather events with
P12 3 bz BRE 52 HA #n increased severity during cyclones,

hurricanes, storm surges and
floods can cause supply chain
interruption by bringing damage

to local infrastructure, potential
damage to offices and disruption to
human resources.

TERDE - BRE - R F ALK E]
B BnRREHNRERESIE
e B R ER IS - B
MAEENEEBRERHANEIR
ERTE - EmE Bt EEDE

Chronic Long term Increase Longer-term shifts in climate
(=g KH 0 patterns can increase capital costs,

operating costs, costs of human
resources and increased insurance
premium.
RIFENX AR AN E SILINEARK
R BEKAE - ANBIRKAEFR
BE -
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
A. Environmental (Continued) A. REGE
4. Climate Change (Continued) 4. STIREL(E)

Climate Risks Time horizon Trend Potential financial impact

R xR E B By ) 68 B BEMBTE

Transition Risks Technology Long term Increase During the transitional period,

A [ iy KA 0 the Group expects increased
procurement expenditures to
introduce new and alternative
technologies, and the additional
cost of adopting/deploying new
practices and processes.
VAR - AEETER RIE IR
BB - ASIERT R B
i - WL, JRE T R AR
TEHIAR o

Policy and Legal Short to medium Increase Implementation of tightened
PR ROER term 0 environmental laws, stringent
ME requirements on climate disclosures

and carbon pricing system
increases operating costs.
FERBENENR - HRIREEH
B BS Z KA RIRE BB RIEM
TEERK -

Market Short term Increase During the transitional period,

5 5 HA 0 the Group might face a decrease
in revenue due to higher
environmental requirements of
clients, if no strategy has been set
accordingly.
FERRRIRTHR - R0 M I E AR R R
B AEEAEERAEFHRRE
SRR = 1 1 B AR A B R e

Reputation Short to medium Increase Stakeholders’ concerns on climate-
BE term #n related issues of the Group might
HEFRH dampen the investment sentiment

of investors, impacting the stock
price and market capitalisation of
the Group, and hence increasing
the liquidity risk.
FOEHAKRERZEBEENE
ZA G HHIREENIREIGE -
FEREBENRENTE - Mg
R Ey 1 R o
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

4.

Climate Change (Continued)
Significant Climate-Related Issues

The Group recognises that extreme weather
events may negatively impact daily operations
and has accordingly prepared contingency plans
for these situations. In cases of extreme weather
such as typhoons or heavy rain, the Board shall
execute procedures to resume and maintain
operations as soon as possible.

However, the Group views climate change not
only as a risk to mitigate, but also an opportunity
for the Group to transition into a more
environmentally friendly enterprise. To echo with
international concerns on climate change, the
Group will begin assessing the short-, medium-
and long-term materiality of climate-related
risks and opportunities for the Group. Currently,
the Group has introduced green design and
building process for the real estate development
projects to mitigate the effects of environmental
and other destructive hazards. The Group
will continue to monitor the impact of climate
change that potential will bring to the Group
in the coming year and react in a responsible
manner.

RiR - HEBRERBHRE

FOERRRERGER
B (8

AR E L ()

EARRIEEFER

AEERE  BmAREMHAEHATEES
U2 I%E%ﬁﬁlﬂﬂm%%ﬁm
atdl e —HB LREXRRFHHRRAIE
%%@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’%%%@’%l@i“
Eo

R AEBTERREE A —TBEEREY
MkE - B2 AAEEEAATRRDEDN
— AR - BEERF TS HRRIRE(CHE
o AEB BB ERIEEBERRAOSE -
FHERBEZUALAEBTNBHOKS -
BAl  AEBEAEMEMRZER S ALER
STREETE - URDEIRSNZE REME
Eﬁf% KR—F  AEEBEBEERIR
""""" LA REHARBERNTE  WABEEN
REEIREVE SR o
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
B. SOCIAL B. #g
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHR
() Employment 0 1EE
The Group had a total number of 337 BHE—ZTZ

employees as of 31 March 2023. See HEIB7THEE - F2 RN T REEFF

below for the detail breakdown of the

workforce.
2023 2022
—E-= g

Number of Employment Number of Employment
Total Workforce as of 31 March Employees Percentage Employees Percentage
R=EA=+—HZEEBHEH EEAH EREEZ L EEA™ EEBDL
Employment Type
ERER
Full Time
a3 333 98.81% 307 98.71%
Part Time
Eig:0 4 1.19% 4 1.29%
Employee Category
EEEH
Senior Management
aRERE 60 17.80% 44 14.15%
Middle Management
HREEE 74 21.96% 52 16.72%
Frontline and Other Staff
AR R E A E B 203 60.24% 215 69.13%
Age Group
FiHR i Bl
18-25 55 16.32% 68 21.87%
26-35 148 43.92% 109 35.05%
3645 76 22.55% 72 23.15%
46-55 35 10.39% 46 14.79%
56 or above
563% A £ 23 6.82% 16 5.14%
Gender
4 5l
Male
Bk 157 46.59% 130 41.80%
Female
i 180 53.41% 181 58.20%
Geographical Region
ih = &l 2
Mainland China
R A 329 97.63% 303 97.43%
Hong Kong
BB 8 2.37% 8 2.57%
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SOCIAL (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)
(i) Employment (Continued)

Work Policies

The Group has formulated policies in
determining the working hours and rest
periods for employees in accordance
with local employment laws. Apart from
the basic leaves, such as annual leaves,
employees are also entitled to additional
leaves, such as maternity leave, childcare
leave, marriage leave, and compassionate
leave, if such leave periods are granted in
accordance with the relevant employment
laws, and leaves are in accordance with
the provision of the local employment
regulations.

The Group did not note any cases of
material non-compliance in relation to
employment during the reporting period.

Competitive Compensation and Benefits
Package

Employees are entitled to basic salary
with various allowance as per their job
positions, age and extra work hours, year-
end bonus on performance. Basic social
insurance including pension, medical,
work-related injury, unemployment
compensation and maternity. Various
types of leave are provided including
annual, sick, work-related injury, marriage,
maternity and compassionate leave. The
Group regularly reviews employees’ salary
together with business growth and market
price.
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TYERR
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
() Employment (Continued) 0 1EFEGE)
Internal Promotion NERE T

Internal promotion and job opportunities
are offered to existing employees and
selection is based on the monthly reviewed
work capability, attitude, and quality of
work of the employees on a point scoring
system. Employees are encouraged to
discuss their goals in job advancement
and career development.

Equal Opportunity and Diversity

A diverse and skilled workforce is
crucial for its business. The Group is
committed to create and maintain an
inclusive and collaborative workplace
culture. It is dedicated to providing equal
opportunities in all aspects of employment
and maintaining workplace that are free
from discrimination, physical or verbal
harassment against any individual based
on race, religion, colour, gender, physical
or mental disability, age, place of origin,
marital status, and sexual orientation.
The Group also strives to ensure that
complaints, grievances and concerns,
including whistleblowing, are dealt with
promptly and confidentially. The Group
has zero tolerance on sexual harassment
or abuse in the workplace of any form.

Employee Communication

No major activities were carried out due
to the pandemic. However, the Company
does occasional packed catering for its
workers and carry out mini activities for
workers to interact.

AEBAREREREAMEARIE
MEE  MERNERE AN DA
LEBETHIIEREN  RERTHEE
Bt - AKEZEREEESE —EX
R mESRTIEE T RBREERNE

Gl
T °

FEHERZ T

SR RRMARNE TRMENEE
MEEREER - AEER IR EERE
ERRBEAENEEXL  NFHERER
MAABTEEEFERELRETIFS
PR NS ER AR - % B
& Mh - FRKOERKE - FiK B
B BRI RERA R AR - S
AERE - NRERE DR KE AR
BT AR IE R - TR PR E RO ]
B (BRER) - AREH TSI
FANERBREFHTRBRE -

BEAR

EHBERBERE  ARBAAFRREME
RES EERESERERETHE
BB RESEERETY -
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #E(#)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIELGE)
(Continued)
() Employment (Continued) 0 1EEGE)
Turnover BEMALE
A total number of 93 employees left WEAN - LBRHEEHARER -
the Group during the Reporting Period, BEEBRKLLERE27.60% ° A A%
contributing to overall turnover rate EEHRDYIEBRALLEFIE

of 27.60%. See below for the detail
breakdown of turnover figures by
employee group.

2023 2022

—Eg=-= —E=-=
Turnover Figures as of 31 Number of Number of
March Employees Turnover Rate Employees Turnover Rate
R=A=+—BZEERLLE EEAR skt B EEAY i 5k b 8
Employment Type
EEER
Full Time
2% 92 27.62% 116 36.02%
Part Time
FRH 1 25.00% 2 50.00%
Employee Category
EEHEH
Senior Management
SRERE 7 11.67% 13 29.55%
Middle Management
PARERE 10 13.51% 12 23.08%
Frontline and Other Staff
AR R EAES 76 37.44% 93 40.43%
Age Group
F R4 Bl
18-25 24 43.64% 17 25.00%
26-35 40 27.03% 53 42.74%
36-45 13 17.11% 25 34.72%
46-55 14 40.00% 20 43.48%
56 or above
568k LA = 2 8.70% 3 18.75%
Gender
4 5l
Male
S 42 26.75% 54 37.24%
Female
M 51 28.33% 64 35.36%
Geographical Region
ih &= 8l 5
Mainland China
R A i 93 27.96% 118 36.20%
Hong Kong N/A N/A N/A N/A s
BB NiE A Sl T A N 5E A |
Overall I i |
e 93 27.60% 118 36.20%~

Sl

EERREEMERAT o 2022/23 5% 95



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
(i) Employee Health and Safety () EERFEHELE

The Group is committed to provide
and maintain a safe and healthy
working environment for the benefit of
our employees, subcontractors, and
suppliers. It has set out clear terms for
project management approaches and
commitments to health and safety. The
Group reviews the policy annually, or
when incidents arising determine a need
to review, to ensure that the procedure
remains relevant and appropriate.

The Health and Safety system includes
main-contractor and subcontractor
responsibilities, and the management’s
commitments to safety and health. The
policy also states the requirement of
sub-contractor to provide sufficient and
appropriate resources at the site. The
system is reviewed at intervals, or when
there is a change of operations that
requires other sources and personnel
management.

In addition, the Group has monitored the
contractors to ensure if enough various
occupational health training programmes
which aim to protect workers from health
hazards relevant to the construction
industry such as noise, dust, toxic gases
and vapours has provided.

The Group haven’t collected any work
injury figure from the contractors.
The Group is not aware of any non-
compliances during the year.

AEEHINRREE  HEBRHEERD
RHEESZE REMIHERR -
AEECD I EARMEREEMNHERR
ARBREEREETENBHEARE  SF
HERFHELETERTERTEEK
B UNHEEREFEERFEELEES
1 o

REEZE2AGERIABEBLIER
MR EA R E R EH RN L 2 B2 B A&
e ZBMENMEBRDBEHAETHIRESR
RABENER - AEBEEHRERD
EHFEEMERMABEERREZ

BESh - REEME D BEETES - NE
RERHEZEREXEEEIAEBERER
B ERETERABOBREE (R

B NE ASRBEEXAFE -

AEEKRMAFADHWEEAITEEE -
RAEEAN  AEBBEEATEHE
o
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

SOCIAL (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)
(i)

Employee Health and Safety (Continued)

For the internal management during the
reporting period, the Group did not note
any cases of material non-compliance
in relation to health and safety laws and
regulations, and strictly complied with
national and local laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the followings:
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FOEERREGE
B. #E(#)
1. FERERETERGE)

(i)

ERRFHELE (&)
RBEERREORNIERD - AEBERHE
REMNARRRARZ2ERERNERXN
EBRED - WEBETER MM AR
R BRETRRATSRE :

Occupational health and safety laws and regulations complied in different regions
TR ENBERRERZZERZER

Hong Kong The PRC
&8 il
° Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance ° Law of the PRC on the Protection of

o BERZE2REREA

° Employees’ Compensation Ordinance

o [EEBERS

Production Safety

PR EEEE

Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance
of the PRC

B TSR B 151

2022/23 Occupational Health and Safety Data

TR CCERBERBEEZE2HE
Work related fatality 0
ETEREMILTHAE
Fatality Rate 0.00%
TR
Work injury cases >3 days 0
T{5>3H
Work injury cases <3 days 0
T15<38H
Lost days due to work injury 0
ETEEEXTIER

2021/22 Occupational Health and Safety Data

TR /A BERBERZZEE
Work related fatality 0
ETERMEMILT H A
Fatality Rate 0.00%

A

ek,

Sl
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
(i) Employee Health and Safety (Continued) (i) (EERFHELE(E)

2020/21 Occupational Health and Safety Data
TR/ C-ERXRERZ2EE

(i)

Work related fatality 0
E TR ML T B AR
Fatality Rate 0.00%

AmE

Development and Training

The Group provides comprehensive
career development and training to
employees. Training topics include
orientation, anti-corruption, occupational
health and safety, fire safety, professional
medical technology lectures, and content
management. During the Reporting
Period, 166 employees, or 49.26% of all
employees received 4,519.40 hours of
training, and the average training hour per
employee (inclusive of employees who did
not receive training) was 13.4 hours.

(i)

R R 1E

REBAREESRBEE2MAOBERE RS
gl FIWETBEFEAREE K&
5 BERERELTS A BEEE
BT EMARER - RBFEEHH -
1667 1EE (FEBEE49.26%)EXT
4,519. 408/ N ERFF - BREES (BIE
WAREZEINREE)MELZIEEA
13418/ B o

Percentage
of Trained Average
Employees Training Hours

FIESFT 19 32 S| B B

By Gender

5l

Male

S

Female

g

By Employee Category
EEEH

Senior Management
RRERE

Middle Management
hRER

Frontline and Other Employees
AR R E Mg B

13.77 hrs
51.59% 13.77/)\8F
12.45 hrs
47.22% 12.45/\Fs
11.05 hrs
38.33% 11.05/) 6%
15.29 hrs
62.16% 15.29/)\8F
12.86 hrs
47.78% 12.86/)\iF
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

SOCIAL (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)
(iv)  Labour Standard

The Group strictly complies with local
laws and does not provide employment
to children before they reach the legal age
to work as defined by the International
Labour Organisation (“ILO”) Convention
and local regulations in Hong Kong and
China.

The Human Resources and Administration
Department of the Group strictly complies
with local laws and conducts recruitment
based on all the employment requirements
in each respective. Personal data will
be collected during the recruitment
process to assist in the selection
of suitable candidates. The Human
Resources Department will also ensure
the compliance at all operations and
facilities by checking original identification
cards upon recruitment. If violation is
involved, it will be dealt with in the light of
circumstances. The Group also sources
its candidates through legal and legitimate
sources. The HR department reviews each
applicant’s resumes to ensure they are
of appropriate legal age before engaging
them for interview.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #E(HE)
2. Operating Practices 2. &EEH
() Supply Chain Management () (REEELE

The Group has established a vendor
performance assessment and monitoring
system to provide the Purchasing
Department with a structured and
systematic way to assess suppliers and
sub-contractors. A comprehensive,
impartial and transparent bidding
procedure has been developed for
selecting building materials, equipment
and services from contractors or suppliers.
All contractors and suppliers are expected
to meet environmental and occupational
health and safety policies required by the
Group for ensuring compliance during
the tendering procedure. Supplier and
sub-contractor evaluations are based
on product quality, ability in meeting
contractual requirements, previous project
references and delivery capability. Tender
Committee is responsible for overseeing
the entire tendering process to combat
unfair business practices.

Suppliers and sub-contractors’
assessments will be conducted
periodically, and the results of the
evaluations, both positive and those
needing improvement, will be promptly
shared with the vendors. Suppliers who
consistently fail to meet the Group’s
requirements may be subjected to
suspension for future supply.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
engaged 44 suppliers for office supplies,
cleaning supplies, food ingredients, online
recruiting services, hotel arrangements,
and drinking water. All of them were from
various provinces in the PRC.

AEECRYHERARRAGEREER
:oRRBIHRERERL  ARIEN
HEFESEBAAGETR AEFHER
| AERBEANBRERERF - LAEAES
BRHEEERERENE  RERR
e MAABRREERAETAKE
FIREMRELBEERET2RR
NHERBIZBEFHNARME - HHEE R
DEEFEENREREE BTRAYOE
KN - BEEB2EARKMEE
N HEZECRAEEERERESR
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. SOCIAL (Continued)
2.  Operating Practices (Continued)

(i)

Product Responsibility
Service Quality Assurance

In order to ensure service quality is being
maintained, the Group has implemented
the quality policy and code of conduct
as internal guide for quality control. The
Group is dedicated to deliver quality
products and services which satisfy the
needs and requirements of our customers
and interested parties by continually
improving the effectiveness of the quality
management system.

The Group has also established a set
of procedures in handling customers’
feedbacks or complaints in a professional
manner. Upon receiving product or
service-related enquiries or complaints,
reviews will be conducted immediately.
After complaints are settled, customers’
satisfaction will be evaluated. The Group
has received no complaints about the
products with regards to health and
safety, advertising, labelling or any privacy
matters relating to products and services
provided and method of redress during
the reporting period.

Consumer Data Protection

The Group respects the values and rights
of customers’ information assets, and
strictly complies with the customers’
information security management systems
and standards. In order to provide high-
quality services, we are determined to
strengthen the protection of customers’
privacy. In addition, the Group adheres
to the PRC Cyber Security Law. It has
implemented firewall, anti-virus, and anti-
spam solutions for our IT systems to
prevent leakage of confidential information,
which are upgraded constantly.

There has been no complaints on the
Group’s services regarding the areas of
Data Protection.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #E(HE)
2. Operating Practices (Continued) 2. EEBEHGE)
(i) Anti-corruption (i) KREZ

The Group has zero toleration on
any corruptions, frauds and all other
behaviours violating work ethics. It values
and upholds integrity, honesty and
fairness in the way it conducts businesses.
As spelt out in the internal control manual
and project bidding management system,
the Group has formulated related policies
on the control and prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in
each business operation and trade activity.

All employees should be alert for
occurrences of fraud and be aware that
unusual transactions or behaviours could
be indications of fraud. Employees will be
subjected to disciplinary actions if they
are found being engaged in fraudulent
activities. Disciplinary actions include
termination of an individual, or prosecution
to the appropriate law enforcement and/
or regulatory agencies for independent
investigation, depending on the situation.

Whistleblowing Mechanism:

In order to further maintain and achieve
the highest standards of openness,
probity and accountability, the Group
has formulated a reporting procedure.
While management is responsible for
detecting irregularities, employees are also
encouraged to report fraudulent activity
immediately to the Head of Department, or
where that is not possible, to the Director
when they discover or suspect such
activity. Whistle-blowing policies were
implemented to all stakeholders to report
suspected misconduct, malpractices
or fraudulent activities. Reported cases
shall be investigated by the Group’s Audit
Committee and executive management.

AEEHES  RFELABEMERRE
XBERNTABTRRAEE  ERILE
REBBRETNRER  HEEQF - R
EAEESFMEIER REEESERN
ME - AREGEEBBRRNESED
EEEXZRYTHEME - R - BGF
FMRRETR

FMEREREGRIFEHMNEE - B
EERHHITRARERFNTR - &
RR2HERFEY  BEESXILER
D RETRANBER  fRRDBEER
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. SOCIAL (Continued)
2.  Operating Practices (Continued)
(i) Anti-corruption (Continued)
Whistleblowing Mechanism: (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not note any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, including but not limited to
the “Prevention of Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap 201)”. The Group did not
work with any contractors or suppliers
who failed to comply with the laws,
regulations and the Group’s policies.

Anti-corruption Training:

To ensure that its employees familiar with
anti-corruption topics such as identifying
bribery, extortion, fraud, and money
laundering, the Group had carried out anti-
corruption training during the Reporting
Period for 54 employees, with an average
training hour of 4.08 hours per employee.

3. Community Investment

As the business continues to evolve and
develop, the group has remained steadfast in its
commitment to make a positive change in the
communities. The Group firmly believes in its role
in invigorating the communities through sharing
its prosperity. Understanding that different
segments of the communities all have their own
distinct challenges, the outreach programs have
been developed to address the particular needs
of each group.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

Looking forward to the coming years, the Group is fully
engaged in promoting sustainability culture into its business
operation, practice and daily behaviour to its employees
and contractors. Greater performance is expected from
green design and the integrated sustainable development
management approach that values stakeholder’s
expectations.
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General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page
—RIEBERBARENERS it BR

Environmental
RIB

Aspect A1: Emissions

[EEAT : HERY
General disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 76
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—MRIKEE FHERIORERBHN - FUKR MBS - BERESEEYH
EEEN : @BK: & O)BTFTHETARBEATZENHEBER LR
ESk=g
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 80
RASEAE DR IRAT A PR R A R ARRR B -
KPIA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity. 78
BSEE IR IRAL.2 BERBREMER(WER)ZE -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 81
RASEAE IR 1IRA1.3 FEXEEREYREER (MER)EE -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 81
RASEAE IR IRA .4 FEAEEEZEYEER (WEREE -
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 79
RBAE BURIRA1.5 HAUBE PE R E VIR M S PSR o
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 81

RS A ANIE1RA1.6

reduction initiatives and results achieved.

WREEEENEEREYNE  REELENEELABKR -
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(CONTINUED)

General Disclosures and KPls Description Page

—REBERBRENES i =/

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBHEA2 . ERER

General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and 83
other raw materials.

— MR BREAER(BIEIR - K EEA R R BIBR -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. 83

BB E 1R A2.1 REAESHMERER LHEEREEEREE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 81

BSEE IR IRA2.2 BREKEREE -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. 83

BASEAE IR 1RA2.3 i g2 R AR a5 B R PG AR o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for 84
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

RS E IR IRA2.4 i HUKEGE AR _ LA A ERIERE - A REAHRKREET S RATEK
% o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, 84
with reference to per unit produced.

BSEAE IE1RA2.5 R MTABEMENEER(WER) BEEELMES -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

[EEA3 : RIERRXAREIR

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment 84
and natural resources.

— R BIRBEITABRIBERRRERENERZEBHEE

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 84
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BB E 1R AS.1 M ERSHIRERRAERNEAZENERRERBEEZEN
118 -
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General Disclosures and KPls Description Page
—REBERBRENER it BR

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BHEA4 : [IESL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related 85
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

— R EE BRI REHE R LA GH BT AEER ENEARKEEEENR
kﬁ o

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 85

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.

AR A BUEIEASL 1 HMBE RS HBETAEEFENEARGHEBEER - REYT
Ej] o

Social

e

Employment and Labor Practices
BREREIER

Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 88
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
—MRIKEE EATHRRE BEREA ILERFE - R FTEEE - 2
£~ REBABAREMEF B KRB - (@BK : KO)E \T%ﬁAﬁé
TENBBERRROIEER

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 87
geographical region.

RASRAE IR 1RB.1 ZMR - EEEE - FiRER RS DMES B -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 91

S E B IEEB1.2 RUER - FirARI R RE D IESRKLLE -
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General Disclosures and KPls Description Page

—REBERBRENES i =/

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

BHEB2: REHEZS

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 92
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

—MRIREE FARHZ2TERERREREREMEBELEEN : @BX : Xb)
BIHBITABEAZENRBEELRONER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. 93

RS E IR 1EB2.1 EITHAIABKLLE o

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 93

S E MR 1EB2.2 EIEEEATERS -

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how 92
they are implemented and monitored.

BSEE I 1EB2.3 R PTER NV B R R B 2 2 18 it - DA RIBRARIT REER % »

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[BEB3 : &R RIE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 95
duties at work. Description of training activities.

—MRAREE FHARARERITIEBEN MM R EAEABUR - #FIES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 95
category.

BB 4E 1R B3.1 BRI REEBERIEISNZIEEB DL °

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 95
employee category.

RS E R 1EB3.2 BMRIREEERED - BREE KN THRE -
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General Disclosures and KPls Description Page
—REBERBRENER it BR

Aspect B4: Labor Standards
[EEB4 : & T %8|

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 96
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child or forced labor.

— R BRAMIEEZET RGBS TH - @QBR : RO)ETHEITABEATLE
EARRERE KR BIEE R -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 96
and forced labor.

B E I 1EBA.A s B Ef AR R ET REHSET -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 96

RS E IR 1EB4.2 A EREZRBENRBRBBIBERRRA PR -

Operating Practices

&EEA

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
fEMEBS5 : HtREHEERE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply 97
chain.

— R ERHEENRERTGRARBOR -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 97

RS E R 1RB5.1 miEE S HEREE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number of 97

supplies where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

AR A IR 1EB5.2 mul BRI A EE BN - RERTEREMNMHEREE « Uk
BRABOIMBITRERTE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks 97
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
RS E IR 1EB5.3 A SR R e ARG HIRIE L gRBRAEH - A RAEER
\ TRERTE -
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General Disclosures and KPls Description Page
—REBERBRENES i =/
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable 97

products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
RS E 5 1EB5.4 R BRE B R AR (2 2 A IRIREE i R TE 0B B - A RABRIERTT

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
fEHEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 98
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

— PRI ER FRMEMEMRRENRRREEZ S B  SERILEEEURE
I ED © (QIHE - ROETHEITABERZENEBERRER
HEE

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for 98
safety and health reasons.

RASE 45 W5 15B6. 1 PERCEXEMBHEPEL 2 RERIEHMARKNBED T

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how 98
they are dealt with.

BB E N5 1EB6.2 BEEMANEmMRGHIRFEE A REH X -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 98
property rights.

RASRAE B 1RB6.3 fir ot B 4 T R AR PR AN ERE B RO 1E 0] -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 98

RS E IR 1EB6.4 B ERTRERERBKIET -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they 98
are implemented and monitored.

BB E 5 12B6.5 R B EERHMRE RFALBBOR - URBERTRERFE -
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General Disclosures and KPls Description Page
—REBERBRENER it BR

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[EEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 99
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— R BRAMEBRER - 9R - HEFROEREN : @QBUK : RO)ETHETA
BERXENMEBERRERNER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought 99
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

B A IR EBT A RERAANEZETAIEREREREVEFENE THARGNVEA K
FANAESR ©

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, 99
how they are implemented and monitored.

RS E IR 1EBT.2 TP A e R ERRIR T - AR T RER A -

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 100

RASEAE WUIR1RBT.3 filmES &R E TIRENREFE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEB8 : HEBRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 100
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.

— AR ER B ERER THRETACEMEHENTENBRREER T
2EELERNFAER

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 100

RS R IR 1EB8.1 HT RS o

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 100

RAd 48 N5 1RB8.2

EEIRBMBHAER
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WONG Lam Ping ((X#K), aged 68, has been appointed
as Chairman and an Executive Director since 1 April
2020 and the Chief Executive Officer and the General
Manager since 22 May 2020. He is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee. He has over 30 years of
property development experience since he established Pan
Hong Co., Ltd. in 1983. He was an executive director and
chairman of the board of directors of Pan Hong Holdings,
a sister company of the Company and the issued shares
of which are listed on the SGX-ST (stock code: P36),
from 3 January 2006 to 31 March 2020. He is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, namely Leping
City Fenghuang Jincheng Industry Co., Ltd. and Jiangxi
Ganghua Medical Management Co,. Limited. Mr. Wong also
sits on the boards of several investment holding companies.
He was a director of Chaozhou Jinaote Sanitary Ware Ltd.

Mr. Wong completed a post-graduate course in Economics
of Science and Technology and Management from Zhejiang
University of Technology in the PRC in 2000. He holds an
honorary degree of a Doctor of Business Management from
Armstrong University in the United States of America.

Mr. Wong is one of the Controlling Shareholders. He is the
father of Mr. Wong Lui, an Executive Director and an uncle
of Mr. Chan Kin Sang, the Non-Executive Director.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SHI Feng (F#), aged 65, became the Deputy Chairman,
and an Executive Director on 4 July 2011. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. SHI is responsible
for the management of project plans, quality control,
coordination with contractors, and the management of the
Company’s subsidiaries. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
in September 2002 and was an executive director of Pan
Hong Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011.

He was certified as an engineer by the Ministry of Light
Industry of the PRC ({F £ A KR BT ¥ T 2 &F) in 1987.

Mr. SHI graduated with a bachelor’s degree in civil and
industrial construction from the Hunan University in the PRC
in December 1981.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, Mr. SHI was an assistant
civil engineer at the construction technology department of
Twenty Third Metallurgy Construction Company under the
Ministry of Metallurgy (f& TEZE -+ =ZAE&XAQ A
(i T BZ)) from 1982 to 1983. He served as an engineer
at the Changsha Design Institute of the Ministry of Light
Industry (& T % 3= aREHF) from 1983 to 1992, where
he specialised in the structural design of buildings. Mr. SHI
subsequently joined Huilong (Group) Ltd. of Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province (BEREBMMEESEBRAF) in
the PRC from 1992 to 1999 as the deputy general manager,
responsible for real estate development and technical
construction management. Between 1999 and 2002, he
was the general manager of 3A Electronics Co., Ltd. (4
TEHIN=BEFEFTAHRAR) in Huzhou City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC.

WONG Lui (J£%), aged 40, became an Executive Director
on 4 July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. WONG is mainly responsible for the
operational management and development of the projects
of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (F§ & 4L A4 8lJiE) and Fuzhou
Hua Cui Ting Yuan (#EJNZE#EEFT) in the PRC. He joined
Pan Hong Holdings in October 2007 as the assistant to
the chairman of Pan Hong Holdings responsible for the
formulation of business strategy and management of Pan
Hong Holdings. He was appointed as the deputy project
manager and the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Asia City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. in 2008 and
was mainly responsible for management of construction
works. He was also appointed as the general manager of
the Company’s subsidiaries, Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan
Property Development Co., Ltd. (‘Fuzhou Pan Hong”, #E /1|
NEEHEF AR A F]), Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate
Company Limited (‘Hangzhou Ganglian”, T/ k& 2%
B R A7) and Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator Limited (“Hanyun
Incubator”, JTFZEM (LR AR A F]) in 2009, 2014
and 2015 respectively and was mainly responsible for the
formulation of business strategy and the daily management
of Fuzhou Pan Hong, Hangzhou Ganglian and Hanyun
Incubator.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. WONG is now a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Jiangxi Province,
the PRC and a standing committee member of Jiangxi
Federation of Industry and Commerce in the PRC.

Mr. WONG is the son of Ms. Chan and Mr. WONG Lam
Ping and a cousin of Mr. Chan King Sang, the Non-
Executive Director.

GAO Lan (5/&), aged 57, joined the Group in June 2010
as the director of marketing and administration. She has
been re-designated as the Group’s director of marketing
since November 2013 in order to concentrate on the
Group’s marketing affairs. Ms. GAO was appointed as an
Executive Director on 13 August 2014 and is also a member
of the Nomination Committee.

Ms. GAO graduated from the Jiangxi Industrial University
(TPE T KE) in the PRC, the predecessor of Nanchang
University (B & AX£2), in 1987 with a bachelor’'s degree
majoring in industrial and civil construction. She was
certified as an engineer in 1994 and qualified as a class 2
constructor in 20083.

Ms. GAO has extensive experience in the construction
and real estate development industry. She worked at
the technology division of the real estate department
of Nanchang City Municipal Engineering Development
Co., Ltd. (FETMMHIEMZEEGRE R R]) from 1987 to
1993. She joined Hainan Huan Li (Real Estate) Group (/&
IR (M E)EE]) in 1993, acting as the director of the
chief executive officer’s office, and as the deputy general
manager of Hainan Huan Li Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd. (BFEIRY FEHERZEBMR A F]). Ms. GAO was the
deputy general manager of Shanghai Jing Ja Immovable
Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (F/E8&EREEREHA
B PR A &)) from 2001 to 2006. From 2006 to 2009, she was
the deputy general manager of Nanchang Lan Di Consultant
Co., Ltd. (FA B E MR AR A 7). Afterwards, she joined
Jiangxi Jinhai Property Co., Ltd. (IS8 B EXBRET
‘A \]) as the general manager from 2009 to 2010 before
joining the Group.

EERGREEB2EBEFE

BITEE (R
ABAER/FEIAETBEARBAHA S HKE KT
BITRETHEMEEIEEELE -

ABAEERRL L FOEMKTEZ R T RIFAITEFREE
HEREZRS

BE TR —E-ZEFRNANALREE - REHRTT
BHag - AT —=Ft+— P AERAEELHE
B FIXEEZEHEYR SRIR_T—TFNAT
ZHEZEIRWITESLRRERZEENE -

BEEIR-NANEFEERFBRIRIEZERB(EEKRSR
ZHIR)  BELEBM TEIFERBREE - BN
NEFERARIEM  YR-_ZZ=FERAI R _RE
R o

BRITEREREHERBEXZHEEELER - #NR—NN
TtEE-NAN=ZFHHEREETHTRIEREAR QA
FEHEREZEIEME - YR —AN=ZFMABRERL (G
E)EE  BEEEENAZTIME  HERNEERIFHE
MBEERAREFRAKLE-B SRIE_TT—FE
“ERRFHERALERETHEREDABRAREE
KiE - R-TERFE_TTNF - WAHSEHERE
[RAFIRIAELIE o 18 - EIMAREBZH - R _-TF
NFE_ZT-ZFHREIAREERAREEQFEL
MBI -

EREREEGRAT < 202223 5% 113



BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang (Rf&4), aged 71, became the NED
on 1 April 2020. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is currently a partner of Messrs. Kwan &
Chow, Soalicitors. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Laws
from the University of Hong Kong in 1979 and a post-
graduate certificate in Laws from the same university in
1980. He has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since
April 1982 and has been admitted as a Notary Public since
April 1997 and a China-appointed Attesting Officer since
January 2000. Mr. Chan has also been a Fellow of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors since August 2004 and
a chairman of the Appeal Tribunal (Buildings Ordinance,
Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) since February
2007.

Mr. Chan has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of each of GoFintech Innovation Limited
(formerly known as China Fortune Financial Group Limited)
(stock code: 290) since July 2014 and Pak Tak International
Limited (stock code: 2668) since April 2018, which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan
has also been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 8622) since November 2018, which is listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan held directorships in a Singapore listed company
and a PRC listed company. He was a non-executive
director of Pan Hong Holdings from 14 August 2006 to
31 March 2020. He also acted as a director of Guanghe
Landscape Culture Communication Co., Ltd, Shanxi (stock
code: 600234) from June 2016 to October 2020, which is
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan is a nephew of Mr. Wong and Ms. Chan and a
cousin of Mr. Wong Lui, an Executive Director.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XIE Gang (#Ml), aged 58, became an INED on 4 July
2011. He is also the chairman of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee. Mr. XIE was the head
representative of AXA Guangzhou representative office from
1995 to 2002, during which period he was responsible
for the operation of the representative office and matters
relating to establishing branch companies for AXA group.
From 2003 to 2008, he was the manager of AXA-Minmetals
Assurance Co., Ltd., Guangdong Branch in the PRC and
was responsible for government relations, establishing
new companies, recruitment, franchise development, risk
management, marketing and sales, etc. Mr. XIE graduated
from the Xiamen University in the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science in July 1988.

HE Dingding (27T T), aged 46, became an INED on 1
August 2018. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. He has more than 15 years of extensive
experiences in capital markets, corporate finance,
investment and finance, and corporate management
through working in investment banks, advisory firms and
listed companies in Singapore and Hong Kong since
2005. Mr. He has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of each of () China New Consumption
Group Limited (formerly known as State Innovation Holdings
Limited and Beaver Group (Holding) Company Limited)
(stock code: 8275) since May 2021, the issued shares of
which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange; and (ii)
Mobile Internet (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1439)
since 20 March 2023, the issued shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He has also
been appointed as an executive director of Link Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8237) since 2 May 2023, the issued
shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. He was an independent non-executive director of
China Kangda Food Company Limited, the issued shares
of which were listed on the Main Board of both the Stock
Exchange and the SGX-ST (stock codes: 834 and P74,
respectively), between August 2012 and June 2015 and
Crown International Corporation Limited (stock code: 727),
the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, between May and September 2021.
Mr. He was a non-executive director of Perfect Group
International Holdings Limited, the issued shares of which
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 3326) between March 2017 and February 2018.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. He graduated from Nanyang Technological University,
Singapore with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering. Mr.
He was awarded the CFA Charter by the CFA Institute in
September 2006.

WONG Ping Kuen (E{#E), aged 36, became an INED
on 1 June 2020. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over 10 years of experience in the accounting, finance and
investment industry. He founded Credito Capital group in
September 2015 and is currently the managing director of
each of Credito Capital Consulting and Appraisal Limited,
a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, and Beijing
Credito Capital Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd.,
a private company incorporated in the PRC. Between
December 2011 and July 2014, Mr. Wong worked in latia
Ltd, a company previously listed on Australian Securities
Exchange and he was responsible for its restructuring
as financial controller. He also worked in Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Hong Kong from September 2008 to November
2011.

Mr. Wong has been appointed as (i) an independent director
of Al Transportation Acquisition Corp (stock symbol: AITR)
since 15 March 2023, the issued shares of which are listed
on Nasdaqg Stock Exchange; and (i) an independent non-
executive director of WWPKG Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 8069) since 1 May 2023, the issued shares of
which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong graduated from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2008 with a bachelor’s degree
in accounting and information system (double major).
He obtained a master of business administration degree
from Peking University, the PRC and a master of business
administration degree from National University of Singapore
in 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAN Heung Ling (M%), aged 64, is one of the
founders of the Group. She is the director and general
manager of the subsidiary, Sino Harbour Limited. She has
engaged in property development since 1990s and has
experience in this area for over 20 years. She participated
in the property business of Pan Hong Holdings and was
the deputy chairlady and an executive director of Pan Hong
Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011 and chairlady of
the Group from July 2011 to March 2020. Ms. CHAN is the
wife of Mr. Wong, and is the mother of Mr. WONG Lui, one
of the Executive Directors.

LI Ming Yuan (Z837T), aged 60, is the Group’s director
of property management. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
in 2004 as deputy general manager of JX Asia City. He
remained in this position until 2007 and was afterwards
appointed as the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. (T B XEZGRAF]) in
the same year.

Mr. LI was educated at the Jiangxi Broadcasting and
Television University (LA EE EHR KXZ) in the PRC,
where he graduated in 1989 majoring in industrial and
civil construction. From 1989 to 1996, he served as a
construction worker, the deputy head of the production
department and the director of production technology
department at Nanchang City Municipal Engineering
Development Co., Ltd. (FEm MK LR EFR A F]). Mr
LI was certified as an engineer in 1997.

QIU Si Yuan (B8 &F), aged 63, is the Group’s director of
planning and design. Mr. QIU joined Pan Hong Holdings as
the director of planning and design in 2008.

Mr. QIU has worked in the construction industry for over 25
years, including China CEC Engineering Corporation (#
WTERDTREERADF]) (formerly known as Changsha
Design Institute of the Ministry of Light Industry (88 T 2
ERPERETERT) from 1982 to 1995. In 1995, Mr. QIU was
assigned to work in Hunan Dacheng Design Co., Ltd. (#iF
AR AR AR as the deputy head of the institute
and chief architect until 2008. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
thereafter. Mr. QIU was registered as a certified class 2
architect in 1997.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

LAU Ka Ho, Billy (8|% %), aged 38, has been the Group’s
financial controller since 1 August 2018.

Mr. LAU joined Pan Hong Holdings as the group financial
controller and company secretary on 31 July 2017 and
was responsible for the finance and accounting functions,
statutory compliance and corporate governance.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, he worked in Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Hong Kong from September 2008 to
September 2012, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP
(Beijing Branch, China) from October 2012 to November
2014 and Deloitte Touche Financial Advisory Service Limited
(Shenzhen, China) from December 2014 to June 2017. Mr.
Lau is a member of CPA Australia. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in commence majoring in accounting, finance and
financial planning from the Deakin University, Australia.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

R

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
TEE © +852 2218 8288 55
85 : +852 2815 2239 TEEP11157
www.bdo.com.hk IKEZHI251E

To the shareholders of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
128 to 248, which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION ON SALE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Refer to notes 3.5, 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale of approximately RMB181 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023. Revenue arising from the sale of
properties held for sale is recognised at a point in time
when customers accept the properties, unless at the
time of entering into the contract, the sales and purchase
agreement satisfied the criteria for recognising revenue
over time by containing an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date and the performance of
the Group does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group. Revenue from sale of properties held for sale
is recognised upon the transfer of control of ownership of
these properties held for sale to the customers. The revenue
recognition is dependent on the contractual arrangements
for the sale and the laws in the relevant jurisdiction and may
require significant audit effort and management judgement.

Audit response

Our audit procedures included:

- Reviewing the legal advice provided by the
Group’s legal advisor, including the legal advisor’s
interpretation of the applicable laws and the
implication on the assessment of the enforceability of
the right to payment;

- Assessing the competency, experience and objectivity
of the legal advisor engaged by the Group;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

REVENUE RECOGNITION ON SALE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Audit response (Continued)

- Assessing the management’s control over the point
of time at which revenue from sales of properties held
for sale is recognised by obtaining an understanding
of the management'‘s control process and testing the
control on a sampling basis; and

- Reading the terms stated in the sales and purchase
agreements, and obtaining evidence regarding the
completion and the delivery of properties, including
checking to completion certificates and delivery
notices on a sampling basis, to assess whether the
criteria for revenue recognition set out in note 3.5 to
the consolidated financial statements have been met.

ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Refer to notes 3.11, 3.12, 4, 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has significant properties held for sale and
properties held under development in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) which together represent the largest
category of assets on the consolidated statement of
financial position of approximately RMB1,958 million as at
31 March 2023.

Properties held for sale and properties held under
development are stated at the lower of their costs and their
net realisable values.

The determination of the estimated net realisable value of
these properties held for sale and properties held under
development is critically dependent upon the Group’s
estimation of future selling prices and construction costs to
complete their projects.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BETRE

ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Audit response

Our audit procedures included:

- Assessing the calculations of net realisable values
of properties held for sale and properties held under
development, and challenging the reasonableness and
consistency of the assumptions used by management;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
estimated selling prices, on a sampling basis,
by comparing them to, where available, recently
transacted prices and prices of comparable properties
located in the same vicinity as the development
projects; and

- Assessing the construction costs and interest
expenses estimated by the management based on
underlying documentation and reasonableness.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Refer to notes 3.7, 4 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group owns a portfolio of investment properties
comprising commercial offices and shop units, located
in the PRC. Investment properties were significant to the
Group as they represented approximately 31% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 March 2023.

These investment properties are stated at their fair values
based on independent external valuations.

The valuation process involves significant judgement in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology to
be used, and in estimating the underlying assumptions
to be applied. The valuations are highly sensitive to key
assumptions applied including, discount, discount rate, and
yield rates i.e. a small change in the assumptions can have
a significant impact to the valuation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Audit response

Our audit procedures included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of external valuer;

- Involving an auditor’s valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of the methodologies used and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions adopted for
the valuations;

- Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used; and

- Assessing the adequacy of related disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BETRE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this
regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BETRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

REMA B GEEMBHRRARZEEE)
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, RFEBEXZEE BB T (Hbh el talzB:16E - &
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the ~BI%Z#HF - EAEHHE S - BERMAEZTHHR L AEE
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant  B54% 7 {F{a] & A fkpG o

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Hung Yun, Andrew

Practising Certificate Number P04092

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-_F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat ARMTF T AREFT
Revenue KA 6 247,460 1,738,833
Cost of sales SHE A (149,927) (1,236,077)
Gross profit EX 97,533 502,756
Other income and other gains and losses ~ E A LA R H AUk 25 K B 18 6 27,839 204,813
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHER (19,040) (35,970)
Administrative expenses BEBH (72,270) (569,780)
Operating profit R ER 34,062 611,819
Finance costs BERKAR 7 (762) (4,689)
Profit before income tax BR P 15 B A& R 8 33,300 607,130
Income tax expense 3R = 9 (22,321) (290,759)
Profit for the year FREF 10,979 316,371
Other comprehensive income H 2w (B BRBE)
(net of tax)
Items that will not be reclassified to BreEfsEE2E%2ER
profit or loss
Changes in fair value of equity instruments & 2A 7 (B E 2 U 2551 R
at fair value through other comprehensive ~ Z&# T B 2 R A EZE
income (4,500) 2,703
Revaluation surplus upon transfer WY - BE RS EEES
from property, plant and equipment to WEME 2 LB
investment properties - 58,500
Item that may be reclassified HETHRENIEEERZ
subsequently to profit or loss HE
Exchange differences on translation of BRERINEBR BT Z
financial statements of foreign operations  [& i = %8 2,041 2,014
Other comprehensive income FREMmEEKE
for the year (2,459) 63,217
Total comprehensive income FAZHEHWEAE
for the year 8,520 379,588
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-_F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥TFT ARBTF T
Profit/(loss) for the year LT ALTEEERER,
attributable to: (E518) :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIETZE DN 18,593 259,119
Non-controlling interests IR RS (7,614) 57,252
10,979 316,371
Total comprehensive income RTATEAEZERRELE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ DN 16,134 322,336
Non-controlling interests FEIERR = (7,614) 57,252
8,520 379,588
Earnings per share for profit FRAQXTEE ABIEERZ
attributable to the owners of BRBAALKS)
the Company during the year
(in RMB cents)
- Basic and diluted -EXR#EE 11 0.75 10.52

i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a BRI &

As at 31 March 2023 R = F - =F=FA=+—H

2023 2022
—EC-=F T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat AR¥TF T ARBTF T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 13 38,860 49,328
Investment properties Ay 14 1,491,150 1,410,742
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 22,689 15,863
Intangibles mEE 16 2,083 3,126
Financial assets at fair value through RAREREMEE KSR
other comprehensive income LEREE 18 8,650 13,000
Pledged deposits e RN 22 5,500 11,000
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 25 20,375 21,415
1,589,307 1,524,474
Current assets REEE
Properties held under development Y 19 1,720,798 1,658,666
Properties held for sale HEMZE 20 237,021 392,406
Prepayments and other receivables TE A FRIR B A fE R IR 21 761,625 698,945
Tax recoverable AR B Fi I8 1,909 1,909
Contract cost assets BRI AE E 6 25,099 7,356
Pledged deposits BB TR 22 54,930 42,518
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHERS 22 434,572 291,705
3,235,954 3,093,505
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FERTER X 23 59,829 30,546
Accruals and other payables FEETFRIE I HoAtb FE T 5B 23 211,149 525,515
Contract liabilities AHEE 6 1,724,458 1,131,860
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 5,334 5,704
Provision for tax TR IR R 237,766 309,953
Bank loans IRITER 24 66,900 142,540
2,305,436 2,146,118
Net current assets RBEEFE 930,518 947,387
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAERS 2,519,825 2,471,861
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI R

As at 31 March 2023 R=F - =F=FA=+—H

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥T T AREFT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank loans IRITER 24 388,500 323,450
Lease liabilities HEB®E 29 19,503 10,537
Deferred tax liabilities EETRIBEE 25 131,474 123,798
539,477 457,785
Net assets FHEE 1,980,348 2,014,076
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of ARATEE AELER
the Company
Share capital A& A 26 20,735 20,735
Reserves e 27 1,662,099 1,688,213
1,682,834 1,708,948
Non-controlling interests EERER 297,514 305,128
Total equity S 1,980,348 2,014,076

These consolidated financial statements on page 128 to N FE128B EF248B VIR A MBMEEN T =F <
248 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of A= T\BEESZEIERKETE  WHUATESRE

directors on 28 June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: %=
Wong Lam Ping Wong Lui
SERRIK &=
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HE —F - =F =A=+—HIFFEZ

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

RLAEENERES
Fair value
through other Property Non-
Share Share Statutory  comprehensive  revaluation  Exchange Retained controling
capial premium’ reserve”  income reserve” TESeve eserve” profts* Total interests ~ Tofal equity
RARER
Afp2ENE hx
Rx RAEE  EERE GEGE  EfRE  EREE  BRER B keREs  EsEE
AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000
NEETT  A\EETT  AERTE NEKTL  A\EETT  NERTT ARETT ARETL  ARETT  ARETZ
Note27)  (Note 277f)) Note 271)) - (Nots 271
(Wtemy)  (Wzong) (Wtemy) (o)
A1 Aprl 2021 RZEZ-FMA-H 20,735 565,212 98,450 (18,560) - (18.309) 755,002 1,407,530 248,885 1,696,415
Transactons with onners BREARR
Dividend paic to owners of the Company BRERTRAALRE - - - = = = (20317) (20317) = (20317)
Acauistion of non-controling nterests WS = = = = = = (601) (601) (519) 1,120
Distroution to non-controling nterests MR AR - = = = = = = = (4%0) (t%0)
- - - - - - (20918 (20918 (1,009 21927)
Proft for the year R - - - - - - 259,119 269,119 57,262 316,371
Chenges in fair value of equity instuments at far -~ &2 A B L 2EUETIE
value through other comprefensive income JRETA DA ERY = = = 2703 = = = 2703 S 2703
Revaluation surplus upon ransfer fom property, €41 + BRRXEERE
plant and equipment to investment properties, &% 2 ERERHIEHER)
net of tax - - - - 58,600 - - 58,500 - 58,500
Exchange diferences on transation of fnancl -~ B85 £RHBRR
statements of foreign operations EiZE = = = = = 2014 = 2014 S 2014
Total compretensive income for the year FRzENREE - - - 2703 58500 2014 299,19 322,3% 57125 379,588
Transfer to tatutory resemes ERTLTEE - - 30,30 - - - (39,395) - -
At 31 March 2022 RZE-ZE=f=1-R 2,73 565,212 137,84 (15,857) 58,500 (11,295) 053808 1,708,948 305,128 2,014,076
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

KDAREARGRR
Fair value
through other Property Non-
Share Share Statutory ~ comprehensive  revaluation  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium* reserve®  income reserve* resenve reserve* profits* Total interests equity
ROAER

Eh2AE {H
B&  RBRE  EERE ERE  EMRE  ENRE  BRE & FERRE  RaEE
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RWB 000 RmB 000 RMB 000 RMB 00D RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRFT  ARRTR  AREFR ABRFT  ARRTR  ARKFT ARRTEL  ARKTR ARRFET ARRTR

(Note 27))  (Note 271 (Note 27(ii))  (Note 27(iy)

(e (Wtn) (Hitertio) — (Henty)

At 1 Aol 2022 W-E-#WA-A 20,13 565,212 137,845 (15,857) 58,500 (11,205) 953808 1,708,948 35128 2014076
Transacton with onners HEFAX S

Dividend paid o onners of the Company BREAAERAZRS o = = - - = (42.248) (42.248) - (42.248)
Proft for he year EREH - - - - - = 18,593 18,593 (1614 10979
Changes nfar value of equity nstuments at far ~— BRAERERAERETIE

velug through other comprehensive income (RETEZLAHERY = = = (4500) = = = (4,500) = (4,500)

Fxchange ifeences on transition offrenciel e

statements of foreign operations - - - - - 204 - 2,04 - 204
Total compretensive incone for the year - - - 4,500) - 2,04 18,593 16,134 (7614 8520
Transfer o statutory reserves - - 5,064 - - - (5,064) - - -
At 31 March 2023 HZBZZ£2f=1-R 2,13 565,212 142,909 (20357) 58,500 (9254) 925080 168203 21514 1980348

“ The aggregate amount of these balances of RMB1,662,099,000  * ZERBEHEEARK1,662,099,0000(ZF==F : AR
in surplus is included as reserves in the consolidated #1,688,213,000) st A\CEZ=F = A=+—H2ZH& MK
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023 RRKZ EEA ©
(2022:RMB1,688,213,000).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éiﬁrﬁ)ﬂbii

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

2023 2022
—E=F —=FE-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥ T ARBTFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHFECEESRE
Profit before income tax KR BT 15 35 BT s 1) 33,300 607,130
Adjustments for: BTFIIEE EL AR
Interest income ) BUA 6 (3,669) (3,594)
Interest expense T B 7 762 4,689
Amortisation of intangibles mREEEE 8 466 466
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMERETE
equipment 8 10,921 12,663
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 8 8,816 2,570
Written off of property, plant and equipment #fi$5%1% - = K& & 8 73 181
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - WE M REREEE
equipment 6 4,423 4,000
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRAEEERERE 6 5,000 -
Impairment loss on intangibles mEERERE 6 577 1,000
Impairment loss on properties held under — FAZ ¥ ¥E R EE1E
development 6 - 18,127
Loss allowance of other receivables B EGRIE 2 R R 8 5,448 2,132
Net fair value gain on investment properties & & Y2 M EE IR AW
and properties held for sale upon transfer — Z#&EWE 7 A ElE
to investment properties HEE 6 (18,702) (17,742)
Net gain on land resumption R W e S R 6 - (201,564)
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary 8 {EH & — M B A 7l 2 Yk 6 (13,551) =
Operating profit before working capital BIBEESB I KL G
changes 33,864 430,058
(Increase)/decrease in properties held under FHZEHH Y3 R EEME
development and properties held for sale (o), (273,160) 760,622
Increase in prepayments and other FE 208 [ H b fE U 3R IB
receivables 240 (89,191) (1565,099)
(Increase)/decrease in contract cost assets & 4Rk AN & 2 (3 0) 55 4 (17,743) 3,153
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank SRR TSR CEM),
balances N (137,459) 9,656
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable FETBRFRIE 11 CRLA>) 29,932 (2,636)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, other FEETFIE - HAbERFIE K
payables and contract liabilities AWaEEn R 659,002 (787,202)
Cash generated from operations REPTELIRS 205,245 258,532
Interest received EFE 3,669 3,594
Income tax paid BAATSH (85,792) (49,814)
Net cash generated from operating AR T B E I 2 F R
activities 123,122 212,332
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n_\éiﬁrﬁ)ﬂbii

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

2023 2022
—EB-=F —E -
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥ T ARBTFT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHFEERESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB - W= L& E (7,879) (29,684)
Cash outflow arising from deemed disposal & {£H & — M B A &)
of a subsidiary FTEARRE RN (17,767) -
Increase in pledged deposits [ e 6= il (6,912) (13,444)
Net cash used in investing activities RE BT F5E (32,558) (43,128)
Cash flows from financing activities METHFEEEESRE
Dividend paid to owners of the Company B AR GHES A2 A 35(b) (42,248) (20,317)
Proceeds from new bank and other loans 78847 & E fh B X AT 5018 35(b) 280,000 148,500
Repayments of bank and other loans EERITREMER 35(b) (290,590) (274,550)
Repayments of principal portion of lease ~ EEBEBEZ KL IHH
liabilities 35(b) (12,046) (2,736)
Distribution to non-controlling interests M IR EZS VR 7 IR - (490)
Proceed for acquisition of non-controlling U & JE1z p k25 P15 5018
interests - (1,120)
Interest paid B E 35(b) (22,313) (18,522)
Net cash used in financing activities BT 2 R (87,197) (169,235)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERBESEEY® M
cash equivalents CRA)Z%E 3,367 (31)
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net R FEH 2,041 2,014
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F#IR & KIEEHEY
the year 94,195 92,212
Cash and cash equivalents at end of EREASRRESEEY
the year 22 99,603 94,195
Analysis of the balances of cashand HE&RESZEBEYEL DT !
cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITHERR 434,572 291,705
Less: restricted bank balances W ZBREIRITEE R (334,969) (197,510)
99,603 94,195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 5
January 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the principal place of business of
the Company is located at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 128 to
248 have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
which collectively includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
and statement of financial position of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2023 were approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 28
June 2023.

— &R
EEEREEERAR(EAAT IR T ——F—H
AARBERE-NN\—FAaEEAFEETMK
VAERRBRETAT - ARAGEMEEMR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda e R A R]Z F EEE M BN HE SLEEAL
) S SR8 37395 AL P 2 R O BEE 1215 o

ARBZEBEBAREZER - XARMBARZ
EEZEBENGEMHRRMET

HNE128EEF248AZ AN BHRRERERE
SR AG(FEREHAQAEDRHZEEM KRS
EH(BREABERZ BB BHREER - FEE
ZH((EREHENDERB)MEH - KAV HR
RTBRBERAAKINETERARSMEARRAR
Er EmRATERRAUD ZBREERE

BE_Z_=—F=-A=+t—HLFEZAKERHRS
PBEBRRARBAUBRARER T _=F A
“HN\HEEES(EEEDIETIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In current year, the Group has adopted, for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA which are relevant to the
Group’s operations and effective for its consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 April 2022.

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS
HKFRSs 2018-2020 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS

417
Amendments to Reference to the
HKFRS 3 Conceptual Framework

Amendments to Proceeds before Intended
HKAS 16 Use'

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost
HKAS 37 of Fulfiling a Contract

None of these new HKFRSs has a material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior period.

The Group has not early applied any new HKFRSs
that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

The following new HKFRSs which are potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements have been issued but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as

HKAS 1 Current or Non-current?
Amendments to Presentation of financial
HKAS 1 statements — Non-current

liabilities with Covenants?

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

aitE%

REFE  AEBERRAUTHTESTNAE
FEmEASEEERBEYN T _—_FMOA—H
Fia 2 FE R ZARE M B BMRER 2T MEE
AR BRI AR B E(HI BB BREER])

BRI REER BRMBREEANER -
—E-N\FE BERM BTG EREY -

“TOTDEFRNE BRMBREENE165

REFTER 6 & BB G AR

FARIERTA)
BRMBREER SRR MR
E3RUEFTA)
BEAGREE 165 FREBEE ARl FTiS R
(AT )
BRI ENE37H BREMEEH - BITANMAR
(EFTA)

WEHBEM B REENEAREE NI BEN
BRRELRMBRRL BEALE -

AEEYERPEAEARNAE T FERRERD
Rl BB MRS R -

ATERNEEGEMBEHRREERE BB
BHREEAELRMEFRREN - BARELER
BB -

BRI EAE15 HRENERRELIFRE?
(EFTA)

BRGNS 1HR MBIk 2 25 - MERER
CHES FRBAME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o e B T M B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and Policies’

HKFRS Practise
Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates'

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'

Lease liability in a sale and
leaseback?®

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

. The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the

sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has concluded that the application of these
amendments will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

S EE(E)

BRI ENEIRE SR BRZIKE
AW HREER

BmEF2AR

(BETA)

BB EAE8 SR ZER
(EFTA)

BRGIENFE12] BRE-RXZELZEER
CHES REARMMELH A
BRI RERER EREERZTMNHEARE?

F165R(ERTA)
BRI BRERER ?x S EREBENA IR EDE
FIORNBEES ZBHESTAEES

R 2857 (IBETA)
; R-E-=4—H— B2 %H%m2 S EHHER
2 R-T-meE— B — Bk %5162 &R E R

8 HZEET AR ERRESE R MR ZRRABHN
FEARBEZBEERERIRA

AEBEEAEFEZSEIAEERAEAYRERS
EEZEE -  BAAKRERREAZFET AR
SHERAMBRRELEATE -

ERETHRME

RMEGEAVBRERARRZ TESFTBRBAER T
XBIERAER  BRZEFBRRCEBERRNA
BEZ2IFE - ROFI BBV BRELER LAY
AEBERA P BRR 2 FE(WNA) NI 2 EE -

~138  Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), except
when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that the accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business

TRETHEREG

32 HEEEREBAHE

combination (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to
the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition
of a business and control is transferred to the
Group. In determining whether a particular set
of activities and assets is a business, the Group
assesses whether the set of assets and activities
acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and
substantive processes and whether the acquired
set has the ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the
non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 3.2 HMEEEREKAH/HE

combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and
each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to
such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
palance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control of
the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

3.4

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
on the same basis as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (i) power
over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee; and (i) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment loss, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is also the functional
currency of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESBERMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 3.4 HEBRE(E)
In the individual financial statements of RERE B BRI EHRES - INER ZE A

the consolidated entities, foreign currency RGBT EXRRE BENEEB 2 NEE

transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into RMB at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such
exchange differences are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESBERMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.5 Revenue recognition 3.5 WARR

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the goods or service may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

For revenue from sale of properties and pre-
completion contracts for the sale of development
properties in the ordinary course of business,
customers obtain control of the properties when
the properties are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised when the
customers accept the properties. There is no
other goods or services agreed to be provided
in the contract and in practice. There is generally
only one performance obligation. Payments are
usually received in advance and recognised
as contract liabilities. Costs such as sales
commission directly attributable for obtaining a
pre-sale property contract, if recoverable, are
capitalised and recorded in contract cost assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o e B T M B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5

3.6

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease terms.

Chemistry, manufacturing and control (‘CMC”)
related services income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Consultancy service income is recognised when
the services are provided.

Revenue from the rendering of dental services
is recognised when the services have been
rendered given that such dental services are
generally completed within a short period of
time.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6

3.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Computers and other equipment 20.0%
Motor vehicles 20.0%
Buildings 2.5%
Leasehold improvement 25.0% or over the

lease terms,

whichever is shorter

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment
are retained in the consolidated financial
statements until they are no longer in use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7

Investment properties (Continued)

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting
date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time.

Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and the nature of the
investment properties. The carrying amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gain or loss arising from either a change in
fair value or the sale of investment properties
is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which it
arises.

For a transfer from properties held under
development and properties held for sale to
investment properties that is carried at fair value,
any difference between fair value of the property
at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Properties under construction or development
for future use as an investment property
are classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under
construction will be measured at cost until
such time as fair value can be determined or
construction is completed.

When the Group completes the construction or
development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value
of the property at the completion date and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment, intangibles, right-of-use assets,
and investments in subsidiaries to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset or cash-generating unit (“CGU”),
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8

3.9

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets. A CGU is
tested for impairment annually, by comparing
its carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to the assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. However, the
loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its
fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or
its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise
(i) leases which are short-term leases; and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of
low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date gave a lease term less
than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9 Leases (Continued) 3.9 MHE#E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (i) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories. Except for right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-of-use
asset at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, they are carried at fair value and for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
land and buildings held for own use, they are
carried at depreciated cost.

The Group accounts for land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation
purpose under HKAS 40 at fair value.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9 Leases (Continued) 3.9 MHE#E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBEREEA (E)
Lease liability HEARE
The lease liability is recognised at the present HEaBARYIINEERKRBBX N 2BER
value of the lease payments that are not paid HEREER - HENRDEREERASH
at the date of commencement of the lease. K(HZ T R A Z M T ) EITEIR © WX
The lease payments are discounted using the FEEEKGETF - AREEFERAEE 2L
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can SERFE -

be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the THNIER A ERIR AR 2 ABAARERE
underlying asset during the lease term that are BEERMZNFERABEENT : ()BT
not paid at the commencement date of the lease FOREMEWEEREE : (WS EABBHZ
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed B EFE 2B HEENREVARIEE K
payments less any lease incentives receivable; FE) (iR EARBRSGEEERESRSS
(ii) variable lease payments that depend on an B ZFRIE  (WBEREEZITHEE - AR
index or a rate, initially measured using the index FAAGERBERITEZERRE 0 R(V)MHHEE
or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts [T AT R LTS - RIEHEZ
expected to be payable by the lessee under NN

residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the REBBEE  AEBZRUTHARGEHEES

Group measures the lease liability by: & :

()  increasing the carrying amount to reflect () HNREBEARMEEEEZHNE
interest on the lease liability;

(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the (i) BMOBREEURMEL ZHAENR &
lease payments made; and

(i)  remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect (i) EHFEBEMEEIARMREMEFTERK
any reassessment or lease modification, or HEEHRSRMEETEEETHEN
to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease Koo

payments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHEHSEG@E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.9 Leases (Continued) 3.9 HEE)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBEREEA (E)
Lease liability (Continued) HEEBEE)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term
of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of
the lease liability to reflect the payments to make
over the revised term, which are discounted
using a revised discount rate. The carrying
value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when
the variable element of future lease payments
dependent on a rate or index is revised, except
the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the
carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the
revised carrying amount being amortised over
the remaining lease term. If the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any
further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the
contractual terms of a lease with the lessor,
if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the standalone price
for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the
modification is accounted for as a separate
lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated
increases the scope of the lease, the lease
liability is remeasured using the discount rate
applicable on the modification date, with the
right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same
amount. With the exception to which the
practical expedient for Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions applies, if the renegotiation results
in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both
the carrying amount of the lease liability and
right-of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease with any difference recognised in
profit or loss. The lease liability is then further
adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects
the amount of the renegotiated payments over
the renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable on
the modification date and the right-of-use asset
is adjusted by the same amount.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESBERMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.9 Leases (Continued) 3.9 HEE)
Accounting as a lessor ERBHBEAZ B EE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
leased assets to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration
for a lease that was not part of the original terms
and conditions of the lease are accounted for
as lease modifications. The Group accounts for
a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification,
recognising the remaining lease payments
as income on a either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the remaining
lease term.

3.10 Financial Instruments

(i)  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue.
A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

@

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirely
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. The measurement category
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments is as follows:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

FESHREME(F)

3.10 &R T A (&)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued) () =Z=HEEGE)
Equity instruments BRETA
On initial recognition of an equity RUITHERUIERIEEE AL RER
investment that is not held for trading, the B ASEIUATHEMEERNH
Group could irrevocably elect to present EmMEEFREINREAABEZEEE
subsequent changes in the investment’s B o ZBEEBDRBBIREEL - BAR
fair value in other comprehensive income. BEREMEEKRIIEZREREEA
This election is made on an investment- AREFE REWARBEFER @ KB
by-investment basis. Equity investments FER B W AR KRIBDIRER A 2 I
at FVOCI are measured at fair value. B o Efbies R EBFRENEM2EK
Dividend income are recognised in =R BYEENHEZER -8
profit or loss unless the dividend income HtwRETAESEAZAABERERS
clearly represents a recovery of part R-mAnBEEE - REERMNBEBAR
of the cost of the investments. Other BB R -
net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.

(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets (i) ZHEEZHEESE

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on
contract cost assets and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

AEBREOKAEERSREELTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for contract cost assets using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the
ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be default when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a
default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan or
advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including accounts payable, accruals
and other payables, lease liabilities and
bank and other loans. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation
process.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated at FVTPL is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee
contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the loss allowance, being the ECL
provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out
in note 3.10; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS
15.

3.
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3.10 &R T A (&)

(iv)

v)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Financial Instruments (Continued) 3.10 €@MITE(E)

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.11 Properties held under development

Properties held under development which
are held for future sale are included in current
assets and comprise land held under operating
lease (note 3.9) and aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages,
and other expenses (“development costs”).
Properties held under development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value
except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets upon
the application of HKFRS 16. Other expenses
included (a) those costs that are incurred in
bringing the properties held under development
to their present location and condition; and (b)
a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that
are incurred on development of properties.
Fixed overheads are indirect costs which remain
relatively constant regardless of the size or
volume of the development.

On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o e B T M B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11

3.12

3.13

Properties held under development
(Continued)

Properties held under development are classified
as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating
cycle.

Properties held for sale

In case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at
cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets upon the
application of HKFRS 16. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less estimated selling expenses.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or
prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according
to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on
the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as
a component of tax expense in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.13 FiEBli 2 gt EE ()

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.13 FiEBli 2 gt EE ()

An exception to the general requirement on HRTEEEHESERANETEAMEN
determining the appropriate tax rate used in —RBEEMS - B—EAFIINMER - BIEEME
measuring deferred tax amount is when an BIEEBGTEBFI05RREYE L AL B
investment property is carried at fair value BYER - BRIFZBEFER - TRINFIREY
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless EZBEERMBESBUNL S EREMERE
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax AZBE HERABREEHCRABEE - &
amounts on these investment properties are A FHEIT & Wi ARER R (M IER
measured using the tax rates that would apply BEE)MBREZYENBESNBRATDLEE
on sale of these investment properties at their FEAEN s BEENFER - 2B T
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The & -

presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through

sale.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities BEEMIBEEXBEC SN ERPRER - X

are recognised in profit or loss, or in other i H BN 2 E W EE RN ER IR

comprehensive income or directly in equity if AZEEER  AREMmEEKREREEZERE

they relate to items that are charged or credited HPHER o

to other comprehensive income or directly to

equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are BVEARRE IE & B R BN HATR IE B B E RN IA T B A

presented in net if, and only if, FREZ -

(@)  the Group has the legally enforceable right @ AEEBIKEEGATEFNEEER
to set off the recognised amounts; SEEH

(b)  current tax assets and current tax liabilities ) BHHELAERNPHREEENFES
are presented in net; and H s K&

() intends either to settle on a net basis, or € BMUNFHEERELE FARKEREENW
to realise the asset and settle the liability wEEE-
simultaneously.

~164  Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only fif,

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

3.15

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, less pledged deposits.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance which
is available to its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme by the
Group and employees are made based on a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.15 Retirement benefit costs and short-term

FESHREME(F)

3.15 RABRR AR & EEEF ()

employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group has participated in a local municipal
government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of basic
salaries of its employees to the Scheme
to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees in the PRC. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to
the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Scheme mentioned
above. The Group’s contributions to the
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short-term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.16 Provisions and contingent liabilities

3.16 BERIAREE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the
course of the allocation of purchase price to
the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition and subsequently
measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in a comparable provision
as described above and the amount initially
recognised less any accumulated amortisation,
if appropriate.

ERKEANBEFHAERAEIRLETR
£ AMRAEBHANKEENGINREITE
£ WAIBUS Rz SBIEH A S fAaTH - &K
SESHEIBME - WEB ZKEESEA - RlZ
B BEOETMEXHZREZTIEE -

PRARENS RS ANEN  XEHBARUR
BRIF I R (AT -

BRI < TR EIE - HEBEEHRE
SRELA G MEBEREERERS
RAE - HEBEMEING Z 7] g ERIEE RIER
Oh o AEB AL AR ETAGTAKE
BREE-FRIXZRIIAKET 2R 2 T
EEMMEE - MTERESKRAE  HEL
N ER N AT BE MR BIRRSD -

HRBBEIREBEEIREXRHAHTEA
BENBEZBRETHER - ARAFENTRK
BERZAAENE  HRAK DA LBE
TR BB ) SR 2 S BRI R
AHEHERME KR ETE -

EERREEMERAT o 2022/23 5% 167
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e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17

3.18

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other finance costs are expensed.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure
for the asset is incurred, borrowing costs are
incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are completed.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously
proposed and declared and consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as
a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.19 Government grants 3.19 BUNEERD

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable and
are recognised as other revenue, rather than
reducing the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a
below-market rate of interest is treated as a
government grant, measured as the difference
between proceeds received and the fair value
of the loan based on prevailing market interest
rates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20 Intangibles (other than goodwill)

@

(ii)

Intangibles acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangibles
acquired in a business combination
is fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently, intangibles with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-
line basis over their useful lives as follows.
Intangibles with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in administrative expenses.

15 years
10 years

Copyright
Customer relationships

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only
when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands, is
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(i

(ii)

FESHREME(F)

3.20 | EE (BB

BERUBCETLEENTLRAER
REBAHTRBZETLEERABR
WEASzARE - & JRFHE
Rz | EERK AR R AT #H K REt
MEEBAR o

BIEN AT A REHAREREED
ARAFMERZEYEERKAREMR
RERMEBBAR - B XN IERE
R WEAETEER -

hiw & 154F
EFEBE 104F
HERT

HERXENESHBREEEMES
MARFEBENZEME S EHETER -
FEEMRAX (BREARANAELERE
Kbz RO RELRERBEAER o

~170 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20 Intangibles (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment

Intangibles with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. Intangibles
with indefinite useful lives and intangibles
not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they
may be impaired. Intangibles are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts
(see note 3.8).

If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated
as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.21 Related parties 3.21 BERS
(@) A person or a close member of that @ MWM—BATBTIER  AlZATZ
person’s family is related to the Group if AT ZERRBHERNEEGRHE

that person:

()  has control or joint control over the ()  HZNER[E 7 2 i ok HE [R5 4
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the iy HEAEEEEATE: X
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management (iy BAKBSIARARGRGZEEE
personnel of the Group or the BAE -

Company’s parent.

Key management personnel are those persons FTEERBAERBENL AT EZEIEEME
having authority and responsibility for planning, B BIERIESIAEBSARRERZAE
directing, and controlling the activities of the BREASREREARFEMES(THREL BIHIT
Group or the Company, directly or indirectly, £%)-

including any directors (whether executive or
otherwise) of the Group or the Company.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of o) W—KEBRFE NIERGEH - BIER
the following conditions apply: SEBME

()  The entity and the Group are () %EBEAKEBR—SBEIKE
members of the same group (which NGRS S3/NETIN b = F/NC PSS
means that each parent, subsidiary WEBAREEMF A BEE) -
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint iy, —REBAZ EBIZBERAL
venture of the other entity (or an BEPE(EHA—REEKEARZ
associate or joint venture of a BERNRNEELE  ME—ZE
member of a group of which the RZEBZKERT]) -
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the iy MREBHRA -—F=F26%01
same third party. ¥

(v) One entity is a joint venture of a vy —REBEE-FHERBZAED
third entity and the other entity is an X ME—EBERBREZFE=-SERZ
associate of the third entity. /NS I
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTHBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.21 Related parties (Continued) 3.21 BAES ()

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply: (Continued)

(vy  The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

@)

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.

b) fH—HKERBITS TIMEMERE - BIEAR
SEERE : (B

V) EEBDAEERRAEEERE
2 B RIE B TR T 2 BRI
FIEHE -

Vi) RE@OFTHBIATEHZEER
YENBBREE(R S
AZEEE?

(i) ZEBERIEMBEBR 2EAKXER
RAAEBE S ANEBE T RARIRMEE
TEIEABR -

—BATZERRE SR ANER E’E‘%
RHIRBHEZBALTHIZBALRE
IR E - B

H#ETT
ZHK

) RBALZFREREBHFEMS
i) ZBALZEBIREFHBZTL: &

(i) ZBALTXZBALZEBHKEMFAE

BN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o e B T M B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

3.

FTESTTBERME(E)

3.22 5 ER &
AEERBEMBMITES 2 MU ZRTELRMA
#BEIRS Mi$$@¥%“%1¢;z%ﬁ4
KA ZEHRNIHEER  BREED I RE
BN EE K} o
RMBEREENTE  BRIEFES I EHEEMU

%Eiwﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁg FEIRE
g BREASER - BESHEEMRSKIZHR
B2 HAREERE ML A EAELY - T8
FEREREEDBIEEIE o W TBER
BAZEEHBEEZEZEZ KI5 » BT
GPFETE -

BEREHEE RAE

ﬁﬁ&%%ﬁ@ﬁﬂ&m¥&ﬁﬁlﬁhﬁﬁﬁ%

BT EARREM 2 SRR EITRERG -
AEEHARAKELERER - MAGH 2 EE
ioBARE ROUSEHMABERGERER - B

BT —EVRFEEENBERTEFEHENAE
ZEBRRZ B RERHBLWT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of investment properties, and
properties held for sale and property, plant

and equipment upon transfer to investment
properties

Properties held for sale and property, plant and
equipment upon transfer to investment properties of
the Group were stated at fair value in accordance with
the accounting policy. The fair value of the investment
properties is determined by a firm of independently
qualified professional surveyors and the fair values
of investment properties as at the reporting dates,
and properties held for sale and property, plant and
equipment upon transfer to investment properties
are set out in note 14. Such valuation was based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results.

Impairment of other receivables

The Group’s management assesses the collectability
of other receivables by determining future cash flows.
This estimate is based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates. Management will reassess the
provision at the reporting date. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such differences
will affect the carrying value of receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Net realisable value of properties held for sale
and properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value of
properties held for sale and properties held under
development by using prevailing market data such
as most recent sale transactions and valuation of the
projects in its existing partially completed state of
construction taking into account cost of work done,
and cost to completion from gross development value
assuming satisfactory completion.

4.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

EREFHE T R A B (&)

RENEURBRERENEZGENERDE -
BERRBEZAAE

AEBERERENEIFENERDE BER
RETIRBEATHRRZAAEIR - REVEZR
AERABLAEBREXNEMTERE - MRME
AHZREMEUNERERENEZHFEDER
WME BEEREBZAABAENKEI4 - BRMG
EDNRBEETRREE - EXTRERZMAR - A
AREEERERNBAERER -

Hfth UK E R E
REBZEEBERABTEARRES RETHHME
WkE Z AT E M o xRt D ERARIE HEKR K&
BHBERBREEL - REAEEBAES - B
BT R ATIE A st M IEE 2 SRR ERT
ERAZHASER  FTERASHE - TEER
WwE B E AT B - MIEEA RE R ARG T
BT R AREEETERKFEZRAE - I
At H ARGt RES PR REBSEELY
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FEVERRBHYEZTEERFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of properties held for
sale and properties held under development
(Continued)

These estimates require judgement as to the
anticipated sale prices by reference to recent
sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of new
property sales, marketing costs (including price
discounts required to stimulate sales) and the
expected costs of completion of properties, the
legal and regulatory framework and general market
conditions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
properties held under development and properties
held for sale as at 31 March 2023 were approximately
RMB1,720,798,000(2022: RMB1,658,666,000)
and RMB237,021,000 (2022: RMB392,406,000)
respectively.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for
similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value
in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the
performance of the assets of the CGU being tested.
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the discounted cash flow model as
well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The
key assumptions used to determine the recoverable
amount for the different CGUs, are disclosed and
further explained in note 16.

4.

EREFHE T R A B (&)

HEVMERABRDYRE 2 TSR FEE)

WWEREELXEMOMB 2 A PEERS - FY
XHEX - HEEBA(BEBREMBERTZE EY
FRTZHEFRAE - ZEREETRBUL KT
o HIEHEEELHE AEEREFRMERFT
EYEN S -_=F=ZA=+—HBZ2EEED 7
W EANRE1,720,798,000L(ZE-—F : AR
1,658,666,0007T) & A R#237,021,000c(ZE ==
&F . AR¥ES92,406,0007T) °

FEMEERE
EEEIRCELEU I RAEREE I KE
EEAAEREEXNAREEREEZREE)R
AFERE - 2 EREOERATIRERAF R
ETEBHNRNINBUEERER IR ABREEX
BRI ZTERLEEEZIRENAE - £
BEDVREBEHRRRERYAE - HEREAR
REFZREPFL  BETBEASERARAGE
TZERRS KRB WAARCELTELEER
RAZERARKKE - ARESHEERBERRERE
BAVE R 2 IR KA RFEAH R IR S RA KB IEHE
B2RRRLRER - AREETRRESELEN
ZAW OB BRERERNME16RERE - H
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on sale of properties held
for sale

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised at a
point in time when the buyer obtains control of the
completed property; otherwise, revenue is recognised
over time when the Group’s performance do not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Due to the contractual restrictions with the customer,
the Group shall not change or substitute the property
unit or redirect the property unit for another use and
thus the property unit does not have an alternative
use to the Group. However, it requires management
to exercise significant judgement to determine
whether there is an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date, which depends on
the terms of sales and purchase agreement and the
interpretation of the applicable laws that apply to
the contract. The Group has obtained legal counsel
opinion regarding the enforceability of the right
to payment for sales and purchase agreements.
Management uses judgements, based on legal
counsel opinion, to classify sales and purchase
agreements into those with right to payment for
performance completed to date and those without the
right.

The Group believes that its recognition basis of sales
of properties held for sale as set out in note 3.5 is
appropriate and is the current practice in the PRC.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision of taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation.
Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in periods in which such determination are made.

4.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

EREFHE T R A B (&)
HESEMEZBAER

EERRFOCRIMEZEHER  HEMERA
R CBA EAKRETEREBHMAIR
HAKEME AEEAAgZEEAARER LS
B SER B A B0 A Al ok BB TT WA B - URA
BERS EIRERR o

HRERZFPZANRSY  NREETFERIEHRY
XEM AWNEVEXBEMRSE  FALZVEBUYH
AEEMELEENAE - A BEEERERE
RAETABERE B BB MTENKEECS B X
FEHIER D 2 A 5K - Tk TS BURR B B 15 3 16 5k i
ARZEHNZERRE AN EEHEREEA
SREIMITRFKWERGIR - ARECESEZBERE
R-ERLZBREER  EEBERAE/EER
EOELSBREBCSEEXRBHIMDY 2 KK E
REWER A R -

AEERRMESSMBZ HEGEMERREER

BE - ARFETREEAER -

BV R B 08 R R AE B I A BT

AEBBBMNTRRDEER ZHIR - BERARE
ZEBR RN ABEHIR RS AELEARHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. ERETEFTRHEE)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax B HA 54 78 % 3 7E B 08 4 5 ()

(Continued)

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax NEBBHMPE L EER ([ LhEER]) -
(“LAT”) in the PRC. However, the implementation i RS T Tﬂmu&ﬁi&ﬁ%ﬂlﬁz#ﬁ&
and settlement of this tax varies among various tax EEAEMER - MAKE rﬁﬂiéﬁiﬂP B {A] H 75 75
jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has REEHE T HIEER A ERNRAE - Al + &
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with E TR ERE R H B T IR ERREELERH
any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, B o A"EEREEEERENMBEHEAZIERIED
significant judgement is required in determining the ZEEMET - BR T IGER

amount of the land appreciation and its related LAT.

The Group recognised LAT based on management’s

best estimates according to the understanding of the

tax rules.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. Zo#MER

An operating segment is a component of the Group EESBRENEAEEHARTPRIVKAREEER
that is engaged in business activities from which the ZEEE 2 AEBEKRT S AEBREBRET
Group may earn revenue and incur expenses, and HWITESTHESCHERNETERIELS S
is identified on the basis of the internal management FRFE2RNBEERERERETEES - E’Jtﬁﬁ
reporting information that is provided to and regularly 2IEEMs  RTEERELAEEEDE

reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in order
to allocate resources and assess performance of
the segment. For the years presented, executive
directors considered the segment from a business
perspective, including sale and leasing of self-
constructed properties (“Property Development”)
and other businesses (mainly including investment and
operation in CMC process and medical service sector)
(“Others”). The Group’s executive directors assess
the performance of the operating segments based on
the measure of segment result.

?‘EQL#@%E’Jiﬁﬁﬁfﬂfﬂwﬁﬁﬁﬁj)&ﬁﬁﬂ;ﬁﬂ‘%

(FTEBRECMCEREMBERBITENRENEE)

(FEﬁﬂJ) AEBMBORITEEUD BEBERIEZTE
B RRRE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) WER(E)
Property
Development Others Total
L e HAth &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFT AR¥FT AR¥ T
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-—Z2—-=
=A=t—HLFE
Segment revenue 2 EBUA 231,076 16,384 247,460
Revenue from external REMBEEZWA
customer 231,076 16,384 247,460
Segment profit/(loss) DEBER, (BB 82,650 (41,159) 41,491
Less: S
Unallocated expense* KoL BR* (8,191)
Profit before income tax R B 18 86 A& F 33,300
Income tax expense FiisfiMA > (22,321)
Profit for the year FRBEF 10,979
At 31 March 2023 R=-B=Z=#F
=A=t-H
Segment assets DEEEE 4,761,122 63,136 4,824,258
Other corporate assets HthREEE 1,003
Total assets wmEE 4,825,261
Segment liabilities DEBEE (2,817,562) (27,287) (2,844,849)
Other corporate liabilities HthEEE (64)
Total liabilities wmeE (2,844,913)
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by E B RS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DEERGE)
Property
Development Others Total
VIR Hth &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AR®TFT ARETFT
Other segment information: Hitn HER :
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-_ZE-_=%
ZSA=+—HLEE
Amortisation of Intangible assets /& &= # §5 - (466) (466)
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% « /= LR EITE
equipment (4,777) (6,144) (10,921)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FREEETE = (8,816) (8,816)
Impairment loss on property, plant  #1% - ME MR ERE
and equipment E5i8 - (4,423) (4,423)
Impairment loss on intangibles B EEREEE - (577) (577)
Impairment loss on right-of-use FREEERBEEIS
assets - (5,000) (5,000)
Loss allowance of other receivables H fih & Y 5018 7 18 s (5,000) (448) (5,448)
Interest income FEUA 3,667 2 3,669
Interest expenses FERX - (762) (762)
Gain on deemed disposal of a RIELE—BRBARZ
subsidiary Wz 13,551 - 13,551
Net fair value change of investment XE&EMEZ AR EEH
properties it 18,702 = 18,702
Capital expenditure on property, W - BEEREEZ
plant and equipment BEARAY (5,943) (1,936) (7,879)
Addition of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE = 20,642 20,642
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DWBER(E)
Property
Development Others Total
MR HAtb &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETFT

Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-—z—_—

=A=t—HLFE
Segment revenue 2 ZBU A 1,725,236 13,597 1,738,833
Revenue from external REMBEEZBA

customer 1,725,236 13,597 1,738,833

Segment profit/(loss) DEBER, (BB 634,505 (13,146) 621,359
Less: S
Unallocated expense* KoL BR* (14,229)
Profit before income tax R P8 B AR R 607,130
Income tax expense FriS i f (290,759)
Profit for the year FRHEF 316,371
At 31 March 2022 R-ZEBE-_—F

=A=t-H
Segment assets DEEEE 4,565,164 51,847 4,617,011
Other corporate assets HthEEE 968
Total assets HWEE 4,617,979
Segment liabilities DEBEE (2,584,437) (18,402) (2,602,839)
Other corporate liabilities HtEAE (1,064)
Total liabilities wmeE (2,603,903)

ek,
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by E B RS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DEERGE)
Property
Development Others Total
L EdEk Hith A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT ARET T
Other segment information: HihpEER :
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-Z_-C
=SA=+—BHLEE
Amortisation of intangible assets /& E 8§45 - (466) (466)
Depreciation of property, plantand #1% - WE RREITE
equipment (1,729) (10,934) (12,663)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FHEEETE = (2,570) (2,570)
Impairment loss on property, plant  #7%  E MR ERE
and equipment == = (4,000) (4,000)
Impairment loss on intangibles mEEEREBE - (1,000) (1,000)
Impairment loss on properties held [ & ) 3 (B 8518
under development (18,127) - (18,127)
Loss allowance of other receivables H b fEUI /IR 2 B 1R (49) (2,083) 2,132)
Interest income A EWA 3,549 45 3,594
Interest expenses FERXZ (4,315) (374) (4,689)
Net gain on land resumption T = F R 201,564 S 201,564
Net fair value change of investment &M ¥E 2 AR EE
properties P 17,742 = 17,742
Capital expenditure on property, W - BERE#E2ER
plant and equipment Fl 2 (13,233) (16,451) (29,684)
Addition of right-of-use assets FRREERNE = 3,278 3,278

*

The unallocated expenses mainly consist of staff cost,

directors’ emolument and exchange difference.

ANEEBERIZREETINA EFEHeRERER -

The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment,
the location of the operation. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the majority of the Group’s
operation and centre of management are sourced
from its subsidiaries in the PRC, which considered
that the operation base of the Group is domiciled in
the PRC, as one geographical location and therefore,
no analysis of geographical information is presented.

The total revenue from external customers is mainly
sourced from the PRC. The total revenue is disclosed

in note 6.

There is no single customer that contributed to 10%

- = or:more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended

" 31 March 2023 and 2022.

BEFRDEEMEMBUEIAZEEERME
WREE  HAYE BEMRBINEEEZHN
EHHERELE - ARFEERR  AEERZEE
ENEERLHFRAEERTENBAR R RN
SEzEEEMONTE  SE—MEVE - Fit
WS HH IR E R DT o

HNBEF 2 RANREEBRERE o WA BB
SEOHE -

BE 2 _=ZFk-_F-__F=ZA=+—81t#HF
B WES-—XFEAREBRT10%IA EWA °
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA  HtmAURHMBKERER
GAINS AND LOSSES

The Group’s revenue, other income and other gains REZARER Z WA « E b UA BA K U a5 K &

and losses recognised during the year are as follows: BT
2023 2022
—EB-=F —=F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥TF T ARKTFT
Revenue from contracts with RIEBEBHMERELEAE155
customers under HKFRS 15 REEFEHZWA
Sales of properties held for sale HEFEWE 181,482 1,667,208
CMC related service income CMCHE 78 A 75 U A 9,400 8,613
Dental service income M g8 i AR TS A 6,984 4,601
Consultancy service income A AR TS WA = 383
197,866 1,680,805
Revenue from other source REEMRFEZ WA
Rental income He WA 49,594 58,028
247,460 1,738,833
Timing of revenue recognition under HKFRS 15 RIE & B B iR & 2 B FE155%
U A Z B
Goods or services transferred at a point in time R3S ZHEERE ~ B Ve IR7E 190,882 1,676,204
Service transferred over time BERF Y 2 RIS 6,984 4,601
197,866 1,680,805
Other income and other gains and losses ~ HWA UK HtE R EE
Exchange gain, net e Gy 471 3,659
Government grants* & Bh* 950 676
Impairment loss on property, plant and VI - BE R EREEE
equipment (note 13) (Hta£13) (4,423) (4,000
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets (note 15) {& FAEE EREEIE (H1:F15) (5,000) S
Impairment loss on intangibles (note 16) EREEREBEH 16 (577) (1,000)
Impairment loss on properties held under FZ R YR EE R
development (note 19) (Htat19) = (18,127)
Interest income FEHA
— from bank deposits - JRBRITEXK 3,669 3,594
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELE—FMB AR 2 WS
(note 31) (Hta#31) 13,551 S
Net fair value gain on investment properties WEME 2 A EWEFRE
(note 14) (Hiit14) 18,702 17,742
Net gain on land resumption (note 23(b)) I b Uk R M 2 BB (B 22 23(b) = 201,564
Sundry income T A 496 705
27,839 204,813
The Group received unconditional discretionary grants - AEBEKRERE AT RBNRE SR ETES 7

from the relevant PRC government authorities in support
of enterprise operating in specified industry.

B BGHRIEER -

ek,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by E B RS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6.

GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The following table provides information about
contract cost assets from contracts with customers.

WA - E A BA R Bt i 28 e 5 18 ()

TREREEFANZEHNRAEERB ZER -

2023 2022
—_E_= —EF-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBTF T

Contract cost assets BHIKAREBE 25,099 7,356

Contract cost assets mainly related to the incremental
cost for the sales of properties.

Contract costs capitalised related to the incremental
sales commissions paid to property agents whose
selling activities resulted in customers entering into
sale and purchase agreements for the Group’s
properties which were still under construction at the
reporting date. Contract costs will be recognised
as part of “selling and distribution expenses” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which revenue from the related property
sales is recognised. During the year, contract cost
as of 31 March 2022 of RMB450,000 (31 March
2021: RMB8,701,000) was recognised in selling
and distribution expenses. There was no impairment
in relation to the costs capitalised during the year
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022. The following table
provides information about contract liabilities from
contracts with customers.

BHRABEETERMEHE ZIREXNLEH -

BREEHRABRSINTYMEREZEEHERS
Bl MEREBZHERHERR L AEAEE N W
ERHMNERIMEVEEHZ - SHKNAER
HREEYEHERABBBARGE 2EHKERER
BIHERDHERIZ—BH - RAFE HEZ
T F=A=T—HZEHKETARK450,0007T
T —F=A=+—H: AR¥S8,701,00070) R A
HERDHER BETE-_=—FR-FT__F=
A=T—BLFE BEEHEERCKNEZRE -
TRIEHEHETFENZENEBERERCER -

2023 2022
—E-= '
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARBTT

Contract liabilities AHEE

Contract liabilities mainly related to the deposits
received from customers for sales of properties.

1,724,458 1,131,860

BHEETEENEEMEREPEEZ2EESA

%
5

ol
sl

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA - HAUREMYEREE(E)
GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)
Contract liabilities of approximately RMB144,734,000 RZE_ZF=ZA=+—H aRNEBBEHARK
as of 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: 144,734,000 (ZE=-—F=ZA=+—H : AR¥
RMB1,540,514,000) were recognised as revenue 1,540,514,00070) ERABF AR BB P BRI 2 I
during the year from acceptance of properties by A MRZEZ=FR-_FE-__F=A=+—HZ
customers and the contract liabilities as at 31 March EHBEREBRARPIE 2 BIWMAE -
2023 and 2022 were arising from the advance
considerations received from customers.
As at 31 March 2023, contract liabilities or the RZEZ=F=A=+—H AHEBEHXRER
aggregated amount of the deposits received from SEREEARBTEONEERR I ESETERD
the remaining performance obligations under the BARYA1,724,458,0000 (ZFE_—F : AR
Group’s existing contracts was approximately 1,131,860,0007T) ° Wt & REIETAEIAE R PRI
RMB1,724,458,000 (2022: RMB1,131,860,000). R RER 2 WA o RE B KR B 18 FEET R R K24 E
This amount represents revenue expected to be AEA)ERIEHRA o
recognised in the future from acceptance of properties
by customers. The Group will recognise the expected
revenue in future, which is expected to occur in the
next 24 months.
FINANCE COSTS 7. ®ERE
2023 2022
—E-= —ZF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTFT
Interest charges on financial liabilities REBHEEATERz2EMEE
stated at amortised cost: ZREM%
Bank loans RITERK 21,551 15,707
Other loans HEMmER - 2,441
Lease liabilities HEAE 762 374
22,313 18,522
Less: amount capitalised in properties held B BRERERFAEF
under development ME2 &5 (21,551) (13,833)
762 4,689

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings
was 4.7% (2022: 2.9%) per annum for the year.

FREBEZNMEFTHERERAEF4TH (=T =
T 1 2.9%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by E B RS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

8. FRFTEBIAIEF

2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR FT
Profit before income tax is arrived at after B BT{S F Al s A1) T &8 30Bk

charging/(crediting): GFA AT &IEBED :

Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN € 997 932
Cost of properties held for sale recognised as ~ FER AR X 2 15 E YRR

expense 122,822 1,205,543
Amortisation of intangibles (note 16) EREESE(WE16) 466 466
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BiE kREITE

(note 13(b)) (H15£13(b)) 10,921 12,663
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) FEREEENE W HE15) 8,816 2,570
Loss allowance of other receivables H b Uk R I8 2 B 5,448 2,132
Written off of property, plant and equipment M - BRE K&

(note 13) (Hat13) 73 181
Short-term lease expenses HHHERY 134 427
Outgoings in respect of investment properties ~ ELFERNEAR WA 2

that generated rental income during the year REMEBB I FAX 2,425 318
Employee costs, including Directors’ EEXNTN(BIEESHE)

emoluments (note 12) (Htat12)

- Wages and salaries - TEEF® 43,650 39,943

- Retirement benefit scheme contributions — —RIREFET IR -

defined contribution plans TERAEFRETE 4,019 2,952

Less: amount capitalised in properties held B BEWERIEARER
under development MEZ TR (5,354) (5,085)
42,315 37,810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

EIT has been provided on the estimated assessable
profits of subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25%
(2022: 25%).

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign
investor for the dividends distributed out of the profits
generated by the foreign investment enterprises. The
Group’s applicable withholding income tax rate is at
5% (2022: 5%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost and land use rights,
borrowing costs, business tax and all property
development expenditures. The tax is incurred
upon transfer of property ownership. There are
certain exemptions available for the sales of ordinary
residential properties if the appreciation values do not
exceed 20% of the total deductible items (as defined
in the relevant PRC tax laws). Sales of commercial
properties are not eligible for such an exemption.

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FifBFmX
2023 2022
—EBE-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTF T
Current tax - the PRC BIERBiIE -
Current year REE

~ Enterprise income tax (“EIT”) - EMEH
([EmEBHD 10,347 199,544
- LAT - THbIEE 3,258 93,657
13,605 293,201
Deferred income tax (note 25) EFEFT B8 (A 2#25) 8,716 (2,442
Total income tax expense e EE 22,321 290,759

CEMSHRDIMETELLE ZHMB LR 2 AT ER
B FR25% (=T = Z 4 : 25%) fEH B -

REBEFRTCEMSTE  HINEEEERRINGE
TtEMEEZEMNDRZEEHKCEENAS
Mo AEEBRAZENAEHRHERE N (ZTE =
&1 5%) o

THEREREIHEEZIBENREREI0NE
60% =M - L EEZIBERHEEWMEXMETER
AHRAY - BFRLHERERAN - FERAE - &
EVEFAENEERAS - BARYMEHRARER
REL - HE-—REETMEAESTHL - HEEE
B AR R IR B (E& RERTELR) BE 2
20% - SHEBMEMEABERESEER R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on
the first Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million (2022: 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million).
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits arising in
or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:

P8 X (5])

HAERF RNz a2aE8 B T((BT])IA8.25%5t
EEBANEH > M2BBBTIA EN G ERFEER
A16.5%TEBABFGH(ZE_2F : B2ASATT
et ERFHEFIA8.25% 1 i 2 E BB T A st
FERBL ) FI A 16.5%51 ) - AR AEER ZMEF
ERYEEESEERESTM G ERRER -
WA EEH B BFISHRE -

REAREGEMGHRAIEG RN 2 HEN
T

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥ T AREFT
Profit before income tax B BT 1S 50 B4 A 33,300 607,130
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at BRI AT M A8 -
the rates applicable to profit in the jurisdiction & BRI e AREREF 2
concerned HEABEE 8,325 151,783
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBBAZHIBLE (1,731) (5,112)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DA B S 2 IR B 8,631 55,864
Provision of LAT for the year FRN IR ER A 3,258 93,657
Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable JEAT IR ER 2 S EFTSH
AR E (815) (23,414)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERTIEEE ZHIBEFE 4,653 17,231
Tax effect of withholding tax AR 2 a2 - 750
Income tax expense FREBimMX< 22,321 290,759
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TF T AREFT
Final and special dividend paid in respect of mE—FEZRSREBERS
prior year at HK$0.01 (2022: HK$0.01) RA/0.01 BT(ZETE==
and HK$0.01 (2022: nil) per ordinary share % : 0.01%7T) X0.01% T
respectively (ZEZZF BT ZK
HA R AR B 42,248 20,317

On 25 June 2021, the directors proposed a first
and final dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share,
amounting to approximately HK$24,640,000
(equivalent to RMB20,317,000) for the year ended 31
March 2021, and formal approval by the shareholders
was obtained at the annual general meeting held on
20 August 2021.

On 28 June 2022, the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share and a special
dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share, amounting
to approximately HK$49,280,000 (equivalent to
RMB42,248,000) for the year ended 31 March 2022,
and formal approval by the shareholders was obtained
at the annual general meeting held on 30 September
2022.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2023.

EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company of approximately
RMB18,5983,000 (2022: RMB259,119,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,464,000,000 (2022: 2,464,000,000) during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the
basic earnings per share, as the Group has no dilutive
potential shares during the current and prior years.

11.

R-ZE-—FEXA-+HAB  BEEHRNEE-
S FZAZ+—BHULEFEVHERPRESR
TBEAR0.017E T & £ 4924,640,0008 7T (FHE R A
R#20,317,0007T) " WER-_ZE-_—F/\A=+H
BT ZREREAF KRG FRSRREXE -

RZBE-—FRNAZFTNH  EFEZRNEHZC
T A+ BUEFEREREER T ER
0.01 BRI EFREMIL0.01BT » &HK
49,280,000/ 7T (B E X AR 42,248,0007T) * A=
T ZHFNAZTABOZRFBFRE LREKR
RIER LA ©

EEeCRATREIMNEBE T _=F=A=1—
B IEF IR REIALS -

RAFEBABERN 2 BREF

ERERBFIDREARAEEAEMLFR
HAHARE18,593,000t(Z T - —F : A
R#259,119,0007T) & F A & i A% hn # 19 &
2,464,000,0008% (= Z = — £ : 2,464,000,0008%) &+

b

ﬁo

R ASREEAFERBAEFREALEEEHER
0 MEREERNESREXAZNER -

EREREBAERAF o 2022/23 Fi




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by E B RS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the

12. EXFH - ZEESFHMALRSREEEMS

(a)

ExMS

Rz EmAR R R EE R RGP 2 R AR E P

Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements BoEEMeMT -
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as
follows:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
e 28 BIRER
we  REAEN ML HE [ -y
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETZ
Year ended 31 March 2023 HE-B-ZEZR
St-HLEE
Executive drectors HITEE
Mr. Wong Lam Ping Ik EE 875 = 289 = 1,164
Mr. Shi Feng bal- 265 = > = 265
Mr. Wong Lui ik e 567 - 174 31 772
Ms. Gao Lan BEZT 241 = - = 241
Non-executive director JHTEE
Mr. Chan Kin Sang R xE 247 = = = 247
Independent non-executive directors  BUFHITEE
Mr. Xie Gang BRI 105 = = = 105
Mr. He Ding Ding BT T4 105 = = = 105
Mr. Wong Ping Kuen aMELE 157 - 5 - 157
2,562 - 463 31 3,056
Year ended 31 March 2022 HE-Z-—F=f
=+—BLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Wong Lam Ping STk LS 875 = 167 = 1,042
Mr. Shi Feng Rlg%E 265 = = = 265
Mr. Wong Lui ik e 567 = 143 30 740
Ms. Gao Lan REZT 241 = = 5 246
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Chan Kin Sang REEEEE 233 = = = 233
Independent non-executive directors B TEE
Mr. Xie Gang BRI A 9 = = = 99
Mr. He Ding Ding ETTRE 9 = = = 99
Mr. Wong Ping Kuen BEMELE 148 = = = 148
2,527 - 310 35 2,872
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

There is no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2022: nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group include three (2022: two)
directors, whose emoluments are included
in the disclosures above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2022: three) highest paid
individuals, whose emoluments fell within the
salary bands of HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
(2022: two within the salary band of nil to
HK$1,000,000 and one within the salary band
of HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000), for the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 were as
follows:

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

ExFH RS FMALIRSREEEMS

(%)

(a)

(b)

EEMS (@
FAN - BEEEHREXREREZEETAHNE 2L
(T F + #|,) -

TEBREFMAL
AEBREReFTWALEE=Z2( =2 ==
FMB)ES  EMSIN EXZHEE - #
EE-FRZE-F=R=+—HI
FE - BTME(CE-__F: ZR)55%H
A T2 Bil<€ (FF<&E N F1,000,001E 7T
Z2,000,0008L(ZTEZ2F : MEFH o EHE
N FEZE1,000,0008 LR —EFHcE@EN T
1,000,00178 7C £2,000,000 7)) 40T

2023 2022

—=E_—= —E-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREFT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R REMER 1,688 1,807
Discretionary bonuses IS5 IEAL 428 356
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRIRBFETBIER 31 65
2,147 2,228

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office during the
year (2022: nil).

Senior management emolument

The emoluments paid or payable to members of
non-director senior management were within the
following bands:

(c)

FA - AEERERNENESHSZSHEMAL
SN EMMESERIMARIMAREER R 2 2E)
FEERHECT_—F |

EREEEHS
ENSENEESRAEEERE M RE
m :

#

2023 2022

—E_= —E-—F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0005% 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T 2 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. M¥  BERRE
Computers
and other Motor Buildings Leasehold
equipment vehicles (note (a))  improvement Total
Bk BF HE
Hit R e (Hiit(a) NEKE @t

RMB00O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000 ~ RMBOO0  RMB'000
ABKTT  AREFT ARETT AREFTT ARETT

At 1 April 2021 R-E--¥WMA—H
Cost 3% 20,410 3,878 56,434 26,737 107,459
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (9,433) (3,738) (8,480) (6,527) (28,178)
Net carrying amount REFE 10,977 140 47,954 20,210 79,281
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-Z--f#=R=1
—-ALLEE

Opening net carrying amount HOERRFE 10,977 140 47,954 20,210 79,281
Additions NE 7,309 = = 22,375 29,684
Transfer to investment properties BREGENE

(note 14) (W7t 14) - - (39,958) = (39,958)
Depreciation (note (b)) WEWzb) (2,806) (62) (1,423) (11,207) (15,498)
Write-off sy (181) = = = (181)
Impairment (note 16) wiE (i 16) (4,000) S S S (4,000)
Closing net carrying amount HREREFE 11,299 78 6,573 31,378 49,328

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R-Z-Z&

ZA=t+-Hk
“E--fWA-A
Cost D% 22,833 3,878 8,919 49,112 84,742
Accumulated depreciation and ZHFTERRE
impairment (11,534) (3,800) (2,346) (17,734) (35,414)
Net carrying amount RERE 11,299 78 6,573 31,378 49,328
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - BERRMEE)

(CONTINUED)
Computers
and other Motor Buildings  Leasehold
equipment vehicles (note (a)) improvement Total
Bl K ¥ HE
Hitr RE (H1it(a) ES0 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFR
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-E-—f
ZAZ+-HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount HOERRFE 11,299 78 6,573 31,378 49,328
Additions NE 1,947 828 - 5,104 7,879
Depreciation (note (b)) WEWFb) (2,391) 7 (1,423) (9,461) (13,282)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary BRIELE—HNB
(note 31) AR(H5E31) (569) = = = (569)
Write-off g - (73) - - (73)
Impairment (note 16) WEWE16) (4,423) - - - (4,423)
Closing net carrying amount MREEFE 5,863 826 5,150 27,021 38,860
At 31 March 2023 AZBZZE
=A=+-H
Cost AR 14,349 4,626 8,919 54,216 82,110
Accumulated depreciation and ZHFERRE
impairment (8,486) (3,800) (3,769) (27,195) (43,250)
Net carrying amount IREFE 5,863 826 5,150 27,021 38,360

At 31 March 2023, the Group’s certain buildings of
RMB5,150,000 (2022: RMB6,573,000) were pledged
for bank loans (note 24) of the Group.

RZB_=F=ZA=+—H XEEAR¥%

5,150,000t (

— = — —

=

F: AR¥6,573,0007T) 2 &

TRFREERASEZRITER(FHE24) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y%  WERRZREE)
(CONTINUED)
Notes: Bfet -
(@)  Buildings held by the Group are located in the PRC. @ AKEFEZEFMARFTEH -
(o)  Depreciation charges have been included in: () WERIZBFA:
2023 2022
—EB-=F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Consolidated statement of financial position RE ISR R
— capitalised in properties held under development — EAR(LIE AR Z R Y% 2,361 2,835
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 434 2 EWE &
- selling and distribution expenses -HERNIHER 29 17
— administrative expenses - BIEEH 10,892 12,646
10,921 12,663
13,282 15,498
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEWE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT ARBTFT
At beginning of the year REY] 1,410,742 1,127,324
Transfer from properties held for sale SRS S L3 97,196 184,758
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BYWE  KERREER - 117,958
Net fair value change charged to the e e2EkER
consolidated statement of comprehensive ZRAREEEFE
income (16,788) (19,298)
At end of the year REFER 1,491,150 1,410,742
The investment properties included property interest REYESEMNPABRE LY - HEHR
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring ZEN=FETANF L ECEZZF  ZFNWN
from 2043 to 2054 (2022: from 2043 to 2054). As —FE-TRANF2EER RZTEZ=F K=
at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the building ownership ZZ_F=ZA=+—0 XEBETREVEHK
certificates of certain investment properties of the BISEEMBREZE - AEBE 2B IHBNEEERR
Group have not yet been obtained. In the opinion of B AEEAEESEENAEE &L EER
the independent PRC legal advisors of the Group, WEERFRNEEMERERZEREYE -

the Group is entitled to obtain the building ownership
certificates without legal impediment and is entitled
to lawfully and validly use the investment properties
during the year.

At 31 March 2023, investment properties RZZEZ=F=A=+—H RBREMEHARK
of approximately RMB720,000,000 (2022: 720,000,000t (=& = =4 : AR¥738,535,0007T)
RMB738,535,000) were pledged against bank loans REERAREE 2 BITERFFE24) -

of the Group (note 24).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o e B T M B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties are leased to non-related
parties under operating lease (note 29).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, properties
held for sale with carrying value of approximately
RMB61,706,000 (2022: RMB147,718,000) (note 20)
were transferred to investment properties as these
properties were under operating lease arrangements
with third parties during the year to earn rental, rather
than for sale in the ordinary course of business of the
Group. The fair value gain of these properties upon
transfer to investment properties was approximately
RMB35,490,000 (2022: RMB37,040,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, property, plant
and equipment with carrying value of approximately
RMB39,958,000 (note 13) were transferred to
investment properties as these properties as these
properties were under operating lease arrangements
with third parties during the year to earn rental, rather
than for sale or own use in the ordinary course of
business of the Group. The fair value gain of these
properties upon transfer to investment properties was
approximately RMB78,000,000 and credited to other
comprehensive income for the year, net of income
tax expense of approximately RMB19,500,000, as
property revaluation reserve. During the year ended
31 March 2023, no property, plant and equipment
were transferred to investment property.

The total net fair value gain of investment properties
of approximately RMB18,702,000 (2022:
RMB17,742,000) was credited to profit or loss for the
year.

14.

REWME (R
BREMEIRBELHENE TIRAES (IFE29) -

BE-_ZT_=F=A=+—HILEE EEE
WA ANREB1,706,000(ZT-—F : AR
147,718, 0007E>Z?—ir%m%mt%zom%é?é&é%
¥ RRERZSYENBREBEFREF=HIIUZE
LHETHRDES  MIERNLAEERAFERKBRE
FHE REEREREMEZVEZ RER
HH B ARES5,490,000c(ZE-—F : AR
37,040,0007T) ©

BHE-_Z-_—_F=ZA=+—HILFE KEEHNSE
AR %39,958,0007T 2 1% - BB Rk (HFE13) 8
BEREDNE  REAAZEWEDBREFRNEE=
FEIMzEeHETERIAES  MIEREAEER
BEBARTHEXER - 2SEBEEREMEL
YEZ AR BERZEL B ARET78,000,0005T © W E

RYERERBEHEFAFRAEMZERE HRAEHR
x4 AKR¥19,500,0007T) - B#E_T_=F=H
S+t HLESFE BEDE BEMRBERER
=L/

REMEZAABRBFEARODARE
18,702,0007T (= F == : AK®17,742,0007T) 5t
AFREE °
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the investment properties at 31
March 2023 and 2022 was revalued by Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional surveyors
who have the recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, which was based
on the direct comparison approach, assuming sale
of the property interests in their existing state with
the benefit of immediate vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market while appropriate
adjustments and analysis are considered to the
differences in location, size and other characters
between the comparable properties and the subject
properties; and the income approach by taking
into account the net rental income derived from
its existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the leases, which have been
then capitalised to determine the market value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate; and the discounted
cash flow analysis that requires periodic net cash
flows to be forecasted over the life of the investment
and discounted at a risk-adjusted opportunity cost
of capital to arrive at a project value, taking into
consideration the year by year net cash flows, and
having regard to the assumptions made relating to
rental growth projections, vacancies and rent free.

14.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

BREWE(E)

REMER T -_=FR T -_—"F=ZA=+—H
ZAREIIHEGEEBRARHEDENBNE KER
KB BUAEREENSMITHRER TR
ETERERERARETENGHE - BELNUE
BLEEAKE  BEVERIFEREMRRENE
RELRE  W2EHRETMBAISAELBRBEER
A ENBRYEREEYEEMNE RIERH
ES B ZREHBEERABLON 0 AR
ANEBRE s REEREREMERK,SHER
s FA BBz ASWAERE  IHBEERE
ERBRAELEERE  BHSBAREEZER
fEbEEREABEEMHER © URETEAMIAR
ERENT  BEEEOMARNKEFHRIENA
HEBRSREFE  WIREAZERABKER A
BB EHBEEE  EHheEEMHeRE
Bl mERRBHEMEZBH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. BEWE(E)
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 WEYMEZ AR BEBIREEERREE - T
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of NRERRAEEHZ HREHIIMT -
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided
below.
2023 2022
== —ZF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMFIT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FHEH(EIEEEDR
B) 1,410,742 1,127,324
Transfer from properties held for sale B S YR 97,196 184,758
Transfer from property, plant and equipment Y - R KRR = 117,958
Change in revaluation of investment properties T AEMRA Z R EYESH
included in other income o) (16,788) (19,298)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FREB(EIREEERA
18) 1,491,150 1,410,742

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the year =8 =+ — HAETHFEERT
included in profit or loss for assets held at 31 A 2 FRARE IR R K
March (note 6) B2 s (fite) 18,702 17,742
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWHEGE)
The following table shows the significant unobservable TRIREEBRANFIBHERTI]EREAH
inputs used in the valuation model. 7% o
Fair Significant Range of  Relationship of
value Valuation unobservable unobservable unobservable Inputs
Properties hierarchy  technique inputs inputs  to fair value
AR EART THRE TABEHA
L/ES EER HERN BEBAYE WAHEBZEE HEEALENBR
Commercial offices in the 3 Direct comparison (Discount)/premium on (100% —2.9%  The higher the discount, the
PRC approach quality of the (2022: (14.4)% — lower the fair value, the
property 4.0%) higher the premium, the
higher the fair value
RECEERDE 3 EEEH®E MELR L (E)/ (10%-2.9% &S RAELE -
1B (ZZ==F: HEBS  AAEYS
(14.4)% - 4.0%)
Commercial offices in the 3 Discounted cash Discount rate 8%  The higher the discount rate,
PRC flow approach (2022: 8%) the lower the fair value
HEZEERLE 3 MERBENEE  HRE 8% HMREHE AnEWE
(ZZZZ%:8%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Direct comparison Discount on quality of 6.5%-41.7%  The higher the discount, the
approach the property (2022: 11.6% ~ lower the fair value
47.7%)
hE EREN 3 HEMEE NEERZIE 65%-41.7% frEHdE  AREEE
(ZZ2-=%:
11.6% ~ 47.7%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Income approach Term yield 2.5% (2022: 2.5%)  The higher the term yield, the
lower the fair value
B EREL 3 WAE THE A% 25% MHBNEENS  RAEBE
(ZB=—%F :25%)
Reversionary yield 3% (2022: 2.5%)  The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair value
B 3% EHRRREMS AREWE
(CBE- % :25%)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques FAMERMTEEE -
during the years.
The fair value measurement is based on the above ARBEFEDERLLAME ZRkRERG(EE
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ ERARTEER) -

from their actual use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by E B RS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. FHAEEE
Premises
leased for
own use Machinery Total
BAHEEY s et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-_—FWmA—H 15,155 - 15,155
Additions = - 3,278 3,278
Depreciation e (2,352) (218) (2,570)
At 31 March 2022 R-ZZB-Z=fF
=A=+—H 12,803 3,060 15,863
At 31 March 2022 NR-E-—F
=HA=t+-—H
Cost BN 16,496 3,278 19,774
Accumulated depreciation 2FhE (3,693) (218) (3,911)
Net carrying amount REFE 12,803 3,060 15,863
At 1 April 2022 R-E--_FWMA—H 12,803 3,060 15,863
Additions = - 20,642 20,642
Depreciation e (3,075) (5,741) (8,816)
Impairment (note 16) BB KT 16) = (5,000) (5,000)
As 31 March 2023 R-—B-=%
=A=+—H 9,728 12,961 22,689
At 31 March 2023 R-ZZBZ=F
=HA=+-—H
Cost B AR 16,496 18,920 35,416
Accumulated depreciation and BRI E RE
impairment (6,768) (5,959) (12,727)
Net carrying amount BRHEFE 9,728 12,961 22,689
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

INTANGIBLES 16. B EE
Customer
Copyright relationships Total
hix A EFB& et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
At 1 April 2021 R-ZBE-—FNMA—H
Cost AR 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and REH BB NORE
impairment (8,843) (8,670) (12,513)
Net carrying amount BRENFE 3,157 1,435 4,592
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-—T——
ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount HAYIEREFE 3,157 1,435 4,592
Amortisation B 5K (287) (179) (466)
Impairment NERIE] (500) (500) (1,000)
Closing net carrying BARBRTE FE
amount 2,370 756 3,126
At 31 March 2022 and N-EBE-_—&
1 April 2022 =Z=A=+t—HK
—E-_FMA—H
Cost BN 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and R NORE
impairment (9,630) (4,349) (13,979)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,370 756 3,126
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-—ZT-=f%
=BR=+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount BRVIERE R E 2,370 756 3,126
Amortisation By (287) (179) (466)
Impairment pERIE] = (577) (577)
Closing net carrying HRERMEFE
amount 2,083 - 2,083
At 31 March 2023 R-ZB-=F
=BA=+—H
Cost PR 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and RETEERORE
impairment (9,917) (5,105) (15,022) 4
Net carrying amount ARENFE 2,083 =

2,083

i

Sl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o e B T M B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z

16.

INTANGIBLES (CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2023,
management identified impairment indicator on
CMC related services (the “CMC CGU”) due to
decline in financial performance in its CMC related
services caused by tighter market condition. For the
purpose of impairment testing, certain intangibles,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are allocated to the CMC CGU. The Group
assessed the recoverable amount of the CMC CGU
and impairment of approximately RMB577,000
(2022: RMB1,000,000), RMB4,423,000 (2022:
RMB4,000,000), RMB5,000,000 (2022: nil) (note
6) was made on intangibles, property, plant and
equipment (note 13) and right-of use assets (note 15)
respectively for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The recoverable amount of above CGU has been
determined based on value in use calculation, which
is arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
an independent professional valuer. This calculation
uses cash flow projections based on the most recent
financial forecast approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an estimated growth rate of 2% (2022: 2%)and an
estimated pre-tax discount rate of 21% (2022: 22%).
The growth rate do not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates.

16.

| EE(E)
B2 -k -_ZE-_=ZF#=ZA=Z+—HI#&F
& AR EERIEH TSR EECMCHE B R < 8
BRI TE  EEEHAHCMCHEE R ((CMCR
SEEEN)ZRETE - stRENEmME - %F
BREE YWE BEERSBUAREREEED
iCM@%@%$$u0$%l%%TCMmﬁi?$
Bzl ERERAEEE  KNBEE-_E ==
FZA=Z+T—HALEFEIFRELEE VE - K
B R (aE13) R A& E (M E15) fE R E
HARMEST77 000 (= FE = —4F : AR¥1,000,000
TT) ~ AR¥A4,423,000t (- —F : AR
4,000,0007T) *+ AR#¥5,000,000t(ZF ==

) (MI5E6) °

FatReEEEM AW E B IREFEAEAER
HExT MEABENENREB L BEGHEME
TZEESE - ZAETDREARRREZATIER
ERFHMzOHBBEANERABRESREEA -
BERAFHz7RESREERGTIERENR(ZE 2
F 0 2%) MAEFFATBN IR K21 % (Z T - —F : 22%)
HE - EEEXTHARSELABNLCEER RS
FHERER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

17. RHEB ARz
R-EBE-_=F=ZA=+—H TEWNEARA
(ZERERAR) ZFBHIIAT

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each (@)
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31

March 2023, were as follows:

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
EMEL/ BRTRARERR
RREH RYREFEH Rx/EfEs B BiE IEBER
Sino Harbour Property Holdings British Virgin Islands United States dollar 100% = Investment holding
Limited (“BVI")/Hong Kong (US$")1
Sino Harbour Property Holdings RERUEE IESM(EFA) B2 2100 - REEKR
Limited (%BELBE)) /B8
Sino Harbour Bio Technology BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% = Investment holding
Holdings Group Limited
Sino Harbour Bio Technology RERLES/BA E B9 2100 - REBR
Holdings Group Limited
Sinotech International Holdings BVI/Hong Kong USS$1 100% = Investment holding
Limited
EVARARERAR ABRABE/BE %7 A52100 - REBR
Sino Harbour Technology Limited BVI/Hong Kong USS$1 100% - Investment holding
EEMRARAT ERRABE/BE EI A52100 - RERR
Sino Harbour Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
EBERLT BB/ BB 10,000% 7 - 100% RE#R
Enrich H.K. Investments Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
BREBREERAR BB/BR 100787 - 100% REER
Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate The PRC/The PRC 1S$25,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
TEEAAELEREERAR  ¢B/4 25,000,000 7T - 100% FEHERE
Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan Property  The PRC/The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ENABHREREREERAR  +B/& A& #100,000,0007T - 100% RFHERE
Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. The PRC/The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 55%  Property development
(‘Nanchang Dingxun’)
HESLERERAA TE/TE AR #100,000,0007T - 55% RHERE

(EER4)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RHE R Fz#E= (&)

(@ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each @ MZEZ_=F=ZA=+—H xEWEBERA
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31 (ZFERBRAR) ZHBEINNT - (8)
March 2023, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
EMEL/ BRTRARERR
RREH RYREFEH B/ ERER B Mg TEER
Nanchang Gangyun Enterprises The PRC/The PRC RMB1,000 - 100%  Commercial
Management Co., Ltd management
BEBMREERERAA hE/hE ARH¥1,0007 - 100% HWEER
Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng The PRC/The PRC RMB24,500,000 - 51%  Property development
Industry Co., Ltd. (‘Fenghuang
Jincheng’)
#ITRESHESERAR hE/hE AF%24,500,0007C - 51% RFHERE
(BEEH)
Sino Harbour Development Limited ~ Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
BEERARLA BB/ B 1% - 100% RERR
Sino Africa Investment and Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Development Group Limited
hFRAEREEERAA BB/ BR 10077 - 100% RERR
Sino Harbour Development and Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
Investment Limited
REERRARRAA BR/ Bk 1871 - 100% EEEH
Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate Co.,  The PRC/The PRC RMB420,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Limited
RMNBHERERAT R,/ ARH420,000,0007C - 100% REHERE
Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co., ~ The PRC/The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 50%  Property development
Limited (note)
TRERERERAR L) hE/t AR 100,000,000 - 50% RBHERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RHE R Fz#E= (&)

(@

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each @ MZEZ_=F=ZA=+—H xEWEBERA
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31 (ZFERBRAR) ZHBEINNT - (8)
March 2023, were as follows: (Continued)
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
EMEL/ BRTRARERR
RREH RYREFEH Rx/EfEs B BiE IEBER
Capital Manager Investment Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Capital Manager Investment Limited ~ £BRLEE /E% 50,0005 7 S 100% RERR
Sino Harbour Bio Technology Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
Limited
ERENHRARAT /B 1% - 100% EEXR
Jiangxi Sino Harbour Technology The PRC/The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
TEEENBERAR e/ AR¥30,000,0007C - 100% REZR
Sinotech Digital Company Limited ~ Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EVUEERAT BB/ Eh 1T - 100% RE#R
Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator Limited The PRC/The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
IEESELEERAR E/ AR#10,000,0007 - 100% EEER
Guangxi Gangrun Bio Technology ~ The PRG/The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 90%  Transferand
Limited consultation services
ERBBENBEMERAR e/ AR#10,000,0007 - 0% BN RFEARK
Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical The PRC/The PRC RMB60,000,000 - 80%  Pharmaceutical
Technology Company Limited inspection
MIEURERRERAR hE/ AB%60,000,0007C - 80% ERBH
Xiamen Sino Harbour Bio The PRC/The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
Technology Limited
BPIEAENRITERAR hE /e AR #30,000,0007 - 100% EEER
Jiangxi Ganghua Medical The PRG/The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 51%  Investment
Management Co., holding
Limited
IEAERRERERAR hE/hE AB%10,000,0007C - 51% REER
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e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RMBAT 2Rz (E)
R-EBE-_=F=ZA=+—H TEWNEARA
(ZERERAR) ZFBHININAT « (&)

(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each ()
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2023, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
EMEL/ BRTRARERR
RREH RYREFEH B/ ERER B BiE IEBER
Pingxiang Ganghua The PRC/The PRC RMB11,000,000 - 51%  Provision of
Dentistry Hospital Co., dental services
Ltd
EREZNRERARAF hE/hE AR 11,000,007 - 51% REARBERE
Forest Construction Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment
Technology Limited holding
BARRENRARAR &R/ BE 1T - 100% RERR
Hangzhou Gangze The PRC/The PRC RMB100,000 - 51%  Commercial
Enterprises Management management
Co., Ltd.
RMERLRERERAT hE/hE AR%100,0007 - 51% MFEER
Hangzhou Sino Harbour The PRC/The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Commercial
Commercial management
Management Co., Ltd.
MMEEHRERERAA hE/hE AR #10,000,0007C - 100% RxER
Shanghai Huiyi International The PRC/The PRC RMB1,000 - 100%  Dormant
Trading Co., Ltd.
HEBEARE 5ERAR hE,/ e AR¥1,00070 - 100% EEEH
Shanghai Ganghan The PRC/The PRC RMB1,000 - 100%  Dormant
Business Management
Co., Ltd.
EERREERERAR hE/hE AR¥1,0007T - 100% EEZE
Hangzhou Gangyu The PRC/The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
Business Management
Co., Ltd.
RNBBLRERERAT hE/hE AB#10,000,0007C - 100% EEZH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2023, were as follows: (Continued)

Note:

On 30 March 2018, the Group and Jiangxi HongKelLong
Industrial Limited (“Jiangxi HongKeLong”), which held
the remaining 50% equity interests in Jiangxi Ganghong,
entered into a designated operating agreement (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which subject to the fulfiment
of certain conditions, Jiangxi HongKelLong designate
all the rights and responsibility of the management,
operation and financing of the Yichun Elderly Apartment
undeveloped project (the “Undeveloped Project”) to the
Group and all the future costs and revenues in relation to
the Undeveloped Project will belong to the Group with a
compensation of RMB244,000,000 payable by the Group
to Jiangxi HongKelLong.

All conditions under the Agreement had been fulfilled
in prior years. The Agreement became effective and
all assets and liabilities of the Undeveloped Project are
beneficially owned by the Group and Jiangxi Ganghong
ceased to be a joint venture of the Group and became a
subsidiary of the Group after the completion date.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

17. RKE 2Rz (R

@)

R-EBE-_=F=ZA=+—H TEWNEARA
(BEABERRR) ZFBHNNT « (8)

Hrat

RZE—N\FE=ZA=+H A5EEETHETREES
m RAICIARER]) AT IB R T50%M%4E) 7] 3L
EEEmR(ZBRD @ Bt - 5T IEREEXE
Jﬁm%%%E%%EQ%Xﬁ%EEGﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HE EERBENMARFNRETREE FAEE -
ﬁ*%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ*Xﬁ$&WA%?#$il ¥
EBARVIIEHRERE L F AR 244,000,0007THFE ©

ZHBETOAEGEERBEFEENX - BB &
B MARBEHRBMEEENAEAAKRERER S
B MRERBERER  TEEATBEAREERERE
I K A7 S P B 1 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RHE R Fz#E= (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXHINEBHAREEM S EEKN 2 IEZERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMBEAREERARLETHE RSB
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERZ -
has a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group.
Nanchang Dingxun HERA
Summarised statement of financial position BN RRE

As at 31 March

MR=BA=+—H
2023 2022
—E=F —EF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Current TE

Assets BE 609,402 609,077
Liabilities afE (110,395) (113,786)
Total net current assets REBEEFELSE 499,007 495,291

Non-current kR

Assets BE 29 30
Total net non-current assets IRBEEFEHAE 29 30
Net assets EEFE 499,036 495,321

Accumulated non-controlling interests B FEERERS 222,701 221,030
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RHE R Fz#E= (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXHINEBHAREEM S EEKN 2 IEZERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMBEAREERARLETHE RSB
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERHEE - (8)

has a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

Nanchang Dingxun (Continued) HERAE#E
Summarised statement of comprehensive 2HENZEHE
income
For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Revenue WA 16,522 14,038
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATSHAICER), BB 4,187 (1,883)
Total comprehensive income 2EKZLE 3,715 2,427
Profit allocated to non-controlling DEFIHFERER 2 EF
interests 1,671 1,092
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by E B RS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that

17. RHEB AT 2% (&)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXHINEBHAREEM S EEKN 2 IEZERE

has a non-controlling interest which is material

to the Group. (Continued)

Nanchang Dingxun (Continued)

Summarised statement of cash flows

8 & A ()

BERBREUE

@ M B AR & A R 2T R & B2 Bt
BERE - (8)

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+t—-BHLHFE

2023 2022
—E_=HF —E_-_=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMELHEESRE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations KEFAR)/FMEELERS (19,738) 3,324
Interest received BB 118 237
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating A8 & B (FT ), FrEE
activities B2 FEE (19,620) 3,561
Cash flows from investing activity REZBMELRERE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEMIRITFRUR L 2,704 2,280
Net cash generated from investing activity REZTE)TEFEH 2 FHE 2,704 2,280
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash RERBEESZEY
equivalents GRl D) /0S5 (16,916) 5,841
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#IR & RIS HEY
the year 25,339 19,498
Cash and cash equivalent attheend of EXBEERBELEEY
the year 8,423 25,339
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RHE R Fz#E= (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXHINEBHAREEM S EEKN 2 IEZERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMBEAREERARLETHE RSB
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERHEE - (8)

has a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng “YmBEBREH
Summarised statement of financial position BN RRE

As at 31 March

MR=BA=+—H
2023 2022
—_E_= =
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Current B

Assets BiE 222,244 308,389
Liabilities afE (52,439) (138,584)
Total net current assets RBEEFEEARE 169,805 169,805
Net assets BEEFE 169,805 169,805
Accumulated non-controlling interests R EERER 83,204 83,204
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by E B RS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17.

(o) Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that
has a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

M B 2 B 2 s ()

b) TXHINEBHAKEMSEEA 2 FFERE
@ M B AR & A R 2T R & B2 Bt

BERBE - ()

Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng “FHEREH(E
(Continued)
Summarised statement of comprehensive P2HENZEEE
income
For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZRA=1t—HLEE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —EF -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARKFIT
Revenue WA - -
Profit before income tax B TS FE A A = 183,436
Total comprehensive income 2HEWN SR = 131,488
Profit allocated to non-controlling DEFIFERER ZEF
interests - 64,429
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RHE R Fz#E= (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXHINEBHAREEM S EEKN 2 IEZERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMBEAREERARLETHE RSB
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERHEE - (8)

has a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng “FHEREH(E
(Continued)
Summarised statement of cash flows BEREFXHE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HLEE

2023 2022
—E=F —EF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETFT

Cash flows from operating activities RETHEERSRE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations K& () FTEER® (86,145) 493

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating — #& &8 (BT ), BT E

activities FIRHER (86,145) 493
Cash flows from investing activity RETBHFELERERE
Decrease in amounts due from subsidiaries ~ FEUZ [ B A B FIE IR 4 86,144 28,005
Net cash generated from investing activity KEZEEL RS FEE 86,144 28,005
Cash flows from financing activities METEMEERSRE
Decrease in amount due to related company  FE{ B8 A &) ZRIE B 4 = (490)
Decrease in amounts due to fellow ANIEES NG

subsidiaries A = (28,005)
Net cash used in financing activities BEZBTHE 2 FEE - (28,495)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash RERBEESZEEY

equivalents (RA),/EhnF58 (1) 3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#IR & ML HEY
the year 3 -

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of FREERBEELZEEY
the year 2 3

ek,

Sl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z

18.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

18. BAAERAEMEZERSEIRZEHEE

2023 2022
—E-= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETT
Equity instruments measured at FVOCI RO EREMEE WS
PIRETE 2 RETA
Unlisted equity investments R EMRERE 8,650 13,000

As at 31 March 2023, within financial assets at FVOCI,
balance of approximately RMB6,000,000 (2022:
RMB13,000,000) represented carrying amount of
5.09% of equity interest in Jiangxi Longyu Medicine
Co., Limited shares held by the Group and balance of
approximately RMB2,500,000 (2022: Nil) represented
carrying amount of 0.88% of equity interest in Zhirui
Creativity (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. share held by
the Group.

As as 31 March 2023, within financial assets at
FVOCI, balance of approximately RMB150,000 (2022:
nil) represented carrying amount of residual interests in
Leping Runze Estate Development Co., Ltd (“Leping
Runze”), an entity ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Group upon the completion of a deemed disposal
during the year ended 31 March 2023 (note 31).

The unlisted investments of the Group was irrevocably
designated at FVOCI as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

Fair value of the equity instruments has been
measured as described in note 33(f).

RZZE-=ZF=ZA=+—H8 RERAAEBEREMS
Ml =FE s EMEETR &84 AR6,000,000
T(ZE-—F : AR¥13,000,00070) BAEEZHE
KT Fase T2 B2 AR 1D AR A 515.00% 8% 1 2 BRI (& -
AR EBHANREE2,500,000T(Z 8- : #)45
REEFADHAEAER) BHE B R A R]0.88%%
EZERAEE -

RZBZ=F=ZRA=+—H RERAREXREMZ
R IR EREEN - A ARE150,0007TH 45
BHRCE__F  B)/RIMEERHEREZEARA
A([#LEE] RBE_T-_=F=A=+—HI
FREEREHEFAEMESNTRETERAEH
MEARNER R T a2 REE

HRAEERSZFALMREBRIEEL - A&
B ZERESTAROMETEREAR BN HA
2 HKERTIER

T AAREDRHMEINAMEEE

- 214 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. BHEHYE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TF T AREFT
Leasehold interests in land TH AR E RS 849,402 1,080,213
Development costs B AR 801,224 529,832
Finance costs capitalised BARERE RN 70,172 48,621
1,720,798 1,658,666
Leasehold interests in land are located in the PRC and THHEEESVATE  HEHR TN _F=—
have lease terms expiring from 2042 to 2090 (2022: ZNEFCEZZF : ZEN_FE_FTNETF)z
2042 to 2090). Ml JEim e
Right-of-use assets related to interests in leasehold CREEEETMMHEERSER  HP RS
land where the interest in the land is held for ERZEEFEE Uit  NMBEEEEARZHAE+RY
development of inventories and included in the same E
line as properties held under development as that
within which the corresponding assets.
During the year ended 31 March 2023, no impairment BE_ZTZ-_=F=-A=+—HILtFE  HENERSE
on properties held under development was recognised PHRERPERFAETERBE( T _F - A
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive R #18,127,0007T) (7£6) °
income (2022: RMB18,127,000) (note 6).
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 20. FEYE
Properties held for sale included property interests TEVEEETE LM M EER  HEHN -
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring TNM=FFE_F++F(ZFT=F: ZTW™=F

from 2043 to 2077 (2022: 2043 to 2077). As at 31
March 2023, the carrying value of the operating lease
up-front payments on the leasehold interests in land
amounted to approximately RMB41,720,000 (2022:
RMB83,390,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, properties held
for sale with carrying value of RMB61,706,000 (2022:
RMB147,718,000) were transferred to investment
properties as these properties were under operating
lease arrangements with third parties during the year
to earn rental (note 14).

EREEF)ZEER RZEZ=F=ZA=+—
B Tt EgEa s CEHERNRERENAA
R#41,720,000(ZE = =4 : AR¥83,390,000
JT) °

BE_ZE_ZF-A=+—HLEEFE HFEEAA
R#61,706,0007T (=2 = =4 : AR¥147,718,000
TZFEMEEREREYE  REBZSEWET
RIBFARNEE = FE 2 & HE R HREA S (M
$14) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

21.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BENRERHEMEKRRE
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat AR¥FT AREFT
Prepayments TEfTFRIE (@ 618,648 651,847
Other receivables (note) E A R UGRTE (1 77) (b) and (c)
1) E(c) 142,977 47,098
761,625 698,945

Notes:

In 2021, the Group made successful bids for the land use
rights of four land parcels located in Leping City, Jiangxi
Province the PRC. Deposits in total of approximately
RMB887,010,000 were paid by the Group to relevant
authority to secure the land grant contracts and included
in prepayment. As at 31 March 2023, the Group has
obtained land use right certificates of three out of four land
parcels (2022: three). As at 31 March 2023, prepayment
included deposit paid of approximately RMB351,000,000
(2022: RMB351,000,000) for remaining land parcel of
which the land use rights certificate has not been obtained
by the Group.

As at 31 March 2023 the other receivables included
amount due from non-controlling interest of approximately
RMB11,864,000 (2022: nil). The balance is interest-free,
unsecured and receivable on demand.

As at 31 March 2023, the other receivables included
amount due from Leping Runze, an entity ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Group upon the completion of a deemed
disposal during the year ended 31 March 2023 (note
31), of approximately RMB85,807,000. The balance is
interest-free, unsecured and receivable on demand.

The Group recognises loss allowance for other receivables
for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 respectively
based on the accounting policies stated in note 3.10.
Further details of the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from other receivables are set out in note 33(b).

At -

RIZEZ—F  AEERDFPEURAFEIAELETEM
VY i 1 38 ) + (5 PR A o NSRBI AR AR AE SRR
AR #887,010,0007t M IZ® + AR HEE REE
WY AABNRERN - RZE-_=F=A=+—H K
EEENBUEMREF =B LERER(ZT =
—FE R MRIE-_=ZF=ZA=+—H  BNRZE
BIERRG IR (AEBE M ARG E L AEE) M
NiEE HARE351,000,000c(ZE-—4F : AR¥E
351,000,0007T) ©

R-ZZE-=ZFZA=+—8  EtEKFEBEEEKIE
PRRAE RN RE11,864,000C(Z B - =4 : &) - &
e s EIKH A EERIRE o

R-TB-=F=ZA=+—8  EtERKBEBEREIRLE
FHERBEE-_S-_=F=-A=+—AILFEEREH
EEE (W3 TR ETEANEENHBARNELE) K
H# AR¥85,807,0007T - ZABARE « EIKEKE
TsRUgE -

REERBEHFES AT 2 @B D RIERHEEZ_Z
CEER-E-—HE=ZA=+—RA I FEEHEMBEWRFE
ZEERE AEBEEBREMEEMBRFBELEZ
FERBR 2 #E— S BERMES3(0) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

22, EEAERUARRERBITER

BALANCES
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E -
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat ARMTF T ARETT
Cash and bank deposits RE RIRITFK 495,002 345,223
Less: VAR
Deposits pledged against banking MIRIBERBITRHEME
facilities granted to the mortgage B2 173 (@) (54,930) (42,518)
Deposits pledged for bank loans PERITE IR 275K (b) (5,500) (11,000)
Deposits restricted for construction MBRETERGI TR
works (334,969) (197,510)
Cash and cash equivalents for the e HeERERMS
purpose of the consolidated statement 7R & RIS EEY
of cash flows 99,603 94,195
Notes: Bfst

(@) The deposits were pledged to certain banks as security
in the PRC as detailed in note 30. These banks provided
mortgage loans to purchasers for acquisition of properties
from the Group. The pledge will last for the period
from the date of draw-down of mortgage loans to the
date when the certificates for housing ownership are
granted to the property purchasers. Such charges will be
released upon the certificates are granted to the property
purchasers.

(b) As at 31 March 2023, the bank deposit of RMB5,500,000
(2022: RMB11,000,000) was pledged against bank loans
due to be settled over twelve months after the reporting
period (note 24). The effective interest rates of this deposit
was 0.35% (2022: 2.11%).

At 31 March 2023, approximately RMB489,657,000
(2022: RMB343,353,000) were cash deposited
with banks or other financial institutions in the PRC.
These balances were denominated in RMB. RMB is
not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under
the PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange businesses.

(@)  AMMEES0RTFEE - ZREFRMAE TRTTERER/ND
Bz iR G o ZFRITAMBAREY X 2 BREHRIZ
BEN - EREHRERRBERANENXERERT
FEMBHERSREN - ERERERDEERERT
FEMAEZREE -

) H-ZT-=F=A=+—H  AR¥H5,500,0007t(=F
ZZF : AR¥11,000,00070) Z SRITFER AR EH BT
ZEABBBREE 2 RITER(HEE24) (EHER - ZHEXK
ZEBFRAE035%(ZEZZF : 211%) ©

RZZEZ=F=A=+—H ' #HAR%¥489,657,000
T(ZZT - —F : AR¥343,353,0007T) BIFERF
Bl ZRITRHMEMEB RS - ZSEHUAR
BEETE - AR 5 HEBKINE o RIS
EERHRO REE  EERNEEERT A&
AB BN BIEREEITINEES ZIRITHBARE
HAIAGNEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by E B RS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND
OTHER PAYABLES

23. EMERN - EARAREMENRKIR

2023 2022
—E-= T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ha AR¥FT ARMFIT
Accounts payable FET AR X @) 59,829 30,546
Accruals and other payables FE T SR8 N H b FE T 5B (b) 211,149 525,515

Notes:

(@) The aging analysis of accounts payable, based on invoice
date, is as follows:

HaE -

@ ENEFEERRHZERESNET

2023 2022

—ZE=-= —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFT

Less than 3 months &+ 45,795 20,786
3-6 months =@AZXMEA 932 145
6 months — 1 year NMERE—F 1,775 1,524
More than 1 year —FPE 11,327 8,091
59,829 30,546

(b) Accrued construction cost and other project-related
expenses were included in accruals and other payables
amounted to approximately RMB110,976,413 as at 31
March 2023 (2022: RMB214,223,000). The amount was
accrued based on the terms of the relevant agreements
and project progress and was not due for payment as at
the end of the reporting period.

) RZZEZ=F=ZA=+—H s AEFTREREMRE
NRBEZEFERENAREMIEE HERIHOARYE
110,976,4137T (=T = —4 : AR#¥214,223,0007T) °
T RENREERGE CGRREE#EENE AR
MRS ARE HER
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23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND
OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued)

(®)

(Continued)

On 26 March 2021, Fenghuang Jincheng and Leping
City Natural Resources and Planning Bureau (the “Local
Authority”) entered into a land resumption agreement
(the “Land Resumption Agreement”) under which
Fenghuang Jincheng should surrender its land parcel
located at the Hushan Meiyan Reclamation Farm, Leping
City, Jingdezhen City, Jiangxi Province (the “Resumed
Land”) to the Local Authority at a consideration by way of
cash compensation of RMB222,760,000, subject to the
passing of resolution by the shareholders of the Company
to approve the Land Resumption Agreement. In the event
that the resolution was not passed, the Land Resumption
Agreement should be terminated, and all payments
received by Fenghuang Jingcheng from the Local
Authority in connection with the Land Resumption would
be refunded without interest to the Local Authority and the
land use rights of the Resumed Land remained under the
Fenghuang Jincheng. The resolution was passed and the
Company obtained the approval from its shareholders at
a special general meeting held on 21 May 2021. Net gain
from land resumption of approximately RMB201,564,000
was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2022
(note 6).

As at 31 March 2023, other payables included an amount
of approximately RMB490,000 (2022: RMB141,490,000),
which was payable to Jiangxi Dongjing Property
Development Limited (IR S EHEMRZEEGR Q)
which held 49% equity interest in the Group’s subsidiary,
Leping City. These payable balances were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand in cash.

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 - F - =F = H=+—HI- FZ

23. EERRM - FEFHRIR R HE b FE A 5K0R ()

Hrat « ()

(#)

RZBE-_—F=ZA-+"A " BEEFHELITERE
TEAAR 2 ([t 5 448 ) 7] 52 1 b Uk i 15 ([ £t U 1
W) - BEZWE - BESEAS RS EE ERXEMN
RIITE S EEMEEMRILIEEEBES R (TEI
L)) REARSHEARMK222,760,0007T * A
FAQ R MR BBIE DI R IR RO RERE T SE
B o WREEAEERS - Al RHEERRLE - B
Fra B S 3 B 1 07 H RS B U R A9 78 B8 1 s U i O £ 3R
HENRTBIRE T A MR - MBI T my i AR
MEBEEeHmE RS- —FRA-+—HHETH
BREREFRARE L REEERBAARFOHERRAES
HE - BE_T-__FZA=Z+—HLEFE LEEE
R b U 3 U R B 40 A R #5201,564,0007T (BT 5E6) ©

MR-B-=F=ZfA=+—0 EMENZEBROAR
#490,000(ZZFE = =F : AR%¥141,490,0007T) FEff
IAREREREERARZKIE  HFEE4A5£EN

BER  2ERERBERFURSEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

24. BANK LOANS 24, |RITERXK
2023 2022
—EC-=F Sl =
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥TF T AR TF T
Bank loans — secured and guaranteed ~ $R1TE R — B KA K ER (@ 455,400 465,990
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is RITERCREEITAT
as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —E - F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TFT ARBTF T
Current TE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment AR —FADHEERIZREKE
within one year or on demand BZRITERH D 66,900 142,540
Non-current FEFRE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment after 2B — &2 HIEE 2 R1TER
one year 2B 388,500 323,450
Total borrowings “miEe 455,400 465,990

220 sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

24. BANK LOANS (CONTINUED) 24.

The Group’s bank loans are denominated in RMB and
repayable as follows:

2023 2022

—E_=F —_=ET-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR TF T
Within one year or on demand —FANRIRER 66,900 142,540
In the second year RE-FR 74,750 198,700
In the third to fifth year RE=ZFRFERN 313,750 124,750
388,500 323,450
Total borrowings wiEg 455,400 465,990

Note:

(@

As at 31 March 2023, the effective interest rates of the
Group’s secured bank loans were ranging from 5.5% to
7.5% (2022: 6.9% to 10. 6%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2023, bank loans were:

(i) secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB5,150,000 (2022:
RMB6,573,000) (note 13);

(i) secured by the Group’s investment properties
of approximately RMB720,000,000 (2022:
RMB738,535,000) (note 14);

(iii) secured by the Group’s bank deposits
of approximately RMB5,500,000 (2022:
RMB11,000,000) (note 22);

(iv) secured by entire present and future issued share
capital of certain subsidiaries of the Group; and

(V) guaranteed by Mr. Wong, the controlling
shareholder and director of the Company.

Kt

R-B-=ZFZF=+—0 AEEAEEFRTER
BEEFRNTEFESS5%E75% (T - —F : 6.9%F
10.6%) °

R-TE-_=ZF=ZA=+—8 " FFEXR:

(i) RAEEYZE - BE &K&EL ARES,150,0007T
(ZZ =% : AR¥6,573,00070) (B 1F (M 5
13) :

(ii) AAEBEIEEMENHARYE720,000,0007t (=
T AR¥738,535,0007T) {E#K 1 (M 7%
14) :

(i) HBAAKERITERHARYES5,500,000(ZF=
— 4 AR#11,000,0007T) I I (Hf5E22) :

vy ABAAEEETHBRARZEERAREIEET
RAVERIR : &

V)  BARFEZERBERREETEERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 25, EEBIEEE (BE)
At 31 March 2023, deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RZBZ=F=A=+—RH  EEHEEE(AF)
are provided at the tax rate 25% (2022: 25%). The AT ERO5% (Z B2 : 25%)FTIREE - AYRKE
movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising BMEAZECEHBEEE (BB Z2ZeHHWT

from temporary differences are as follows:

Deferredtax ~ Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities in liabilities in  Deferred tax

assetsin  Deferred tax respect of fair respect of liabilities in

respect assetsin  value change  undistributed respect of

of provision respect  of investment earning of contract
for LAT  of tax losses properties  subsidiaries cost assets Total

REENE  RWELT
EipRER  EHEEE  ANERE AOREN  EAHEXA
BRAMz  ABZEE  AMZEE  ABZEE < BEREL
BEHBRE HEKE HERE HERE BEREAE act
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT  AR¥Tx  ARETT  ARETR

At 1 April 2021 R=ZE-—FNA—H 9,416 2,122 (96,869) = = (85,325)
Deferred tax credited/(charged)  FABREH A/ (31%)

to the profit or loss (nofe 9) LERBE W 9) 11,999 (2,122) (4,435) (1,000) 2,000 2,442
Deferred tax charged to other ~ FAEfh 2 E Mz

comprehensive income Mk 2 BERE

(note 14) (Higt14) = = (19,500 = = (19,500)

At31 March 2022 and 1 April - RZZEZZF=A=+

2022 —ARZEZFN
R 21415 - (120,798) (1,000 2,000) (102,38
Deferred tax (charged)/credited B2 (1K) /3 A7
tothe profitor loss (note 9~ EIERB(Af3£9) (1,040) - (4,676) 1,000 (4,000 (8,716)
At 31 March 2023 RZZZ=F=A4
=1+-A 20,375 - (125,474) - (6,000) (111,099)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried BETHIREENMEE 2 HIEEE T A®R - A

forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group has no material unrecognised tax losses
to carry forward against future taxable income at 31
March 2023 and 2022.

Al B R ARERV EMNER 2 BRARENT A
B -R-E_=FKR-_T-__F=A=+—H" K
SEWMmEARERTIABIEAELAESHIERRE
RTUIA o
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 25. EEBBEEE (BE) (&)
(CONTINUED)
Withholding rate of 5% is imposed on dividends DIRTHEREE 2RETIIRFBIH E5% BN
distributed to foreign investors. As at 31 March 2023, HR-RZZBEZ=F=ZA=+—H BEWBRARXS
deferred tax liabilities amounted to approximately REF BB L EHESEHARE895,867,000
RMB44,793,000 (2022: RMB45,833,000) in respect T(ZZ=——F : AR¥916,668,0007T) 2 ik T Fi1E
of aggregate amount of temporary difference BEHAREEL44793,000L(ZFE_—F : ARK
of approximately RMB895,867,000 (2022: 45,833,00070) MR T AR - TR ASE A #iE
RMB916,668,000) associated with undistributed FIZEMB AR 2R EHBK  BEABEERITET
earnings of subsidiaries have not been recognised GRA R IGREE o
because the Group is in a position to control the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.
SHARE CAPITAL 26. BA
Number
of shares RMB’000
KRG EE AREFT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ERRMEEC.01B L2 TiEmAR
At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 and RZEZ—FHA—BUK
2023 R HFRIT=F
—A=+—H 4,500,000,000 37,401
Issued and fully paid: BERTRAR:
At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 and RZZE-—FHA—HUK
2023 B FRIT=F
=A=+—H 2,464,000,000 20,735

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

REBEE-E - =FR-_T-_—"F=A=+—HItF
E ARAREAANBAGMERE - HEXE
Bl R RMEE LS o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

27. RESERVES

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The nature and purpose of the reserves are as
follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group
represents the premium arising from the issue of
shares of the Company at premium.

Statutory reserves

According to the relevant PRC laws, the
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10%
of its net profit after tax, as determined under
the PRC accounting regulation, to a statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The
transfer of this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to the subsidiaries’
equity owners. The statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than upon the liquidation of
the subsidiaries.

FVOCI reserve

Balance represents fair value reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value
of equity investments designated at FVOCI
under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the
reporting period.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve of the Group
represents the gains arising on revaluation of
properties.

27.
REE 2 FHEE

HBHERNGAERZIR - [FiR

ZHERBERMT

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

MR8
AEE 2B REREAR RS EZRITRN
PRESZEME

EERE

RIERETERER  HBARASRETRE
FOARPTEEE 2R IIR AR E D 10% BB E )X
ERE BEERBAEKERNBAREMER
250% - RRFHRBBAND KRS THER
BIEDBEA A ZAET < AERBTADIK -
MRS B8 X BB BRASRR AN o

BARBEREMZE KRS RREE
BBREANERE  BERBEHREBERE
EREMBRELENEOREERRAAEBNRE
fE2EREN R BRERERAERFE
@JO

MR EH#E
AEENFELRBEEEEMMERMELN

A
U ES o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

27. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 27. #E(GE)
The Company AAF
Share Retained
premium profits Total
BB 1D R 1E BaA a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARETT
At 1 April 2021 RZZE-_—FIMA—H 565,212 31,611 596,823
Profit for the year and total FRRAEFAZE
comprehensive income for the Wz 4858
year - 36,992 36,992
Dividend paid to owners of the ERNARRREBEAZ
Company s - (20,317) (20,317)
At 31 March 2022 and W_ZT——
1 April 2022 ZA=+—HK
—E-_FMA—H 565,212 48,286 613,498
Loss for the year and total FABBEFAZE
comprehensive income Wzs48%8
for the year - (8,365) (3,365)
Dividend paid to owners of the ENARREREALZ
Company s - (42,248) (42,248)
At 31 March 2023 R=-B=-=F
=A=+—H 565,212 2,673 567,885
28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. EAEIE
Except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial RS BREREMBLOMBEEIN  AEEHE
statements, the Group had the following outstanding AT RBITE AR -
capital commitments:
2023 2022
—_E_= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFT ARBTFT
Contracted but not provided for BMUTEBEEITHNEREE
in respect of
- properties held under development - Ry 349,173 518,359

EERREEMERAT o 2022/23 55 225

ek,

Sl
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

29. LEASES

(@

The Group leases premises under lease
agreements. The lease agreements are between
one to fifteen years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants. Leased assets are
not used as security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the leases. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use assets
in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

- where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received;

- uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk of lessee; and

- makes adjustments specific to the lease
terms.

None of the leases contain variable lease
payments.

2. #HE

@)

AEEREAEHAAENE  BEBBEY
AF-E+EE

MEIZEREAEBET - BETRGERK
iRt - MEWHRL MEREMAREE - HEEE
WARBIEEE 2 EHm -

MEMNKEREERNSHEEER o HELEE
BEZME(AEEHEEBEEN) - AIZRAE
A 2 B8 8 A = (BNME Bl AR AR R
RIBHIREE G - TR AR R EEUEE A
REEBEHEZEEMSELRESHMAX
T FIZR)BEIR -

REEEREERNEXE - AKED :

- B REHLEABERAEAIEERSN
FZTRMECHE  BEITHAZENUARMR
EREZFTREEREKRE 2T

- ERMEEESN - ALEEERRF
xR BRABEAZEERRIEAER K&

HEMEEIBHEENK
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

29. LEASES (CONTINUED) 29. HE(E)
(@  (Continued) @ &
The amount included in the consolidated LWTThEEEGEYBRAR BEGEZR
statement of financial position in respect of the HEMRFRZE

carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year is as follows:

Premises

leased for
own use Machinery Total
BAEEYE R et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFTT ARETT

At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-—FWMA—H 15,273 - 15,273
Addition B - 3,704 3,704
Interest expenses FEREZ 165 209 374
Lease payments HERR (2,372) (738) (3,110)

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZ-ZE_-_%F

=A=+-8
R-—EB-—
MMA—H 13,066 3,175 16,241
Additions =T - 20,642 20,642
Interest expenses FEFRZ 555 207 762
Lease payments HERR (3,399 (9,409) (12,808)
At 31 March 2023 R-B-—=%
=A=+—H 10,222 14,615 24,837
Future lease payments are due as follows: REBEEMKZEBRBRAT
2023 2022
—E-= _EF_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥TF T ARMFT
Minimum lease payment due RUATHAR 2 8 2 &K
e
= Within one year - —FA 6,752 6,708
- In the second to fifth years, inclusive -WMFEERF(BEER
M) 23,256 13,532
30,008 20,240
Less: future interest expenses W ARRFBEREZ (5,171) (3,999)
|
g

Present value of lease liabilities HEEEZHE 24,837 16,241

Sl
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

29. LEASES (CONTINUED) 20. HMEE
(b)  The present value of future lease payments are (o) REREENRZBEITWOT :
analysed as:

2023 2022

—EB-=F —EFE -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Current liabilities nBaE 5,334 5,704
Non-current liabilities JERBAE 19,503 10,537
24,837 16,241

As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate
undiscounted commitments for short-term
leases of the Group was approximately
RMB1,134,000 (2022: RMB427,000)

As at 31 March 2023, the Group was committed
to enter into a new lease of 10 years, in respect
of the commercial space of Zhejiang University
Alumni Enterprise Headquarters Economic Park
in Hangzhou City, that is not yet commenced,
the lease payments under which is ranging from
RMB4,299,000 to RMB55,020,000 per annum.

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of its properties as follows:

R-ZZE-=F=A=+—H AEBEHHEES
ZARBNIRAEERE A AREA,134,0007T (=
T — — 4 AR¥E427,0007T) ©

RZEBE-_=F=ZA=+—8  XEBFEZEMNL
TN TN I A B R R ¥ A ER R
¥R ABR10FRI AL (HARME) © %
HANEERZN FEFARES,299,000TE
AR #55,020,0007T °

AEEREMERETAIBELLHEMN K
RUE 2 SREFHE BT ¢

2023 2022

—E-=F —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT
Not later than one year —F R 42,549 39,341

Later than one year and not later than five —FLAFETHBBRF

years 92,334 110,584
Later than five years HEFENE 20,237 18,267
155,120 168,192

The Group leases out its investment properties
which run for initial periods of one to sixteen
years (2022: one to sixteen years), without
option to renew the lease terms at the respective
expiry dates. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

AEBBRKREME  NFFHR—E+RF
(ZT2-—F: —2+X%F) REBFHAT

=

RAEGHEEE HEMEINEE -

- 228  Ssino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of repayments.
As at 31 March 2023, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB1,990,742,000
(2022: RMB1,258,661,000). Such guarantees
terminate upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate which will generally be
available within one or two years after the purchasers
take possession of the relevant properties; or (i) the
satisfaction of mortgaged loans by the purchasers of
properties. No provision for the Group’s obligation
under the guarantees has been made as the
directors considered that it was not probable that the
repayments of the loans would be default.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 23 November 2022, the Group and Leping Runze,
an non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into the capital increase agreement (the “Capital
Increase Agreement”) with the independent
third party (the “Investor”), pursuant to which, the
Investor agreed to contribute additional capital to the
reqgistered capital of Leping Runze in an amount of
RMB162 million, subject to the passing of resolution
by the shareholders of the Company to approve
the Capital Increase Agreement. The resolution was
passed and the Company obtained the approval from
its shareholders at a special general meeting held
on 13 January 20283. The equity interest in Leping
Runze held by the Group was decreased to 3.57%.
Accordingly, Leping Runze was then ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Group.

30.

31.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

M ER
REBEAETHEEVERTHEEBEER -
I RBERZSERETCREHER R _2ZF =
ZF=ZA=Z+—H MABBRZERELOA
AR¥1,990,742,000 (=T =—F : AR¥
1,258,661,0007T) ° sZE BRGNP AT RREUARE
EFEE)RE  ((BHEWEMERE(RBENRER
HHEREBYEE —IWFRNRMEE  K/WEER
EEEBERE - HREERBTAAIELIRAE
EERMBR BRI ARTEAEBZERETEL
B -

RIELHE—BHEBAT
MR-ZE-—FE+—A=-+=0 K"&EBREFE2
(FEENIEZ2ENBAR BB E=H(REE])
R EE R ((EEHE]) Bt WEERE M
FTHENEMEALEARBIC2EE T - AFEAR
AIREEBHESEREORERESTSEE - R
ZE-=F A+ =HBTHREEIARG L R
FREBBEAQABERRESIE - AEER
LR AR R ES.57% » Hith - 4 2R
BIBAAEENMBAR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

31. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 31. RELE—EKBLEE)
(CONTINUED)
The assets and liabilities of Leping Runze at the date LELBHERNTHNRIELEANEERBERT

of completion of deemed disposal were as follows:

RMB’000
AREFIT
Property, plant and equipment E Ry 569
Properties under development FEER Y 328,619
Deposit, prepayment and other receivable e BNFUA R HAMEWEIE 21,063
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITHER 17,767
Accounts payables FETRR IR (649)
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIB K H Ath fE 5 508 (222,667)
Contract liabilities aHEE (67,296)
Amount due to subsidiaries of the Group FEfT AR E BB A R FIE (90,807)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEFAE (13,401)
Fair value of the residual interests in Leping Runze EERBEAANBEREMAEZEKES R
recognised as financial assets at FVOCI (note 18) CEMBEMLETLHERTEZOA
REWRFE18) (150)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 6) HE—MHBARZWE (W E6) 13,551
Total consideration received by the Group REBEWHMHBRE =
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHESRLFE
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERERBESEFEY (17,767)
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BMEFRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed RSV BERREMIBOMBE RS LEHIN -
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group AEBBHETUTEABEAIRS

had the following material related party transactions:

Group
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥ T AREFIT
Car park rental expense charged by TIATWE 2 FES
Hel s @
- Spouse of Mr. Wong —EREZRE 52 25
Rental expense charged by T3 RARIME Z HE W E
- A related company - —E@EEAT (b) 315 147
Interest expense charged by T3 R aME 2 F B U B
- A related company - —H@ERT (b) - 2,441
Notes: st -
(@  During the year ended 31 March 2023, Ms. Chan, the @ HEZZZ="F=ZA=1+—HILLFE TEEZEBRK
spouse of Mr. Wong, has entered into an agreement of ZE BB LR - 460,000 (==
car park rental for HK$60,000 (2022: HK$60,000) per —4F : 60,0007 T) °
year.
()  Mr. Wong and Ms. Chan have beneficial interests in these ) TEEERBMXINZSHAELAANEEE=HEZE °
related companies.
Compensation of key management personnel of AEEFEEEASHMH

the Group

bl

Remuneration for key management personnel of the SEXZEBABZEN(BREENARREER
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s ATHESEHIES 25 RHTE124% 5 -
directors and certain highest paid employees, are

disclosed in note 12.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z
33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose the Group to a variety
of financial risks which comprise market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group currently
does not have any written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically and cooperates closely with key
management to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in trading of financial assets
for speculative purposes. The most significant financial
risks to which the Group is exposed to be described
below.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk mainly arises from deposits at banks
and bank loans which bore interests at fixed
and floating interest rates. Bank loans arranged
at variable rates and fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The interest
rate and repayment terms of the borrowings
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in note 24.

33.

BHREREREBEREE

$EI%FA$EI% ZREVBER  BEMS

2 (BEMNERRENEAR)  FERRMRBE
ﬁﬂ& AEFBZEREREEHHUSHMHE I
AT - BREEAREHRBRRAZEBETNF

ERERE - AKRERFIETMAX 2 ERER
R R ESl - %ﬁ ExecHAMgR  LHEE
2EEABRTEE O RHIERBAEENE
2R o

AEBYENREURESBEREZEREERE - £
KEEY 2 REEVHRERMMRIAT

(@) FIEREMR

I = [ B Tir‘ﬂlﬂzﬂﬁ@jﬁﬁﬁmuilm
SHEZPMER KB 2R - REBZ KA
RSEREREBER LT AR MISHEREEH 27
2 - AEEZHNXERFERBIRETHE K
FEA R R ZRITERRRITER - AES
MERETEMNEFBZRITERSAEES 7
EHReRENERAR KA ENXRR - 1
BREHRBAERZEEZ M ERMMEEGFRRR
MIsE24H 55 o
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

If the interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points at the beginning
of the year and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax for the year
and retained profits would decrease/increase
by approximately RMB1,159,000 (2022:
RMB1,025,000) respectively.

The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. Changes in saving interest rates have no
impact on the Group’s other components of
equity. The assumed changes in interest rates
are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions
and represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over
the next twelve-month period.

The sensitivity analysis included in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023 has been prepared on
the same basis.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk arising from
the provision of financial guarantees and the
amounts of which are disclosed in note 30.

33.

(a)

(b)

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

bR E I B R R BUR ()

F == B (48

FIRGBE

i F R R F GG, 5 A 100EE 2hifn Fra &
HWESREBEIE  NEBERNFEBENEEE
SR D B A1 g AR EA1,159,0007T (=
T AR¥1,025,0007T) °

BN 100 EER KR ELEHNETNH
NEETREFEREAHABARED 2
CREEEVIES £ Ea RN SRRk St i
FE - RREEARMEMNRR - MERERRES
WRBBIEARE - MAKREEEHMERRE
T EAHREE R e E) 2 FF {4

HE_ZT-_=F=-A=1+—HILFELGEUE
BRAE 2 GRED IR ELERE -

FERK
EERBRESRIACZHFARERESHRT
B RRBETHEEREASBEXYBKER
ZRE - AEBEFEHZEERREZRERN
HEHFEBBEBERRZEAREEE - AEE
HEREMEERAEEZEERR - @S
BRI 30 FE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured
by collateral or other credit enhancements.

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group did
not have any accounts receivable.

33.

bR E I B R R BUR ()

(b)

EERE R ()

REMEERIENS  —BERPBERZEER
B—ERE - METEREERE - ZFFE
ERNEPBERBINR 2 ML LR
feeh  YEREFPHEEMUAREETFELZE
PIEEBRREARER - —RM5 - AKRET
SEREFRMHENRS -

AEBzeREEMEHERMIEMINRE
BB IEIEELR o

AEBRBESNE2HEMEEBERECERTE
YRS EREE  ERcBE I ERRERR
FESY  ARAKEBAECEEERELRILE
BRTRANBEPEHELERRZBEABREES
2 At ERBARERELEERE - TR
SETRAEFPEEE—FERD

BHEREXDENBELFERBRER - %
FEEXCEHAR  URRKEBESES
A Z OB~ B AR B 5 [ 4 R e 3RO
BRI FHEERRA B ENER -

R-E-=FR-"T-—F=ZA=+—H0 &K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for
other receivables, bank balances and pledged
deposits at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.
The credit risk on other receivables is limited
because the counterparties have no historical
default record and the directors expect that the
general economic conditions will not significantly
change for the 12 months after the reporting
date. Applying the ECL model results in loss
allowances of approximately RMB17,001,000
as at 31 March 2023 (2022: RMB11,553,000).
As at 31 March 2023, the gross carrying
amount of other receivables is approximately
RMB159,978,000 (2022: RMB58,651,000) and
the loss allowances increased by approximately
RMB5,448,000 (2022: RMB2,132,000) for other
receivables during the year ended 31 March
2023.

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of other receivables during the year is as

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

33. MBEMEREBERBEEE

(b) EERREGE)
AEBZRBEM2ERBHEEBBZ2E
EHMEWFHIE RITEBEREERERZE
BEE - HABRKZEEERRER @ REZ
HFEFWEBFTENLE:  MESHEPHREA
Hig 128 B AR BEBER AT EHEENNRE -
JEREMEERBE NEBYRN S =_=F=H
—+—HZEBEREEHAR17,001,0007T(=
T4 : AR¥11,553,000L) c R-ZT—=
F=ZA=+—H  HtEWFBEZEABELD
ABARK159,978,000L(—TE-—4F : AR
58,651,0007T) ' MBE_E_=F=A=+—
HIEFEEMBURFBEZ BEBEEZMOAR
85,448,000t (—E - —4F : AR¥2,132,000
L) °

FREMEBERFREZ BBRRERZNT

follows:
RMB’000
ARBFT
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-—FMmWA—H 9,421
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRERBIEBE 2,132
A 31 March 2022 R-E-__F=A=+—H 11,553
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRERZBEFBE 5,448
A 31 March 2023 R-Z-_=f=A=+—H 17,001
An adverse change in business, financial and X% B RABLEERR T E e B EEE

macroeconomic conditions has resulted in an
increase in overall loss allowance.

B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F =HA=+—HI- F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of other receivables, the Group is not
exposed to any significant credit risk exposure
to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged
deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings. Based on
the Group’s internal credit rating, no material
impairment loss allowance is recognised for
bank balances and pledged deposits.

The Group’s cash and bank balances and
pledged deposits are mainly balances with
state-owned banks in the PRC and reputable
banks in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2023,
the Group had approximately 45% (2022: 61%)
bank balances placed with two banks in the
PRC.

The Company’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries.
The credit risk on these financial assets of the
Company is limited because the counterparties
have no historical default record and the
directors expect that the general economic
conditions will not significantly change for the 12
months after the reporting date.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out
in RMB which is the functional currency of most
of the group entities. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s
cash and bank balances, other receivables, and
other payables which are denominated in HKS,
and US$. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposures regularly and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group did
not have significant exposure to risk resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates.

33. BIKERBE

(b)

(c)

BEERRBEGE

EERE R ()

PEMEERIEM S - NEEL REERE—
‘%“T???i&ﬁ—iﬁ‘l\@;%ﬁﬁéﬁ‘ziﬂ‘?Eﬁﬁﬁ‘%ﬂf
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EHFHREEFRRIE ZRT - REAEKE
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REBEZRE RIRITA %LA&E?&#TM
SRPEEARITRELEEEES ﬁﬁﬁlzm
e M_T_=F=A E—I-—E C REBEX
45%(ZFBZZF : 61%)RITAERTFHNHE
M EERTT
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B RS B HE 1208 NEREERRTEA
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SR
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SEAERINEE RS ER 7 BEARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk
in respect of settlement of financial liabilities,
including accounts payable, accruals and other
payables, lease liabilities and bank loans, and
its financial obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management.

The cash management of all operating entities
is centralised, including the raising of funds to
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities based on the remaining contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis
for other bank loans is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. B EMREREBERBEE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d #RBESERGE
More than
Ondemand  one year but Total Total
or within less than More than  undiscounted carrying
one year five years five years amount amount

eSS —FhE

R-Fn [EFEBEF BERE RERAR EAE

RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000 AMB 000 RMB'000
ARBTL  AREFT  ARETL  ARETT  ARETL

At 31 March 2023 R-ZEZ=%
=R=t-H
Accounts payable R 59,829 = = 59,829 59,829
Accruals and other payables e B REMENFE 211,149 = = 211,149 211,149
Lease liabilties HEAE 6,752 23,256 - 30,008 24,837
Bank loans RITER 76,425 431,762 = 508,187 455,400
354,155 455,018 - 809,173 751,215
Financial guarantee issued: BIEHCBBER
Maximum amount guaranteed RREREE 1,990,742 = = 1,990,742 =
At 31 March 2022 R-E-Z%
=ZB=+-H
Accounts payable R 30,546 = = 30,546 30,546
Accruals and other payables e B REMENTE 525,515 = = 525,515 525,515
Lease liabilities MEaRE 6,708 4,609 8,923 20,240 16,241
Bank loans RITER 174,707 366,171 = 540,878 465,990
737,476 370,780 8,023 1,117,179 1,038,292
Financial guarantee issued: BIEL 2 B HELR
Maximum amount guaranteed RREREE 1,258,661 = = 1,258,661 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Company held
no material financial liabilities and the Company
ensured that it maintains sufficient financial
support from Group’s subsidiaries to meet its
liquidity requirements.

The management has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve banking facilities, and by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value

The fair value of the Group’s current financial
assets and liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of
immediate or short term maturity of these
financial instruments. The fair value of non-
current financial assets and liabilities is not
disclosed because the carrying values are not
materially different from the fair values at the
reporting date.

33.

(d)

(e)

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. B EMREREBERBEE)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets
measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial

)

REEMBRARBERZAAREBETNE

TREVNRBEAAREBRNRMBEIARE DA
BFfEZEREE - BEAKERMEERAER
AERSEREENBBERABMAZERS
ABBZEHAERESR=ZM - AAEER

assets and liabilities into three levels based on BT

the relative reliability of significant inputs used in

measuring the fair value of these financial assets

and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the

following levels:

e Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in e ZF1f: HRAEERBEREERMSZ
active markets for identical WECREHAE)
assets and liabilities;

e Level2: inputs other than quoted o FE2: BRBILAMBEIMEIN  Z
prices included within Level BEXBEREBINER) K
1 that are observable for the M (FInREER) TERR 2
asset or liability, either directly AR &
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

e level3: inputs for the asset or o  FE3F: EEFARBRUIKEBEAUEERM

liability that are not based
on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

B8R 2 B AR (BRI &
R ABUR)

THEENBEEBRBEAZAAERRFHRE
ERU AR EFEBEAZREFNE ARE

B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. B EEMEIE R ZREEKE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
()  Fair value measurements recognised in the (N REEHBERRERBRZAAEBEEGE)
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value in the REEGUBURARIBZAR BRI ECCREED
consolidated statement of financial position are HAUTARERER

grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R E28 EK T @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT

Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-Z-=F

ZA=t+-HLEE
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVOCI BARBEREMZA
WsdiR e SREE
- Unlisted equity investments - R ETRERE = = 8,650 8,650
Year ended 31 March 2022 HE-T-—-F
ZR=1+—-RALEE
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVOCI BARBEREMZAE
Wessik e SREE
- Unlisted equity investments - RETRERE - - 13,000 13,000
There were no transfers between levels during FRNESR B mE o
the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. B EMREREBERBEE)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
()  Fair value measurements recognised in the

(H REEHBRRERERZAAETEGEE

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried

at fair value based on significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) are as follows:

REBEXT A BRE ABER(F3R)RAAET
FRzemMITASERET :

Unlisted equity investments R ETRERE
2023 2022
—E_=F —EF -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
At the beginning of the year REFH) 13,000 10,297
Addition (note 31) RE (KE31) 150 =
Total gains or losses: H& sk B IR RE
= in other comprehensive income AE A2 W (4,500) 2,703
At the end of the year RER 8,650 13,000

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments
is determined using market approach of
comparable companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount.

Significant unobservable input

AEMBRETAZ ARBEERAAILRRMESEEA
BEE - UBRE S RBIETRIELRAE -

EATABEBASE

2023
—Eg=-=

2022
= —

—_—=

Discount for lack of marketability

=%

BIEHTE 25% 25%

The fair value measurement is negatively AREFTEERZ IS RAETER R L] -
correlated to the discount for lack of NRZEZ=F=H=+—8 ' B EMm
marketability. As at 31 March 2023, it is BERV[FIAENBERAT @ WEZ TG RB R

estimated that with all other variables held
constant, a decrease/increase in the discount
for lack of marketability by 5% (2022: 5%) would
have increased/decreased the Group’s other
comprehensive income by RMB425,000 (2022:
RMB885,000).

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

ugﬂ L IENNE%(ZE =~ 5%) » ANEE
2 E 2R m,m A AR 425,000
(T = —F : AR¥S885,0005T) °

RET B ARMEZ7E RGBT RS
Hﬂf‘%ﬁttléﬂia P

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited = ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. B EMREREBERBEE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Summary of financial assets and liabilities (9) REE2>ZEREERAEGEHE
by category
The categories of financial assets and liabilities T BRREEGEMBRARZEREERE
included in the consolidated statements of BHEAARKBEMAZIBE :

financial position and the headings in which they
are included are as follows:

2023 2022
—E=F —EF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARBTT

Financial assets measured at fair value @#EAREBNECZEREE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAREREMEE
WRPRZ S REE 8,650 13,000
Financial assets measured at BREBHERATTEZ
amortised cost ERMEE
Other receivables E b pEli kI8 142,977 47,098
Pledged deposits BRI FR 60,430 53,518
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHER 434,572 291,705
637,979 392,321
646,629 405,321
Financial liabilities measured at REBHEHATEZ
amortised cost tREE
Accounts payable FERTER X 59,829 30,546
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIA R H A LT
FKIE 211,149 525,515
Bank loans RITER 455,400 465,990
726,378 1,022,051
Other financial liabilities Httemas
Lease liabilities HEAE 24,837 16,241
751,215 1,038,292
At the end of reporting period, the carrying MIBEHR RSB R A S Y SREERSD
values of financial assets and financial liabilities REEYEMEEE AL EHEE -
at amortised costs are approximate to their fair
value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 (£ —E - =F =H=+—HIF F/Z

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 34. EXEE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are: rEBEBEAZEBER
()  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as () HBAEEFELEZEN  NEBERFND
a going concern, so that it continues to provide 5 R B 2 2 F) 25

returns and benefits for stakeholders;

(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth; iy ZEBEAKBEZEREREER: K
and
(il To provide capital for the purpose of (i) REBRIREEEZ ARERES
strengthening the Group’s risk management
capability.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages REFEBERRTEARNT REBEERERE - UBER
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure BEEGEEAEEREHEERRODR - WEER
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration SERKRECHTEREARK - FEF RIER B F L
the future capital requirements of the Group and 7 BAKERSRE - THRNE R R IER KR
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, Mg E#E o ANEE B RTI AR AT ERREK
projected operating cash flows, projected capital Ko

expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group currently does not adopt
any formal dividend policy.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 34. BEXREE(E)
Management regards total equity as capital. The EEERERRBRERAREARA RZTE-_=F=H=
amount of capital as at 31 March 2023 amounted +—H  BXRESEFEHAEARME1,980,348,0007T (=
to approximately RMB1,980,348,000 (2022: T =F : AR¥2,014,076,0007T) - BIRELE &
RMB2,014,076,000), which the management B ERRAX RAEARBEUEREREER  BREH
considers as optimal having considered the projected SHEBEEKFE RZF_=FR=-FT-=-_F=H
capital expenditures and the projected strategic =+ BZERFEEERLEELT
investment opportunities. The net debts-to-equity
ratios at 31 March 2023 and 2022 were as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Accounts payable FETBR X 59,829 30,546
Accruals and other payables FEET I R HoAtb FE T 5B 211,149 525,515
Lease liabilities HERE 24,837 16,241
Bank loans RITER 455,400 465,990
751,215 1,038,292
Less: Cash and bank balances B IR RRTTES (434,572) (291,705)
Pledged deposits BEBER (60,430) (53,518)
Net debts &R F5E 256,213 693,069
Equity e 1,980,348 2,014,076
Net debts to equity ratio B FREY Emt & 13% 34%
NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 35. GREBRERERMT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BEE&RRLEEYERE:
2023 2022
—E=-= —ZF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARBTT
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of FL4FABERERME 2
consolidated statements of cash flows HE NEEEEBY 99,603 94,195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

35. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)

35. GEREREBRMEE

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) BEITBFEEZEEYHE:
financing activities:
Dividend Lease Bank and
payable liabilities  other loans
RITR
EARE HEaE Hitt &R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREFTT ARETFT
(note 29) (note 24)
(Ha£29) (Hzt24)
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-—FMA—H - 15,273 592,040
Changes from cash flows: REREH
Dividend paid BT E (20,317) = =
Proceeds from new bank and FIRITREMER
other loans Fri3 5818 = = 148,500
Repayment of bank and other BERITREMER
loans - - (274,550)
Repayment of principal portion of (B E& &GRS
lease liabilities - (2,736) -
Interest paid =ANEES - (374) (18,148)
Total changes from financing cash Bt &R & REEEH 1A%
flows (20,317) (3,110) (144,198)
Other changes: HEmEs) -
Dividend declared EEIREE 20,317 = =
Interest expenses FER - 374 4,315
Additions of lease liabilities HE & FEEN - 3,704 -
Capitalised borrowing costs EEREEERA - - 13,833
Total other changes Hith #Eh4azE 20,317 4,078 18,148
At 31 March 2022 KRB —_F=RA=+—H - 16,241 465,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 H#E —F — = =F =+—HI-FE

35. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 35. MERERERMT(GE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BMETBFEEZEEBEYHER: (&)

financing activities: (Continued)

Dividend Lease
payable liabilities  Bank loans
EARE HEAaE IRITER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FIT AREFT AREFT
(note 29) (note 24)
(K17%29) (Ktzt24)
At 1 April 2022 RZZE-—FMA—H - 16,241 465,990
Changes from cash flows: HETEZT)
Dividend paid BT E (42,248) = =
Proceeds from new bank loans FERTT /TAZ)EJ?%E'( FRIA = = 280,000
Repayment of bank loans 155&?&17%??&( - = (290,590)
Repayment of principal portion of (EEFHEBBEARE D
lease liabilities - (12,046) -
Interest paid ERFE = (762) (21,551)
Total changes from financing cash RE IR &R E g%
flows (42,248) (12,808) (32,141)
Other changes: H fth B &)
Dividend declared EEIREE 42,248 = =
Interest expenses FEMAX = 762 =
Additions of lease liabilities HEEELM = 20,642 S
Capitalised borrowing costs EEREERA - - 21,551
Total other changes H b EBh4asm 42,248 21,404 21,551
At 31 March 2023 RZE-=F=A=+—H - 24,837 455,400
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by E B RS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z — T - =F = A =+—HIFF&

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

36. ADFHBEARRE

THE COMPANY
2023 2022
—E-= —ET-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
W AR¥For AREFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries S IENGIPR: $ 17 285,452 285,452
Current assets RBEE
Deposit, prepayment and other e BRI REA
receivables fEUR FR T8 960 923
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUR B BB A B FR IR 331,136 365,445
Cash and bank balances R MIRTT# R 43 45
332,139 366,413
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERTSRIE N H b FE T 5RIB 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries LRI INENGIE e 28,907 17,568
28,971 17,632
Net current assets REBEEFE 303,168 348,781
Total assets less current liabilites RZEERABERE 588,620 634,233
Net assets EEFE 588,620 634,233
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 26 20,735 20,735
Reserves s 27 567,885 613,498
Total equity EREE 588,620 634,233
On behalf of the Board RERES=E
Wong Lam Ping Wong Lui
SEMOK TE
Director Director
- 2
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REXEE

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=t—HLEFE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-hnEF  —T-TF T C"T-__F ZBZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETRT AREFT ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)

(EE71) (&E71)

Revenue A 412,826 448,420 426,884 1,738,833 247,460

Profit before income tax BREFISHIAT & 67,928 140,691 117,352 607,130 33,300

Income tax expenses FTiSBFAX (35,292) (84,749) (66,468) (290,759) (22,321)

Profit for the year F R 32,636 55,942 50,884 316,371 10,979

Attributable to: AT AT

Owners of the Company EN/NSIEZZS N 20,730 56,958 57,544 259,119 18,593

Non-controlling interests IR R 11,906 (1,016) (6,660) 57,252 (7,614)
32,636 55,942 50,884 316,371 10,979

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND REEE  HEzREE

LIABILITIES

As at 31 March

R=A=+-H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-NE —E-F —E-—F —E-C —E_=HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥TT ARBTRL ARETT ARETRT

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets ERBEE 690,201 947,132 1,253,687 1,524,474 1,589,307
Current assets MEEE 3,135,881 3,348,273 3,916,377 3,093,505 3,235,954
Total assets HmEE 3,826,082 4,295,405 5,170,064 4,617,979 4,825,261

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREas

Total equity ERBRE 1,602,182 1,619,349 1,656,415 2,014,076 1,980,348
Non-current liabilities FERBAaRE 561,273 340,510 461,021 457,785 539,477
Current liabilities mENEE 1,662,627 2,335,546 3,052,628 2,146,118 2,305,436
Total liabilities EEE 2,223,900 2,676,056 3,513,649 2,603,903 2,844,913

Total equity and liabilities EmhaBesE 3,826,082 4,295,405 5,170,064 4,617,979
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

KEY FINANCIAL RATIO TEMKLLE 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
N5 —T-TE e S —E-- —E-=F
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (lBE5)
Gross profit margin (%) EME(%) 238 43.0 39.7 28.9 39.4
Net profit margin (%) ME (%) 7.9 125 11.9 18.2 4.4
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 1) BAEEELE %)
(Hrit1) 61.7 204 35.4 22.5% 22.7%
Current ratio (times) (Note 2) ML (15)
(Rrit2) 1.89 1.43 1.28 1.44 1.40
Earnings per share BREN (ARES)
(RMB cents) (Note 3) (Ha23) 0.8 2.3 2.3 105 0.75
Net asset value per share ARAHEBA
attributable to owners of ELERFEE
the Company (RMB) (Note 4) (AR®) (Kizt4) 0.6 06 0.6 0.7 0.7
Notes: Hfaz -
1. Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of bank 1. BAREBEHRUEEERITREMEREEE) FMABEBER
and other loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity. BrUAEZSBRERTE -
2. Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total 2. MELL RN FERRBEELERATRE B ERE -
current liabilities as at the end of the year.
3. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit 3. BREABRMZFARQGHEE ARG RE FHTRM INE
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average EHEEHE -
number of Shares in issue during the year.
According to the ordinary resolution approved by the BERZE-—R"FLtAZT+ BRI ZREBFAG LB
Shareholders at the AGM held on 26 July 2016, a total of REENEBRAER RZT—"FNA+=H  &#
1,232,000,000 new Shares were allotted and issued pursuant 1,232,000,000% ¥T A2 (D IR IR AT AR 25 1T E A 3% Jr 3817 o ATAREE
to the bonus issue on 12 August 2016. The weighted average TRZZE—XR"ENA+TZBEKRE  RAEHE=ZZT—tF
number of Shares for the purposes of calculating basic A=+ BLFESRELRRBT 2N INETFHDEENH
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 had been B ZE2,464,000,000R(BE-T—A"F=A=1+—HIEFE :
retrospectively adjusted to 2,464,000,000 Shares (for the year 2,446,338,798/1%) ©
ended 31 March 2016: 2,446,338,798 Shares) after completion
of the bonus issue on 12 August 2016.
4. Net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company 4. AABHEBEABEERFEEERAREAR AELERERUEF

represents equity attributable to the Company’s owners divided
by number of Shares in issue as at the end of the year.

REBTROHKEAE -
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
/e

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
sqm) (sq.m)
2EEAM RE/ER ARE BRI
k3 L] B EE BEER £ HEREE AE
(F5x) (F54)
COMPLETED PROPERTIES
BRINE
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Phase 12 No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, RC 80,521 R:1815 R Expiringon 100%  Completed
Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2073
Nanchang City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 16 September 2043
BELA-28 TEIREREEMIAR RIMZZL=E BRI
fORAAKE1568% NATRBER
C:RZEM=%F
AATABER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 R:271  R:Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Completed
Zone 2~ Part A= Town house Road, Nanchang Economic C:5449  C: Expiring on 18 May 2062
annexed with commercial and car and Technology Development
parking spaces Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEEEAIENAE - AR HEIRERETHELE R:MZZLIE BRT
-ERANEEABR B RiTREEER R688% EATNRER
C:R-FR_F
RATNBER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West C 719,548 C:1,676  C: Expiring on 18 May 2052 55%  Completed
Zone 3~ High rise residential annexed ~ Road, Nanchang Economic
with commercial and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEERIENNEE - REfE TRIRERENRESEE C:R-SH-%F BRI
ERER RTRERER R6065% RATNBER
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
M= E

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
sq.m) (sq.m)
B2EEAN RE/ BB ARE BRI
k3 L] EHER BEER £ HEREE AE
(F5x) (F54)

COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)

BRINEE)

Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 1 No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,753 C:1,925  C: Expiring on 31 January 2050 100%  Completed
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC

BNz ER -5 HEIRLENTEEAE C:RZZhEF BAT
766% —A=T-RBER

Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3 No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,753 C:4,655  C: Expiring on 31 January 2050 100%  Completed
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC

ENERER=5 HEIEEENTEEAE C:RZZRTF BAT
7665 —A=T-RBER

Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West R 719,648 R 1539 R Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Completed

Zone 2, Part B~ Town house Road, Nanchang Economic

and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC

BEEEnoaERSH TEIREREETRESEE R:MZZLCE BRI

- BRAIE RRERERIRR BATNRER

8685

Sino Harbour « Wu Lin Hui Southwest junction of C 20,482 (:1,298  C: Expiring on 6 April 2054 100%  Completed
Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road, Gongshu
District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC

o BAE R AN T ERE T C:RZZTHRF BAT
BREERERD mA~BER
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

MEAS

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
sq.m) (sq.m)
B2EEAN RE/ BB ARE BRI
k3 L] EHER BEER £ HEREE AE
(F5x) (Er )
COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
BRINEE)
Sino Harbour  Guan Lan Phase 1 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R 7,085 R Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Completed
Yuanzhou District, C:2,331  C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
EEBRE-H HEIREEETRME RiR-BttE BRI
EBAE299% ZAZTHBER
C:R-EMtE
ZAZTNBER
PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT
REMIE
Sino Harbour ¢ Guan Lan Phase 2 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R 223,643 R:Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  CY2023Q3
Yuanzhou District, (:89,594  C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
EEBRE-H HEIEEHETRME R:RZZtLLE S
HFRA18209% ZAZTABER 5o3R
C:R-EMtE
ZAZTNBER
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

MEAS

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
sq.m) (sq.m)
B2EEAN RE/ BB ARE BRI
k3 £l EHER BEER £ HEREE AE
(F5x) (F54)
FUTURE PROJECTS
ARER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kalxuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 R: 746,425  R:Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Under planning
Zong 413 Road, Nanchang Economic C: 156,472 C:Expiring on 18 May 2042
and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BEEE 1388 TEIREREMRESEE RWZBL=F EEL
RRERERIRR BATNRER
888% C:RZEm-#
AATNBER
Sino Harbour  Guan Lan Phase 3-4 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R,C:509,429  R: Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Under planning
Yuanzhou District, C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
EEEF-ENE HEIEEHETRME R:MZBLE stEl
HRAB209% ZAZThRER
C:R-ZMLE
ZAZTABER
Sino Harbour  Run Yuan A-02, A-05 and A-07 Tongjia RC 138,034 R, C:431,667 R Expiring on 8 November 2090 51%  Under planning
Mountain, Leping City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on 8 November 2060
Province, the PRC
kB PEIREETHERIL R:WNZENZE stEl

A02+ A-05RA-OTIHSR

+-BN\BER
CRIEEE
T-ANBER
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
/e

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
sq.m) (sq.m)
2EEAM RE/ER A%E BRI
k3 L] B EE BEEE &9 HEREE AE

(Fi#) (Fik)

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

REREEDR

Various refail units on Levels 1-4 and No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A ;36675 C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
various office units on Levels 6-24 Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
of Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center and Nanchang City,

various retall units of Level 1-2 of Block  Jiangxi Province, the PRC
2 and Level 1 of Block 6 and a 3-storey
kindergarten of Nanchang Honggu

Kalxuan
BEAASEEE R L14E hEIREEETAAE TR C:RZEZm=F B#T
ETSEEER64E RLEATAKE1568% NATABER

ETRTABREIERIER
5085 ETEARRIR
~EZERIEE

Various retall units on Levels 1 and 2 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, C N/A C:4,025  C: Expiing on 29 March 2047 100%  Completed
of Blocks 104, 6 and 7 of Yuanzhou District,
Yichun Royal Lake City Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
BENWRE 124 6RTH TEIREEETAME 0 li C:RZTMmt+E B#I
F-R_EETEERR ERA#B209% ZAZTNBER
Various retail and office units of Hanzhiyun -~ Southwest junction of C 20,482 (:50,082  C: Expiring on 6 Apri 2054 100%  Completed
Commercial Center Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road,
Gongshu District,
Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
EZBEFRLETREESR RERIENTEERR T C:R-BLMFMA~BER BAT
ETEREN RRBTEERD
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
M= E

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
sq.m) (sq.m)
2EEAM RE/ER A%E BRI
k3 L] B EE BEEE &9 HEREE AE

(Fi#) (Fik)

PROPERTIES OCCUPIED BY THE GROUP

HAEREE IR
Levels, 25/F and 26/F, Sino Harbour No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A C:1,232 G Expiring on 100%  Completed
Kaixuan Center, Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BENAIEE AR L0R6E  REIRLEETIAE ER C:RZEH=% BRI
fORAAKE1568% NATRBER
Room 1502 of Entrance B of No. 28 Zhongshan West Road, R N/A R:166  R:Expiring in June 2069 100%  Completed
the South Bulding of Minshi Garden Xihu District, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
LB BIEBETI500E TEIRERETREAR ER R: BB NERARR BRI
il A28
R: Residential R: FE
C:  Commercial and other C: BERAM
CY:  Calendar year cy: JEBFE

The “Planned GFA” and “Expected Completion Date” are based on the [ Z|EEmE & | R [FA:1 8 T HA | DEREIEEHN R E G E7R
best estimate by the management. These figures may change as the [t ° ZZFE(JF AJGEBEIE B £ E T EE) -
projects progress.
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